Agenda
For enquiries on this agenda, please contact:
Sam Nicholls tel. 020 8547 5533
e-mail: sam.nicholls@kingston.gov.uk

Published on 21 April 2021

Council
Date:

Thursday 29 April 2021

Time:

7:30 pm

Place:

a virtual meeting which members of the public can
view online at this link:
https://www.youtube.com/user/KingstonCouncil

Opening of Meeting
The Mayor will invite her Chaplain, Reverend Luke Wickings, to open the meeting. This
will include a minute’s silence in memory of HRH Prince Phillip, Duke of Edinburgh.
1.

Apologies

2.

Declarations of Interest

Members are invited to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and any other nonpecuniary interests (personal interests) relevant to items on this agenda.
3.

Minutes

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 25
February 2021.
4.

Mayor's Announcements

2
5.

Petitions

To receive petitions submitted by Councillors, or by members of the public who live, work
or study in the Borough, on a matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties
or which affects the Royal Borough. The petition must contain at least 20 signatures, and
notice of the intention to submit the petition must be given in writing to
democratic.services@kingston.gov.uk by 10am the day before the meeting. The
petitioner will have up to 2 minutes speaking time to present the petition. Up to 5 petitions
can be presented at the meeting which will be presented in order of the number of
signatories. (Any remaining petitions can be submitted, without speaking.)
Petitions will be processed in accordance with the Council’s Petition Scheme.
6.

Public Questions

The following public questions were received by the deadline as set out in the Council’s
Meeting Procedure Rule 17(A):
Children in Care Council
representative (name withheld upon
request)

Activities for young people post Covid
restrictions

Maria Grazia Zingale

European Union Citizens

A period of up to 30 minutes shall be allowed at each Ordinary Meeting of the Council
during which any person who resides, studies or works in the Borough other than
Members of the Council may ask questions of the Mayor, the Leader of the Council,
Leaders of the other Party Groups, any Portfolio Holder, Chairs of` the Strategic and
Neighbourhood Committees, and members representing the Council on outside bodies
any question on any matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties or which
affects the Royal Borough.
At any one meeting no person may submit more than one question and no more than one
such question may be asked on behalf of one organisation.
Questions will be asked in the order in which notice of them was received, unless the
Mayor decides otherwise in the interests of the efficient conduct of the meeting.
One supplementary question shall be allowed provided it is for clarification, arises directly
out of the original question/response and is not a statement.
Any question which cannot be dealt with during public question time, either because of
lack of time or because of the non attendance of the Member, to whom it was to be put,
will be dealt with by a written answer and a copy of the answer will be recorded with the
minutes of the meeting.
7.

Motion

In accordance with Procedure Rule 8(A)(5), the Council will debate a motion which has
been submitted by Members of the Council.

3
This will alternate, from meeting to meeting, between a motion submitted on behalf of the
Administration and a motion submitted on behalf of Opposition Members of the Council.
The following Motion has been received from the Opposition Group (Conservative Group):
Proposed by Councillors Kevin Davis
Seconded by Councillor David Cunningham
This council acknowledges that;
1. the Coronavirus pandemic has brought a sharp focus on the issue of public health
and specifically the health and wellbeing of the residents of the Borough,
2. residents in Kingston are more healthy overall than the national or London
population (measured using a variety of measures including life expectancy which
is greater than the England average by 1.9 years for Kingston men and 1.4 years
for Kingston women),
3. health outcomes and life expectancy in Kingston are generally good because of the
overall affluence of the area
4. good overall health outcomes hide specific areas of deprivation where average life
expectancy is not so good - Male life expectancy ranged from 77.1 years in
Norbiton to 84.1 years in Tudor. Female life expectancy was also lowest in Norbiton
(80.5 years) but highest in Old Malden (87.4 years)
5. since the start of the Go Cycle scheme in 2014 this council has made progress in
the provision of healthy opportunities for short journeys and the use of exercise
equipment in a small number of parks and in its support of the Joint Strategic
Needs Assessment
This council believes that;
6. the pandemic has shown that there is significant demand and a new understanding
of public health and the need for good access to open spaces as part of a healthy
lifestyle,
7. access to public space and the enhancement of the public realm should be a
priority for the council in supporting the greater health and wellbeing of residents.
This council resolves to;
8. encourage the provision of public exercise in our parks by working with businesses
and exercise providers to licence a greater range of exercise and meditation
classes,
9. explore with our adult education provider what additional health and fitness
provision could be made through the established adult education provision and at a
wider range of venues,
10. lobby the Royal Parks Agency to not introduce excessive car parking charges that
could lead to the lessening of opportunities for public exercise by preventing access
to the park by lower-income families and in any scheme ensure they do not
penalise regular visits by families and dog walkers,
11. work with the Royal Parks Agency to find measures that will further enhance the
enjoyment and access to exercise presented by the park without damaging the

4
health and wellbeing of those Kingston residents living close to the park and
impacted by its measures,
12. present a report to the Autumn 2021 meeting of the Place committee on the
provision of public exercise equipment in a wider number of public locations,
including wayside gardens, public parks and other areas with community access,
13. present a report to the Autumn 2021 meeting of the People committee establishing
what further provision of public exercise equipment can be made to our publicly
owned housing estates,
14. require the provision of a replacement Kingfisher swimming pool through a single,
stand-alone capital project, funded by borrowing, expedited at speed and at least
by the deadline of Quarter 3 2023 set by the Response and Recovery Committee of
26 November 2020,
15. repay the borrowing for the pool identified at 14, in due course, from the receipts
derived from the subsequent development of the Cattle Market and Guildhall
complex,
16. require an annual report on the health and wellbeing of the borough to be
presented to the full council with an action plan on the specific measures that the
council will be taking in the future year to support residents and their public health.
17. require a report be presented to the full council in the meeting immediately prior to
Christmas 2021 so we can see progress on the measures outlined in this motion.
8.

Member Questions

In accordance with Procedural Rule 6 (1&2) replies will be given to questions of which
notice has been given which may be addressed to the Mayor, the Leader of the Council,
Portfolio Holders, the Leader of the Opposition, Chairs of the Standing and
Neighbourhood Committees and Members representing the Council on Outside Bodies.
9.

Constitutional Changes - Planning Arrangements

Appendix A

To consider proposed changes in respect of procedures and protocols relating to the
consideration of planning applications and recommendations outlined in Appendix A.
10.

Review of Constitutional Arrangements - Recommendations of
the Response and Recovery Committee 25.03.21

Appendix B

To consider the recommendations of the Response and Recovery Committee, held on 25
March 2021, relating to proposals to streamline the Strategic Committee structure and a
number of minor amendments to the Council’s Constitutional arrangements and Contract
Regulations as set out in Appendix B.
Since the date of the meeting, it has been confirmed that the regulations permitting virtual
meetings will not be extended and this is the subject of a report which is set out in Item 12
on the agenda. This may require a number of amendments to the proposed calendar of
meetings.
11.

Cambridge Road Estate Programme Delivery Recommendations from the Response and Recovery
Committee 25.03.21

Appendix C

To consider the recommendations of the Response and Recovery Committee held on 25
March 2021 namely relating to the exercise, in the last resort, of Compulsory Purchase

5
powers to facilitate the delivery of the Cambridge Road Estate regeneration programme,
as set out in Appendix C.
12.

Review of Emergency Decision Making Arrangements

Appendix D

The purpose of this report is to identify options for the delivery of meetings of the Council
and its Committees upon the expiry of temporary Regulations which permit meetings to
take place virtually.
13.

Election of the Mayor for 2021/22

At the Council meeting on 20 March 2001 it was agreed that, other than in an Election
Year, the Mayor should be elected at the Ordinary Council meeting immediately preceding
the Annual Meeting. (In an Election Year the Mayoral election takes place at the Annual
Meeting.) Accordingly, the Council is now asked to elect the Mayor for the Royal Borough
for the Municipal Year 2021/22.
At the Extraordinary Meeting of the Council on 19 May 2020 it was noted that in view of
the disruption to meetings arising from the public health emergency the serving Mayor for
the 2019/20 Municipal Year, Councillor Margaret Thompson, would remain in office to the
end of 2020/21, at which point the Council would be invited to elect the Deputy Mayor,
Councillor Sushila Abraham, as Mayor for the 2021/22 Municipal Year.
The formal installation of the Mayor will take place at the Annual Meeting on 18 May 2021.
Council is therefore now asked to RESOLVE that –
Councillor Abraham be elected as Mayor for the Royal Borough of Kingston for the
2021/22 Municipal Year.
Background Papers - None
14.

Appointment of Honorary Tipstaff and Town Crier

At the meeting of Council on 17 April 2018 Mr Michael Seigel was appointed to the
position of Honorary Tipstaff and Town Crier with effect from the Annual Council meeting
on 22 May 2018 for a period of three years to expire on the date of the Annual Council
meeting in 2021. Mr Seigel has indicated that he is prepared to continue in office at the
expiry of his current term and Council is therefore now asked to approve his
reappointment for a further three years.
The role of the Tipstaff is that of a uniformed official of the Council who takes part in Civic
processions and performs the function of regulating the pace, as well as generally
attending on Members. The Council combined the role of the Tipstaff with that of the Town
Crier, who assists with civic events and acts as Toastmaster at civic functions, in 1984. As
this is an honorary position there are only very limited resource implications arising from
any necessary repairs and adjustments to the uniform that is provided.
The Council is asked to RESOLVE that Mr Michael Seigel is re-appointed to the position of Honorary Tipstaff and Town Crier with
effect from the Annual Council meeting on 18 May 2021 for a period of three years to
expire on the date of the Annual Council meeting in 2024.

6
Background Papers – None
15.

Appointments of Members to Committees, Panels and other
bodies

Appendix E

The Council is RECOMMENDED to make the following appointments:
1. Councillor Caroline Kerr to be appointed as Chair of the Property Investment
Company Shareholders’ Committee. (The remit and functions of the Committee are
set out for information at Appendix E)
16.

Armed Forces Community Covenant - Information item

The Council customarily receives an annual progress report on delivery of the Armed
Forces Community Covenant in Kingston. Activity in relation to the Member Officer Group
which oversees the Council’s activities in respect of the Covenant has necessarily been
reduced in the past 12 months because of the pandemic but a short statement from the
Group is set out below for information pending submission of a full report via the relevant
Strategic Committee in the next Municipal Year.
Despite the constraints imposed by the Covid-19 pandemic the three members of the
Working Group, namely the Mayor Councillor Margaret Thompson, Councillor Maria
Netley and the Council’s Senior Strategy and Performance Officer, Francis Arokiasamy,
continue to ensure that the Armed Forces Covenant, renewed in 2018, is embedded in
Council practice. There is training on the Council website, and this will form part of every
new employees’ induction. The Mayor attended the re-launch of the Covenant by the
Royal British Legion, and the Group is in the process of updating the information gained.
Every homeless person assisted by the Council during the pandemic was asked if they
had ever served in the Armed Forces, as that will be taken into account for housing
allocation. No-one fitted that criterion. The question on the Census form asking for any
Service history will give a clearer picture of ex-Servicepeople in the Borough.
The Armed Forces Day flag was raised over the Guildhall as usual this year.
Remembrance ceremonies were much more low key than usual, but were observed in a
dignified manner. The Group was unable to meet our local units this year but hope to do
so as soon as possible.
The Group continues to work together to ensure the well-being of our local serving and
former service men and women.
For information
17.

Urgent Items authorised by the Mayor

To consider any items which, in the view of the Mayor, should be dealt with as a matter of
urgency because of special circumstances in accordance with S100B(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972.

7
18.

Exclusion of the Press and Public

The following resolution is included as a standard item which will only be relevant if any
exempt matter is to be considered at the meeting for which the Committee wish to resolve
to exclude the press and public:
To exclude the public from the meeting under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972 on the grounds that it is likely that exempt information, as defined in paragraph
*….of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act, would be disclosed and the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.
(*relevant regulatory paragraph to be indicated)

Council

A1

Appendix A

20 April 2021
Constitutional Changes - Planning Arrangements
Director, Place
Relevant Portfolio Holders: Planning Policy & Culture and Community and Governance

Purpose
To report on proposed changes in respect of procedures and protocols relating to the
consideration of planning applications.
To RECOMMEND TO COUNCIL that subject to the views of the Development Control Committee and the Neighbourhood
Committees:
1.

the revisions to Part 3A of the Constitution, Responsibility for Functions, in respect
of the Neighbourhood Committees and Development Control Committee as set out
at Annexes 1 and 2 respectively, and the revised Planning Protocol including
Planning Procedure Rules at Annex 3 be approved;

2.

Part 4A of the Constitution, Meeting Procedure Rules, be amended to cross
reference with the detailed Planning Procedure Rules referenced in 1) above; and

3.

the Monitoring Officer be authorised to make any further consequential minor
changes arising from these proposals as may be required in consultation with the
Portfolio Holders for Planning Policy & Culture and Community and Governance.

Benefits to the Community:
Reviewing and updating the Constitution on an annual basis assists in underpinning
good corporate governance and enables the Council to provide clear leadership to the
community in partnership with citizens, businesses and other organisations, supporting
the active involvement of citizens in the process of Council decision making.

Key Points
A.

A review has been conducted of the procedures around the determination of
planning applications, particularly strategic applications, in order to facilitate better
engagement with those committees with planning related functions.

B.

The proposals set out in this report, have been considered by each Neighbourhood
Committee and the Development Control Committee during January 2021, prior to
submission to Council on 20 April 2021. Amendments and clarifications have been
made as a response to comments and recommendations resulting through the
dialogue with the respective committees and are identified as the blue text in the
report, annexes and appendices.

A2
It is recommended that the Constitution is amended as detailed in Annexes 1 to 3
so that the Council as Local Planning Authority is able to function in a more efficient
and effective manner whilst optimising the involvement of Planning Committee
members in the determination of planning applications for strategically important
developments.

C.

Proposals for Change
1.

As set out in the Key Points, a review has been conducted of the procedures
around the determination of planning applications, particularly strategic
applications.

2.

In the context of this report, “Planning Committees” refers collectively to the
Development Control Committee and each of the Neighbourhood Committees.

3.

It should be noted that the term Development Control is outdated with
Development Management now generally being used instead. It is therefore
proposed that the Development Control Committee (DCC) be retitled the
Planning Committee in line with most such Committees elsewhere. However, for
ease of reference in this report, the Committee will still be referred to as DCC.

Terms of Reference of Planning Committees
4.

Details of proposed changes in respect of the Terms of Reference of the
Planning Committees are set out in the following paragraphs. These, together
with some minor corrections and consequential changes, are reflected in
re-drafts of Part 3A of the Constitution (Responsibility for Functions) in respect of
the Development Control Committee and the Neighbourhood Committees
attached at Annexes 1 and 3 respectively.

5.

The essential split between the work of the Planning Committees is that Major
applications go to DCC (as it is currently known) and other applications go to a
Neighbourhood Committee. What constitutes a Major application is defined by
the Government. This is a sensible arrangement and it is not proposed that it be
altered.

6.

The terms of reference of the DCC Committee need to be amended to make
specific provision for the facilitation of the presentation of applications in the
pre-application or pre-determination stage to the Committee.
Application Types

7.

The existing provisions refer to “planning applications”, which has a broad
meaning and is probably not intended to refer to, for example, Applications for
Lawful Development Certificates or Certificates of Appropriate Alternative
Development as these are basically legal processes involving no planning
judgement. It is proposed that the term “Applications for Planning Permission” be
used instead because it has a precise legal meaning and matches the likely
intent behind the existing text.
Decision Types

8.

The current arrangements generally only require recommendations for approval

A3
to go to Committee. This is sensible and should continue. It is very useful for
Officers when negotiating applications where the applicant is refusing to move on
an issue to have the ability to say, “you can have the refusal by close of play”.
Where refusals are controversial (which is very rare and hard to define) the
Assistant Director Strategic Planning and Infrastructure (‘the AD’) can use his or
her discretion and report the matter to Committee.

9.

The other important factor is that an aggrieved applicant has a right of appeal, so
has the ability to challenge the decision. No significant changes are therefore
proposed but the text has been redrafted for clarity. However, it is proposed that
any refusal of a major development would be finalised in consultation with the
Chair of the Planning Committee.
Petitions & Pro-forma letters

10.

Petitions and multiple objections received from a single property, will continue to
be treated as forming a single objection for the purposes of deciding whether
they will trigger consideration by Committee. Pro-forma letters (a letter or email
that has been produced and distributed for people to sign, or reproduce and sign,
and send to the Council) should also henceforth be treated collectively as
forming a petition rather than being treated as individual objections for the
purposes of deciding whether they will trigger consideration by Committee.
Objections (for the purposes of deciding whether they will trigger consideration by
Committee - for the avoidance of doubt all relevant representations will be
recorded in the officer report.)

11.

There is a need to more clearly define what constitutes a valid objection in order
to avoid legal challenges. It is recommended that it be made clear that an
objection is a letter, email or a petition from any party (Councillor, local resident,
business etc) that meets all the following requirements:
●

It is in response to an application that has been publicised or advertised by
the Council;

●

It is not anonymous and includes the person’s name and postal address;

●

It is from, or on behalf of, a person who lives at, operates from an address
which is within the Borough or is the owner or occupier of a property that is
outside the Borough but adjoins an application site;

●

It is received by the Planning Service within the statutory consultation
period. For the purpose of Call-ins by relevant Ward Members this would
be the statutory consultation period plus 7 days;

●

It raises objections that are material planning considerations and are
related to the application, and

●

Any material planning objection raised cannot be overcome by scheme
amendment, imposing planning condition(s) or securing planning
obligation(s) in consultation with the Chair.

Call-Ins

A4

12.

An application may be ‘called-in’ to Committee at the request of all the relevant
Ward Members. In practice this relates only to Neighbourhood Committees as
matters are presented to DCC by virtue of their size, irrespective of whether there
are objections or call-ins. The Chair of Neighbourhood Committees have call in
powers. If an application meets with an objection from the Chair/ Vice Chair of
Conservation Area Advisory Committees the application is referred to the Chair
of the Neighbourhood to ascertain whether the Chair of the Neighbourhood
wishes to call-in the application.

13.

The existing provisions require Ward Members to include in their call-in request
‘objections on the basis of material planning grounds’. However, if the Ward
Member sits on the Committee which determines an application they have called
in there is a risk of challenge relating to predetermination because of the nature
of the objection. It is therefore proposed to remove the requirement to raise
material planning considerations in such circumstances. This enables Members
to request that an application be called in without requiring a commitment to a
particular position.
Neighbourhood Committees

14.

It is important that the Development Plan is applied consistently across
Neighbourhood Committees and that the Committees have the ability to deal
with vexatious objectors or call-ins.

15.

The agreement of both the AD and the Chair of DCC is presently needed to
approve the call-in of an application to a Neighbourhood Committee by the
Neighbourhood Chair. It is proposed that this should now only need the
agreement of the DCC Chair in consultation with the AD. The other criteria that
trigger Neighbourhood consideration: five or more Objections and Ward
members’ Objection should be subject to a similar gatekeeping arrangement
operated by the Chair of the Neighbourhood committee in consultation with the
AD.

16.

When this gatekeeping function is exercised by the Chair of DCC or a
Neighbourhood Committee it is important that it is open and transparent. This
could be achieved by listing all such instances with the related reasons why the
power was exercised on the next available DCC Agenda. The operation of this
arrangement is detailed in the proposed operational rules for the Planning
Committee (Annex 3 refers).

17.

Regarding Enforcement matters, although in practice these rarely go to
Neighbourhood Committees, it is proposed that in line with common practice
elsewhere, the taking of enforcement action be delegated to Officers. Officers
need to be able to proceed quickly under delegated powers to take action against
unauthorised development. The contravener’s rights are protected through a
right of appeal against any Notice served by the Council. Quarterly reports
detailing relevant enforcement cases will be reported to Neighbourhood
Committees regarding whether action has been taken or not.

18.

Finally, there are three circumstances where it is recommended that matters that
might otherwise go to a Neighbourhood Committee should be put before DCC.
These are:

A5

a) Departures from the Development Plan
Neighbourhood Committees are not allowed to take decisions which are
contrary to Council policy (which would include the Development Plan).
Currently, the drafting of the Terms of Reference are ambiguous. It is proposed
that the ambiguity be removed with more precise drafting. It will be made clear
that if the decision constitutes a “Departure” (a term that has a legal definition
in planning and means a decision which is contrary to policy but in a
substantial or significant way) the matter must go to DCC. Neighbourhood
Committees will be able to make decisions that are not fully compliant with
policy, but not if the non-compliance is so substantial that it constitutes a
Departure.
It is also important to note that decisions which have implications for more
than one neighbourhood, have financial implications or are highly controversial
should also go to DCC if the matter needs to be determined by Committee.
b) The Council’s own developments in certain circumstances
At present the Council’s own developments are routinely presented to
Committee, however this is not always deemed necessary in every case. It is
proposed that where there are no objections or Call-In and the application is
compliant with the Development Plan the matter can be determined by Officers
under delegated powers. In all other circumstances the application would be
routed through DCC in order to maintain transparency.
Where the Council is not itself the developer but it wants to obtain planning
permission so it can sell the land no delegations will apply and all applications
reserved to DCC.
c) Applications submitted by Councillors and some officers
Similarly, it is proposed that henceforth applications by Members and Officers
need not necessarily all be routed through Committee. For transparency
purposes, provision needs to be made to ensure that applications submitted
by Members and key Officers are determined by DCC. However, this can be
limited to circumstances where the applicant is a senior officer (i.e. Service
Head and above), Political Group Officer or an Officer who, in the opinion of
the AD, is closely involved in the day-to-day work of the Council’s planning
function, or an elected Member (or a close relative of such), the
recommendation is to grant approval and an objection has been received or
the proposal does not fully comply with the Development Plan.
Planning Protocol and Operation of the Planning Committee
19.

The existing Planning Protocol (Part 5D of the Constitution) seems to follow the
Local Government Association’s (LGA) model code produced in 2009. There
have been several subsequent changes to the legislation (eg Localism Act 2011)
and the rules that sit behind such codes. The LGA therefore issued a new model
code in 2013 and a further update in 2019. RBK’s Protocol needs to be updated
to reflect the latest position.

A6

20.

The new Protocol, based on the latest LGA 2019 model code, will cover the
following areas:
● Aim of the Protocol
● Role and conduct of Councillors and officers
● Interests: registration and disclosure
● Bias: predisposition/predetermination
● Applications submitted by the Council, Councillors or officers
● Lobbying of and by Councillors
● Pre-application discussions
● Post-submission discussions
● Planning appeals
● Planning enforcement
● Councillor training

21.

In the context of DCC receiving presentations of development proposals in the
pre-application stage, it is also necessary to set out the probity advice for this as
an additional element in the Planning Protocol.

22.

It is proposed that this new Protocol replaces in its entirety the current “Planning
Protocol” in Part 5 of the Constitution: Codes and Protocols and is set out at
Annex 3.

23.

The review also identified a number of areas where procedures in Planning
committees need to be amended and should be clearly set out and adhered to.
These procedure rules are by their nature detailed.

24.

Specific to the operation of planning committees are:
● Ordering of the committee agenda in the context of Presentations.
● The operation of the Chair’s gatekeeping function.
● Pre-committee matters, such as site visits.
● The protocols around the wording of recommendations, delegations to
officers if there is a need to change that wording either as a result of
changes by committee or subsequently due to unforeseen circumstances.
● Procedures and deadlines for Late Material.

A7

● Public speaking procedures.
● The sequence of events (officer presentation, public speaking etc) for
each agenda type.
● Advice on decision making and the need for committee councillors to be
in attendance for an item that they are voting on.
● Clarity around the voting procedures, particularly when the committee is
minded to go against officer’s advice or if such a decision would be a
Departure.
● The delegation to officers to finalise the wording of committee decisions
ensures that any changes do not deviate from the overall principle of the
decision reached by the committee or could reasonably have led to a
different decision having been reached by the committee.
● The approach to minutes is clarified to reduce the risk of judicial review.
25.

These key amendments and additions to the constitution will enable the process
of all planning committees to run smoothly and minimise the risk of a successful
challenge to decisions.

26.

These rules are necessarily detailed and it is proposed that they are set out in
Part 5D together with the Planning Protocol (Annex 3) and will be
cross-referenced in Part 4(A) of the Constitution with the addition of a procedure
rule similar to that in relation Petitions (Procedure Rule 7).

Timescale
27.

The proposals contained within this report will be submitted to Council on 20 April
2021 for approval. The changes would then come into effect from the
commencement of the municipal year in May 2021.

Resource Implications and Financial Context
28.

Whilst the proposals contained in this report have no direct resource
implications, everything the Council does needs to be seen in the context of an
increasingly challenging financial environment.

29.

Kingston is not alone in its challenges, one in three of all councils fearing they
will run out of funding to carry out their legal duties by 2022/23. However, this
position is particularly stark in Kingston. The demand for services is increasing
while the funds available to meet these needs continues to fall.

30.

In 2010 the council received £66m in government grant - by 2018 that had been
cut to zero. This means that it is a continual challenge to find adequate funds to
meet needs. Despite these challenges the Council has a drive and commitment
to ensure it is doing the best for residents and communities.

A8

Legal Implications
31.

There are no legal implications arising from the proposals in this report. The
proposed amendments to the delegations in respect of the Council's discharge of
its functions as local planning authority are within its statutory powers, in
particular as contained in section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972.

Risk Assessment
32.

Not applicable to the subject matter of this report.

Equalities Analysis
33.

An EQIA has not been undertaken in relation to this report. An EQIA was
undertaken when the Constitution was reviewed in October 2019 and no policy
changes affecting this assessment are being proposed.

Health Implications/Road Network Implications/Sustainability Implications
34.

Not applicable to the subject matter of this report.

Background papers - None
Author of report - Tim Naylor, Assistant Director Strategic Planning & Infrastructure,
email tim.naylor@kingston.gov.uk

ANNEX 1

A9

EXTRACT FROM PART 3A RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS
(NOTE: Changes to the existing provisions indicated by text struck through and in
red)

3.

Neighbourhood Committees
3.1

Details of the Neighbourhood Committees structure are set out in Article 9 of the
Constitution and the functions for which Neighbourhood Committees are
responsible are set out below. Each Neighbourhood Committee comprises of the
Councillors representing the electoral wards within the Neighbourhood.

3.2

The role of the Neighbourhood Committees broadly comprises three distinct but
complementary elements:
1. to exercise the formal powers and duties of the Council in respect of certain
services and functions;
2. to support and complement the work of the Strategic Committees and;
3. to use their positions of leadership and influence to actively engage with and
empower the respective local communities and build capacity and resilience
within them.

Powers
3.4

Any decision which affects a single Neighbourhood Committee area may be taken
by the relevant Neighbourhood Committee provided that:
● The decision is within Council’s budget and policy framework;
● They are within Council policy / there is no conflict with Council policy;
● The impact of the decision extends no further than the boundaries of relevant
Neighbourhood area;
● Any financial implications of decisions taken are capable of being contained
within the approved budget;
● They do not involve matters of a highly controversial nature as identified by the
Chief Executive in consultation with the Chair of the Neighbourhood Committee
concerned.

3.5

Where a decision has a cross boundary impact on part of another Neighbourhood
Committee area it will be taken by the Committee in the area in which the decision
has the greatest impact subject to consultation with the secondary Committee.
Where the effect of the impact is broadly equal the Monitoring Officer shall
determine the appropriate decision maker in consultation with the Chairs of the
relevant Neighbourhood Committees.

3.6

The following powers and duties are specifically reserved to Neighbourhood
Committees:
1. To be responsible for the development and approval of Local Community
Plans containing priority topics or issues identified through consultation and
engagement on the local area and local population. Local Community Plans
provide clear priorities, appropriate project workstreams and identify potential

A10
funding to be allocated for the Neighbourhood Committee’s decision or
recommendation to relevant Strategic Committee.

2. To make recommendations to Strategic Committees in relation to issues which
impact on the Neighbourhood Committee Community Plan.
3. To be responsible for the determination of Development Control applications in
respect of To exercise the functions, powers and duties of the Council in
relation to Development Management (except where it is a matter reserved for
Planning Committee: see 3.9 below) with respect to recommendations to
approve Applications for Planning Permission1 where one of the following
circumstances apply
a. A minor planning application for development which is contrary to Council
policy unless it is intended to refuse the application.
b. Planning applications for development where there is significant local
public concern (defined as 5 or more objection from separate addresses,
who have objected in writing raising material planning considerations)
unless it is intended to refuse the application AND the relevant Chair or
Vice Chair requests that the application be considered at Committee.
c. Where the Chair of the relevant Neighbourhood Committee requests, on
material planning grounds, that the application be considered at
Committee and both the Assistant Director Strategic Planning and
Infrastructure and the Chair of the Development Control Committee agree
that it is appropriate to do so.
d. Where all relevant ward Members have, within 28 days of the date an
application is deemed to be valid, submitted requests in writing raising
objections on the basis of material planning grounds.
e. Applications submitted by or on behalf of the Council or where the Council
has an interest in the land where the objection(s) have been received or
where the Committee Chair has requested that it is determined by
committee.
f.

Any application which falls within a Conservation Area and to which the
relevant Conservation Area Advisory Committee resolves to object where
it is intended to approve the application and the relevant Chair or
Vice-Chair requests that the matter be considered by the Committee.

g. Any application which in the view of the Assistant Director of Strategic
Planning & Infrastructure is in the public interest should be considered by
the relevant Committee.
a. Five Objections (see definition below) to the application have been
submitted and the Chair of the Neighbourhood Committee, in consultation
with the Assistant Director Strategic Planning and Infrastructure, considers
it appropriate for Committee consideration.
b. Where the Chair of the relevant Neighbourhood Committee has submitted
a Call-In Request (see definition below) and the Chair of the Planning
Committee, in consultation with the Assistant Director Strategic Planning
and Infrastructure, considers it appropriate for Committee consideration;
c. Where all Councillors of the ward within which the application is located or
adjoins have submitted a Call-In Request (see definition below) and the
Chair of the Neighbourhood Committee, in consultation with the Assistant
1

Full Planning Applications (including Householder applications) and Outline Planning Applications

A11
Director Strategic Planning and Infrastructure, considers it appropriate for
Committee consideration; or

d. An application which falls within a Conservation Area and to which the
relevant Conservation Area Advisory Committee has submitted a Call-In
Request (see definition below) and the Chair of the Neighbourhood
Committee, in consultation with the Assistant Director Strategic Planning
and Infrastructure, considers it appropriate for Committee consideration.
4. Any planning matter which the Assistant Director of Strategic Planning &
Infrastructure wishes to refer to the Committee.
3.7

An Objection is a Public Access Comment response, email, letter or petition that
meets all the following requirements:
●

It is in response to an application that has been publicised or advertised by
the Council;

●

It is not anonymous and includes the person’s name and postal address;

●

It is from, or on behalf of, a person who lives at or operates from an
address which is within the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames;

●

It is received by the Planning Service within the statutory consultation
period;

●

It raises objections that are material planning considerations2 and are
related to the application, and

●

If in the opinion of the Assistant Director of Strategic Planning and
Infrastructure, in consultation with the relevant Chair, a material planning
objection is overcome by scheme amendment, imposing planning
condition(s) or securing planning obligation(s), such an objection no longer
counts towards the circumstances that trigger Committee consideration.
However, the objection will still be recorded in the Officer Report. A
quarterly update detailing when this provision has been used will be
provided to the Neighbourhood Committee.

If several objections are received from a single property, they will be treated as a
single Objection for the purposes of deciding whether they will trigger
consideration by Committee. For the avoidance of doubt all representations
received will be reported in the Officer Report.
Pro-forma letters (an Objection that has been produced and distributed for people
to sign, or reproduce and sign, and send to the Council) will be treated collectively
as forming a Petition rather than being treated as individual Objections.
Petitions are treated as forming a single Objection.
3.8

A Call-In Request is a Public Access Comment response, email or letter from a
Councillor or a Conservation area Advisory Committee Chair/Vice-Chair that
meets all the following requirements
● It is in response to an application that had been publicised or advertised by
the Council

2

Examples of which are set out on the Planning Pages of the Council's Website

A12
● It is received by the Planning Service within the statutory consultation period;
and For the purpose of Call-ins by relevant Ward Members this would be the
statutory consultation period plus 7 days; and
● It must contain a specific written request for the application to be considered
at Committee

3.9

The following matters are specifically reserved to Planning Committee:
a. Applications for Planning Permission for a Major development3 (as defined in
the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(England) Order.
b. The decision would not accord with the provisions of the Development Plan
and, in the opinion of the Assistant Director Strategic Planning and
Infrastructure, constitutes a Departure.
c. The Council is the applicant.
d. The applicant is an elected member, one of the officer categories specified in
the Planning Committee’s Responsibility for Functions or a close relative of
either of these.
d. Where, in the opinion of the Assistant Director Strategic Planning and
Infrastructure, the decision would raise issues that are wider than the
neighbourhood, have financial implications or be highly controversial.

3.7

To determine planning enforcement action in respect of planning decisions by
either the Development Control Committee or the Neighbourhood Committee
unless the Chair of the relevant Neighbourhood Committee, the Corporate Head of
Planning and the Chair of the Development Control Committee agree that it is
appropriate for the matter to be referred to the Development Control Committee.

3.10

To approve or reject schemes associated with all forms of parking controls which
are contentious, and where objections cannot be resolved by negotiation.

3.11

To approve traffic management schemes on all roads other than A roads and
strategic routes managed by Transport for London, where objections cannot be
resolved by negotiation.

3.12

To make appointments to Outside Bodies operating solely within the relevant
Neighbourhood.

3.13

To establish Sub committees for the purpose of determining planning applications
and planning enforcement action Applications for Planning Permission reserved
for determination by a Neighbourhood Committee and agree their composition and
working arrangements frequency.

3.12

To determine whether the allocation of Ward Councillor funding for the
Neighbourhood Committee area is to be pooled across the entire Committee.

3.13

To be formally consulted on any major regeneration schemes in the
Neighbourhood Committee area following a request by the Chair of the
Neighbourhood Committee.

3

“major development” means development involving any one or more of the following— (a) the winning and
working of minerals or the use of land for mineral-working deposits; (b) waste development; (c) the provision
of dwellinghouses where— (i) the number of dwellinghouses to be provided is 10 or more; or (ii) the
development is to be carried out on a site having an area of 0.5 hectares or more and it is not known whether
the development falls within sub-paragraph (c)(i); (d) the provision of a building or buildings where the floor
space to be created by the development is 1,000 square metres or more; or (e) development carried out on a
site having an area of 1 hectare or more;

3.14

A13
To be consulted on a draft Development Plan Document (or revision to a Draft
Development Plan Document) before it is submitted to the Secretary of State.

3.15

To be formally consulted on the scoping of Supplementary Planning Documents at
the pre-application consultation stage following a request by the Chair of the
Neighbourhood Committee.

3.16

To be consulted on the Local Implementation Plan (LIP) programme before it is
submitted to Transport for London.

3.16

To be consulted on a draft Development Plan Document (or revision to a Draft
Development Document) before it is submitted to the Secretary of State.

Allocation of Funding
3.17

The Neighbourhood Committee will have access to certain funding streams to
award projects, events and activities which provide a benefit to the neighbourhood
area based on the allocation recommended by Finance and Contracts Committee
to include (but not exhaustively) the following funding streams:
● Community Interest Infrastructure Levy (CIL) funding;
● Community Funding Grants; and
● Ward Councillor Funding (allocation of up to £2,000 per Councillor in each
Neighbourhood). Ward Councillor funding may be pooled or used by individual
Councillors, to be decided upon and at the discretion of each individual
Neighbourhood Committee’s arrangements each municipal year.

Influence and Engagement
3.18

In addition to the exercise of its formal powers and duties Neighbourhood
Committees provide an effective mechanism for representing the interests of local
communities. As such they may be involved in the following activities (this is not
an exhaustive list):
a) Consultee on the development of council wide strategies and policies
b) To comment on proposed specifications for any Borough wide contracts where
service delivery is likely to impact on the Neighbourhood and to monitor
performance of the contractor where appropriate
c) To promote and support Local health provision, campaigns and GP
engagement and to promote, support and engage with public health services
to achieve greatest benefit to residents
d) To engage with partner and voluntary sector organisations on issue affecting
the Neighbourhood Committee area

A14

ANNEX 2

PART 3A RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS
(Changes to the existing provisions indicated by text struck through and in
red)

4.2

Planning Committee
Membership
4.2.1

Eleven Members of the Council

Functions
4.2.2

The Committee has concurrent reserve powers with Neighbourhood
Committees to enable it to deal with any planning application matter that an
individual Neighbourhood was unable to deal with for whatever reason (e.g.
where a substantial number of Neighbourhood Councillors have a prejudicial
interest in a matter).
1. The exercise of the Council’s Development Control responsibilities in
respect of the following categories of planning application. (Formal
consultation shall take place with Neighbourhood Committees prior to the
exercise of these powers in those circumstances where the Head of
Planning and Transport, in consultation with the Chair of the
Development Control Committee and the Chair of the relevant
Neighbourhood Committee, considers it appropriate)
a. In relation to development of such classes as the Development
Control Committee may from time to time determine shall be the
subject of recommendations to them including major developments
involving the construction of more than 10 new dwellings or more
than 1,000 sq metres of non-residential floorspace other than
applications under section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 for variation of conditions to an existing planning permission
where the substance of the changes are such that they would
otherwise be dealt with by Officers under delegated powers.
b. A major planning application for development which is contrary to
Council policy unless it is intended to refuse the application other
than applications under section 73 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 for variation of conditions to an existing planning permission
where the substance of the changes are such that they would
otherwise be dealt with by officers under delegated powers.
c. Any application which, in the view of the Head of Planning, is in the
public interest that it should be considered by the committee.
d. Where the Head of Planning considers that an application should be
refused where such a decision will result in the Council being made
liable for a payment of compensation, save in the case of

A15

development which would have been permitted development but for
an Article 4 direction.
1. To exercise the functions, powers and duties of the Council in relation to
Development Management and other related planning matters.
2. Consultation shall take place with the relevant Neighbourhood
Committee prior to the exercise of these powers in those circumstances
where the Assistant Director Strategic Planning and Infrastructure, in
consultation with the Chair of Planning Committee and the Chair of the
relevant Neighbourhood Committee, considers it appropriate to do so.
3. The Assistant Director Strategic Planning and Infrastructure may bring
presentations of developments, that are intended to be submitted as
Applications for Planning Permission but are in the pre-application stage
or such applications that are in the pre-determination stage, to the
Committee.
4. Recommendations to approve Applications for Planning Permission
where one of the following circumstances apply (Consultation shall take
place with the Chair of the Planning Committee prior to issuing a refusal
of an application for a Major Development):
a. Major Developments (as defined in the Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order), other than
applications under section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 for the variation of conditions on an existing planning
permission where the substance of the changes are such that they
would otherwise be dealt with under delegated powers;
b. The decision would not accord with the provisions of the
Development Plan and, in the opinion of the Assistant Director
Strategic Planning and Infrastructure, constitutes a Departure;
c. The Council is the applicant and either:
● it is for the development of land in its ownership that the Council
intends to grant to a third party any form of right or interest over
that land; or
● in any other case where there is a single Objection (as defined in
the responsibility for Functions for Neighbourhood Committees),
or the proposal does not comply with the Development Plan; or
● In any other case, there is a Call-In Request (as defined in the
responsibility for Functions for Neighbourhood Committees) and
the Chair, in consultation with the Assistant Director Strategic
Planning and Infrastructure, considers it appropriate for
Committee consideration.
d. The applicant has indicated on the 1APP Application Form that they
are:
● an elected member;
● a senior Officer of the Council (Service Head and above);
● a Political Group Officer;

A16

● an officer of the Local Planning Authority (see definition below);
or
● closely related to any of the above; and
● an Objection (as defined in the responsibility for Functions for
Neighbourhood Committees) has been received;
● the proposal does not fully comply with planning policy; or
● There has been a Call-In Request
(as defined in the
responsibility for Functions for Neighbourhood Committees).
● The term “Officer of the Local Planning Authority” means an officer
within the Council who, in the opinion of the Assistant Director Strategic
Planning and Infrastructure, is closely involved in the day-to-day work
of the Council’s planning function.
5. Any planning matter which the Assistant Director Strategic Planning and
Infrastructure wishes to refer to the Committee.
6. The Committee may also consider and respond to consultations from
external bodies, or the Strategic Committees, where the Chair, in
consultation with the Assistant Director Strategic Planning and
Infrastructure, considers it appropriate to do so.
7. The control of high hedges under Part 8 of the Anti-Social Behaviour Act
2003.
8. To receive performance monitoring information on matters within the
remit of the Committee.

A17

Annex 3
New Part 5D Planning Protocol and Procedure Rules for
Planning Committees
(Note: the following document REPLACES the current Part 5D in the
Constitution)
Planning Protocol
1

INTRODUCTION

1.1

This Protocol has been prepared using advice in the Local Government
Association’s guidance note – Probity in Planning: advice for Councillors and
Officers making planning decisions (December 2019).

Key Purpose of Planning
1.2

Planning has a positive and proactive role to play at the heart of local
government. It helps Councils to stimulate growth whilst looking after
important environmental areas. It can help to translate goals into action. It
balances social, economic and environmental needs to achieve sustainable
development.

1.3

The planning system works best when Councillors and officers involved in
planning understand their roles and responsibilities and the context and
constraints in which they operate.

1.4

Planning decisions are based on balancing competing interests and making
an informed judgement against a local and national policy framework. In doing
this, decision-makers need an ethos of decision-making in the wider public
interest on what can be controversial proposals.

2

AIM OF THE PROTOCOL

2.1

In today’s place-shaping context, early Councillor engagement is encouraged
to ensure that proposals for sustainable development can be harnessed to
produce the places that communities need. This guidance is intended to
reinforce Councillors’ community engagement role whilst maintaining good
standards of probity that minimizes the risk of legal challenge.

2.2

Planning decisions can be controversial. The risk of controversy and conflict
are heightened by the openness of a system which invites public opinion
before taking decisions and the legal nature of the development plan and
decision notices. Nevertheless, it is important that the decision-making
process is open and transparent.

2.3

One of the key aims of the planning system is to balance private interests in
the development of land against the wider public interest. In performing this
role, planning necessarily affects land and property interests, particularly the
financial value of landholdings and the quality of their settings. Opposing
views are often strongly held by those involved. Whilst Councillors must take

A18

account of these views, they should not favour any person, company, group or
locality, nor put themselves in a position where they may appear to be doing
so. It is important, therefore, that the Council makes planning decisions
affecting these interests openly, impartially, with sound judgement and for
justifiable reasons.
2.4

The process should leave no grounds for suggesting that those participating in
the decision were biased or that the decision itself was unlawful, irrational or
procedurally improper.

When the Protocol Applies
2.5

This Protocol applies to Councillors when they are involved in the planning
process. This includes, where applicable, when part of decision making
meetings of the Council, in exercising the functions of the planning authority or
when involved on less formal occasions, such as meetings with officers or
consultative meetings. It applies as equally to planning enforcement matters or
site-specific policy issues as it does to planning applications. If you have any
doubts about the application of this Protocol to your own circumstances you
should seek advice early from the Monitoring Officer, and preferably well
before any meeting takes place.

2.6

This Protocol applies to all meetings of the Council’s planning committees in
relation to the determination of planning applications and any other planning
business dealt with at these committees. When the term “Councillor” is used, it
means that the text is applicable to all Members of the Council. The term
“Planning Committee Councillor” means a Member or a substitute Member of
the Council’s Planning Committee or a Neighbourhood Committee dealing with
a planning matter.

Relationship to The Members' Code of Conduct
2.7

Councillors are reminded that this Protocol is designed primarily for Planning
Committee Councillors and Councillors who, for whatever reason, find
themselves involved in the planning process. It should not be read in isolation.
Whilst this Protocol interprets the Members’ Code of Conduct with respect to
planning matters, it is subordinate to the Members’ Code of Conduct and, in
the event of any inconsistencies arising between this Protocol and the
Members’ Code of Conduct, the latter shall prevail.

3

ROLE AND CONDUCT OF COUNCILLORS AND OFFICERS

General Roles of Councillors and Officers
3.1

Councillors and officers have different but complementary roles. Both serve
the public. Officers are responsible to the Council as a whole, whilst
Councillors are responsible to the electorate.

3.2

Officers are not appointed to serve any political group and therefore advise all
Councillors. Officers carry out the daily functions of the Council’s business in
accordance with Council or Committee decisions or under powers delegated
to them pursuant to the Constitution. Officers are governed by the Officers
Code of Conduct contained in the Constitution. In addition, planning officers,
who are Members of the Royal Town Planning Institute (RTPI), are subject to a

A19

professional code of conduct and breaches may be subject to disciplinary
action by the RTPI. Similarly, officers who are solicitors are subject to
regulation by The Solicitors Regulation Authority. Officers in other professions
will have corresponding codes.
3.3

The Localism Act 2011 sets out a duty for each local authority to promote and
maintain high standards of conduct by Councillors and to adopt a code of
conduct. The Members Code of Conduct in the Constitution is consistent with
the principles of selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness,
honesty and leadership. It embraces the standards central to the preservation
of an ethical approach to Council business, including the need to register and
disclose interests, as well as appropriate relationships with other Councillors,
staff and the public. The Council’s constitution sets down rules and orders
which govern the conduct of Council business.

Relationship Between Councillors and Officers
3.4

Mutual trust, respect and understanding between Councillors and officers are
the keys to achieving effective local government. A successful relationship can
only be based upon mutual trust and understanding of each other’s positions.
This relationship, and the trust that underpins it, must never be abused or
compromised.

3.5

Planning officers’ views, opinions and recommendations will be presented
based on their overriding obligation of professional independence, which may
on occasion be at odds with the views, opinions or decisions of the Committee
or its Councillors.

3.6

Councillors must not put pressure on officers to put forward a particular
recommendation or deal with a planning matter in a particular way. This does
not prevent a Councillor from asking questions or submitting views to an
officer. These views must be received in written form and be placed on the
planning file, so that they can be considered together with other material
planning considerations.

4

INTERESTS: REGISTRATION AND DISCLOSURE

4.1

A Councillor should refer to the Members’ Code of Conduct for assistance in
identifying Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or any Other Interests or seek
advice from the Monitoring Officer prior to attending a meeting. A failure to
properly register a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or to participate in
discussion or voting in a meeting on a matter in which a Councillor has a
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, are criminal offences. Ultimately, responsibility
for fulfilling the requirements rests with each Councillor.

4.2

The provisions of the 2011 Act seek to separate interests arising from the
personal and private interests of the Councillor from those arising from the
Councillor’s wider public life. Councillors should think about how a reasonable
member of the public, with full knowledge of all the relevant facts, would view
the matter when considering whether the Councillor’s involvement would be
appropriate.

A20

4.3

Appendix B has a flowchart produced by the LGA to assist Councils with this.
Appendix C gives examples of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests.

Registration of Interests
4.4

A Councillor must provide the Monitoring Officer with written details of relevant
interests within 28 days of their election or appointment to office. Any changes
to those interests must similarly be notified within 28 days of the Councillor
becoming aware of such changes.

Disclosure of Interests
4.5

It is always best to identify a potential interest early on. If a Councillor thinks
that they may have an interest in a matter to be discussed at a Planning
Committee, he or she should raise this with the Monitoring Officer as soon as
possible.

Personal and Pecuniary Interests
4.6

The Council’s Members’ Code includes provision for declaration of interests
that are wider than Disclosable Pecuniary Interests under the Localism Act
2011. Some personal interests may amount to pecuniary interests that impact
on members’ ability to participate and vote on that item.

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
4.7

Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest relating to an item
under discussion, the Councillor may not participate (or participate further) in
any discussion of the matter at the meeting or participate in any vote (or
further vote) on the matter. The Councillor should also withdraw from the
committee room. This means that a Councillor with a Disclosable Pecuniary
Interest is precluded from making representations orally to the committee or
from making representations on behalf of a party to the hearing.

4.8

A Councillor with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest can still present their views
to the committee through other means. For example, the Councillor can:
● make written representations on a planning application in their private
capacity – the existence and nature of the interest should be disclosed in
such representations and the Councillor should not seek preferential
consideration for their representations – such written representations
should be addressed to officers rather than to other Councillors;
● use a professional representative to make a representation on the
Councillor’s behalf in circumstances where the Councillor’s planning
application is under consideration; or
● arrange for another Councillor (eg, a fellow ward Councillor) to represent
the views of the Councillor’s constituents on matters in which the
Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.

4.9

Although a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest relating to an item under discussion
requires the withdrawal of the Councillor from the committee, in certain
circumstances, a dispensation can be sought from the Monitoring Officer to be
present for that item of business.

A21

4.10

Members should also have regard to the requirements regarding personal and
pecuniary interests under the Code since these may also require a declaration
of interest and may impact on members’ ability to participate in an item.

5

BIAS: PREDETERMINATION/PREDISPOSITION

5.1

In addition to being aware and taking appropriate action in relation to interests,
Planning Committee Councillors need to avoid any appearance of bias or of
having predetermined their views before taking a decision on a planning
application, on planning policies or on other planning matters, such as
enforcement. Avoidance of bias or predetermination or the appearance of bias
or predetermination is a principle of natural justice that the decision maker is
expected to adhere to.

5.2

The courts have sought to distinguish between situations which involve
predetermination or bias on the one hand and predisposition on the other. The
former is indicative of a “closed mind” and likely to leave the committee’s
decision susceptible to challenge by Judicial Review. The latter is the perfectly
normal process of someone making up their mind.

5.3

Clearly expressing an intention to vote in a particular way before a meeting
(predetermination) is different from where a Councillor makes it clear that,
although they have an initial view, they are willing to listen to all the material
considerations presented at the committee and keep an open mind before
deciding on how to exercise their vote (predisposition). The latter is
acceptable; the former is not and may result in a Court quashing such a
planning decision.

5.4

Section 25 of the 2011 Act provides that a Councillor should not be regarded
as having a closed mind simply because they previously did or said something
that, directly or indirectly, indicated what view they might take in relation to any
particular matter. This enacted the common-law position that a Councillor may
be predisposed on a matter before it comes to Committee, provided they
remain open to listening to all the arguments and potentially changing their
mind in the light of information presented at the meeting. Nevertheless, a
Councillor in this position will always be judged against an objective test of
whether the reasonable onlooker, with knowledge of the relevant facts, would
consider that the Councillor was biased.

5.5

For example, a Councillor who states, “Windfarms are blots on the landscape
and I will oppose each and every windfarm application that comes before the
committee” will be perceived very differently from a Councillor who states,
“Many people find windfarms ugly and noisy and I will need a lot of persuading
that any more windfarms should be allowed in our area”. The former has a
closed mind and is predetermined, whereas the latter is predisposed but is
maintaining an open mind.

5.6

This distinction is particularly important in the context of the Council’s practice
of facilitating presentations to Planning Committee by developers of schemes
at the pre-application stage. After these presentations, Planning Committee
Councillors question details of the development so that they can input into the
design development of these strategic developments. They will therefore
express views on aspects of the development (such as its external

A22

appearance, impact on neighbours or transport network implications) which
will display predisposition around these elements. What a Planning Committee
Councillor should not do at this pre-application stage is to express a firm view
on the development as a whole, as this could amount to predetermination.
Such a view should only be formed at the end of the process, when all the
material considerations are available to the Planning Committee Councillors to
consider and weigh up before finalising their view.
5.7

The following diagram is produced to help Councillors appreciate the range of
circumstances (the following is guidance only, any specific questions should
be raised with the Council’s Monitoring Officer) :
No view
Lawful

Predisposition

Predetermination
Unlawful
Bias

● Manifesto pledges/commitments
● Policy making and setting
● Clearly expressed intention to vote in
a particular way on an individual
application whatever the information
provided
● Membership of an organisation that
supports
or
opposes particular
developments or development types

Dealing with Lobbying
5.8

A Planning Committee Councillor who has been lobbied and wishes to support
their constituents or is a Ward Councillor and wishes to campaign for or
against a proposal, will need to consider whether this is likely to be regarded
as amounting to bias and going against the fair determination of the planning
application. If they have predetermined their position or have given that
impression, they should avoid being part of the decision-making body for that
application. A Planning Committee Councillor could speak at a Planning
Committee (in accordance with the Council’s public speaking procedures) on
behalf of their constituents, having declared their pre-determined position, but
could not take part in the planning decision.

5.9

Participation as a Planning Committee Councillor where a Councillor is or may
be perceived to be biased, in addition to the risk of a complaint against the
individual Councillor, also places the decision of the Committee at risk from
legal challenge. As such, if a Planning Committee Councillor considers that
they are or have given the impression that they are biased or predetermined
they must carefully consider whether it is appropriate for them to participate in
the matter.

A23

6

APPLICATIONS
SUBMITTED
COUNCILLORS OR OFFICERS

BY

THE

COUNCIL,

Applications Submitted by The Council
6.1

Proposals for a Council’s own development can give rise to suspicions of
impropriety. It is perfectly legitimate for such proposals to be submitted to and
determined by the Council. Proposals for a Council’s own development will be
treated no differently from any other application.

6.2

Certain Councillors may, through their other roles outside of a Planning
Committee (eg a Portfolio Holder), have been heavily committed to or involved
in a Council’s own development proposal. In such circumstances, when an
item comes to be considered at the Planning Committee, the Councillor
concerned, if they sit on the Committee, must consider whether they have an
interest or degree of involvement with the proposals that could give the
impression of bias. If in doubt, they are encouraged to seek advice from the
Monitoring Officer. The most appropriate course of action, if that is the case, is
that the Councillor concerned may address the Committee in the applicant’s
speaking slot (see the Meeting Procedure Rules for Planning Committees) but
does not take part in its consideration and determination. It is important that
the Councillor should restrict their address to the Committee to relevant
planning considerations rather than wider non-planning issues that are not
material to the determination of the application.

Applications Submitted by Councillors or Officers
6.3

It is perfectly legitimate for planning applications to be submitted by
Councillors and members of staff. However, it is vital to ensure that they are
handled in a way that gives no grounds for accusations of bias or
pre-determination.

6.4

If a councillor or an officer submits their own proposal to the Council which
they serve, they should take no part in its processing. A Councillor who acts
as an agent or representative for someone pursuing a planning matter with the
authority should also take no part in its processing.

6.5

The Responsibility for Functions for Planning Committee and Neighbourhood
Committees sets out the circumstances when applications submitted by
councillors and officers must be determined by Planning Committee.

6.6

The procedures to be followed in Committee in such circumstances are as
follows:
● The consideration in Committee of an application from a Councillor may be
considered a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest for that Councillor and he/she
will need to be mindful of their obligations in relation to Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests as set out in the Members’ Code of Conduct.
● If such a Councillor does not have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, they
may address the Committee as the applicant in accordance with the
Council’s public speaking procedures.
● If such a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest they may not
participate in the consideration of the matter and may therefore not speak

A24

on the matter. They would need to have a representative speak on their
behalf, unless they have a received a specific dispensation for this purpose
from the Monitoring Officer.
● The Planning Committee Councillors must consider whether the nature of
any relationship means that they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in
relation to the matter and if so, they may not participate in the
consideration of that matter.
6.7

The principle in the final bullet point also applies to an application submitted by
a member of staff when it is considered in Committee.

7

LOBBYING OF AND BY COUNCILLORS

7.1

Lobbying is a normal part of the planning process. Those who may be affected
by a planning decision, whether through an application, enforcement action, a
site allocation in a development plan or an emerging policy, will often seek to
influence it through an approach to their Ward Councillor or to a Councillor
sitting on a relevant committee.

7.2

As the Nolan Committee’s 1997 report stated: “It is essential for the proper
operation of the planning system that local concerns are adequately
ventilated. The most effective and suitable way that this can be done is
through the local elected representatives, the Councillors themselves”.

7.3

Lobbying, however, can lead to the impartiality and integrity of a Councillor
being called into question, unless care and common sense are exercised by
all the parties involved.

Lobbying of Councillors
7.4

A Planning Committee Councillor should explain to those lobbying or
attempting to lobby them that, whilst they can listen to what is said, it may
prejudice their impartiality and ability to participate in the Committee's decision
making if they are asked to express either an intention to vote one way or
another or such a firm point of view that it amounts to the same thing.
Planning Committee Councillors should ensure that it is made clear to any
lobbyists that they will only be able to reach a final decision on any planning
matter after they have heard all the relevant arguments and looked at the
relevant information during the sitting of the determining Committee.

7.5

Planning Committee Councillors should therefore:
● suggest to lobbyists that they write to the Planning Service in order that
their views can be included in the officer report prepared for determination
under delegated powers or by Committee;
● pass on any lobbying correspondence received (including plans, data,
correspondence etc in respect of an application) to the Planning Service
(development.management@kingston.gov.uk) as soon as practicably
possible so that it can be considered and included in the report on the
application;
● refer the matter to another ward member;
● remember that their overriding duty is to the whole community not just to
the residents and businesses within their ward and that they have a duty to

A25

make decisions impartially and should not improperly favour, or appear to
improperly favour, any person, company, group or locality;
● not accept gifts or hospitality from any person involved in or affected by a
planning proposal, but if a degree of hospitality is unavoidable (eg,
refreshments at a meeting), ensure that they comply with the provisions in
the Members’ Code of Conduct on gifts and hospitality; and
● inform the Monitoring Officer where they feel that they have been exposed
to undue or excessive lobbying or approaches (including inappropriate
offers of gifts or hospitality), who will in turn advise the appropriate officers
to follow the matter up where necessary.
7.6

Planning Committee Councillors should note that, subject to the requirements
to ensure that they comply with the Members’ Code of Conduct and the rules
regarding bias and pre-determination and ensure that they take appropriate
action in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, they are not precluded
from:
● listening or receiving viewpoints from residents or other interested parties;
● making comments to residents, interested parties, other Councillors or
appropriate officers, provided they do not consist of or amount to
predetermination and they make clear they are keeping an open mind;
● seeking information through appropriate channels; or
● being a vehicle for the expression of opinion or speaking at the meeting as
a Ward Councillor, provided they explain their actions at the start of the
meeting or item and make it clear that, having expressed the opinion or
ward/local view, they have not committed themselves to vote in
accordance with those views and will make up their own mind having
heard all the facts and listened to the debate.

7.7

In the interest of openness, Planning Committee Councillors should declare
any lobbying to which they have been subject.

7.8

It is very difficult to convey every nuance of these situations and to get the
balance right between the duty to be an active local representative and the
requirement when taking decisions on planning matters to take account of all
arguments in an open-minded way. It cannot be stressed too strongly,
however, that the striking of this balance is, ultimately, the responsibility of the
individual Councillor.

Lobbying by Councillors
7.9

Planning Committee Councillors should not become a Member of, lead or
represent a national or local organisation whose primary purpose is to lobby to
promote or oppose planning proposals. If a Councillor does, he/she may
appear to be biased. Whilst they may be able to address the Committee as a
Ward Councillor or an objector, they are not able to participate or vote on any
matter in respect of which they have such an interest, unless they have
received a specific dispensation for this purpose from the Monitoring Officer.

7.10

Planning Committee Councillors can join general groups which reflect their
areas of interest and which concentrate on issues beyond particular planning
proposals, but they should disclose a personal interest and consider whether
that also amounts to a pecuniary interest where that organisation has made

A26

representations on a particular proposal. Where a Planning Committee
Councillor is able to participate, they should make it clear to that organisation
and the Committee that they have reserved judgement and the independence
to make up their own mind on each separate proposal.
7.11

Councillors should not excessively lobby Planning Committee Councillors
regarding their concerns or views on a planning application, nor attempt to
persuade them that they should decide how to vote in advance of the meeting
at which any planning decision is to be taken.

7.12

Councillors should not put pressure on officers for a particular
recommendation or decision, and should not do anything which compromises,
is likely to compromise, or could be seen as compromising the officers’
impartiality or professional integrity. Nor should they request officers to speed
up or delay the determination or assessment of an application for their own
personal or political convenience or following lobbying by applicants,
agents/advisers, local residents or other interested parties.

7.13

Call-in requests, whereby in certain circumstances all Ward Councillors, a
Neighbourhood Committee Chair or a chair of a Conservation Area Advisory
Committee can request a proposal that would normally be determined under
officers’ delegated authority to be determined by Committee, require the
reasons for call-in to be recorded in writing and to refer solely to material
planning considerations. A Ward Councillor or the CAAC Chair must
additionally commit to attending the committee at which the application is to be
determined, to explain their concerns. If they fail to do so on two or more
occasions within a year, future call-in requests may not be accepted by the
Chair of Planning Committee in exercise of his/her powers under the
Responsibility for Functions. This is set out in the Meeting Procedure Rules for
Planning Committees.

7.14

Planning Committee Councillors should not decide or discuss how to vote on
any application at any sort of political group meeting or lobby any other
Planning Committee Councillor to do so.

7.15

As previously outlined, Councillors must always be mindful of their
responsibilities and duties under their Code of Conduct. These responsibilities
and duties apply equally to matters of lobbying as they do to the other issues
of probity explored elsewhere in this Protocol.

8

PRE-APPLICATION DISCUSSIONS

8.1

Discussions between a potential applicant and the Council prior to the
submission of an application can be of considerable benefit to both parties and
are encouraged by the National Planning Policy Framework. However, it would
be easy for such discussions to become, or to be seen by objectors to
become, part of a lobbying process on the part of the potential applicant. For
this reason, the Council have developed a pre-application process that
enables engagement at the pre-application stage.

8.2

For major strategic applications, the Council offers a service to potential
applicants, which includes presenting their schemes to the Council’s Planning
Committee. Details of this are set out in the Meeting Procedure Rules for

A27

Planning Committees. This is the way in which Planning Committee
Councillors engage with these schemes and there should therefore be no
need to attend any other meeting with potential applicants or their
agents/representatives.
8.3

For other application types, potential applicants may seek to meet Planning
Committee Councillors. For minor or household applications, these can be
treated as a form of lobbying and Councillors, including Planning Committee
Councillors, should follow the advice set out above in section 7.

8.4

Where an application is more substantial, but not subject to a pre-application
committee presentation, these meetings will be subject to the following
procedures:
● No meeting involving Planning Committee Councillors shall be convened
without the presence of a Council planning officer for the entire duration of
the meeting.
● Understand that such meetings will attract a fee and make sure the
applicant understands this.
● Both this Protocol and the Members’ Code of Conduct will apply when
attending such meetings.
● Any Planning Committee Councillor involved in such a meeting, who sits
on the Committee that subsequently considers any resulting application,
should declare their attendance at the meeting in the same way as
lobbying would be declared.
● Officers (and any Councillor, if present) should make it clear from the
outset that the discussion will not bind the Council to making a particular
decision and that any views expressed are personal and provisional.
● Any advice given should be consistent and in accordance with the
Development Plan and officers should agree, prior to any meeting, on a
consistent interpretation of Development Plan policies as applied to the
particular proposal.
● Councillors should not become drawn into any negotiations, which should
be done by officers to ensure that the authority’s position is co-ordinated.
● A contemporaneous note of the meeting should be prepared by the
planning officer attending and a copy sent to all parties for their comment.
● The final version of the note of the meeting will be placed on the planning
file and should a planning application subsequently be received, it will
thereby be open to public inspection.

8.5

Councillors should not seek to arrange meetings that would circumvent the
Council’s normal pre-application procedures, including the need to charge
applicants for such meetings.

8.6

In all cases, Planning Committee Councillors should not attend pre-application
meetings that are not organised through officers.

9

POST-SUBMISSION DISCUSSIONS

9.1

A Planning Committee Councillor should not usually be involved in
discussions with a developer or agent when a planning application has been
submitted and remains to be determined. Potentially, these discussions could

A28

be interpreted, particularly by objectors to a proposal, as an indicator of
predetermination or bias.
9.2

There are limited circumstances when Planning Committee Councillors may
legitimately engage in post-submission discussions. An example would be in
the case of a large-scale development, where it is desirable for there to be a
full understanding of the Council’s planning and economic objectives. Such
meetings will be organised by officers and run under the same procedural
rules as pre-application discussions.

9.3

If a Planning Committee Councillor is contacted by the applicant, their agent or
objectors, they should follow the rules on lobbying and consider whether it
would be prudent in the circumstances to make notes when contacted. A
Councillor should report to the Assistant Director Strategic Planning and
Infrastructure any significant contact with the applicant or other parties,
explaining the nature and purpose of the contact and their involvement, so that
it can be recorded on the planning file.

9.4

Planning Committee Councillors should not attend post-submission meetings
that are not organised through officers.

10

PLANNING APPEALS

10.1

Appeals against the planning decisions of the Council are heard by a Planning
Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State. Any hearing or inquiry will be
open to the public and Councillors are able to attend. Councillors are
encouraged to attend such hearings, as they can be a good learning
experience. This part of the Protocol is concerned with Councillors who wish
to actively participate in these appeals.

10.2

If a Councillor wishes to attend a public inquiry or informal hearing as a Ward
Councillor or as a member of the public, they are free to do so. It is strongly
recommended that they discuss their participation with the Assistant Director
Strategic Planning and Infrastructure to ensure that they are aware of the
process and that they do not act in a manner which compromises their
position as a Councillor, brings the Council into disrepute or puts the decision
made at risk of challenge.

10.3

A Planning Committee Councillor cannot attend an appeal on behalf of the
Council’s Planning Committee, even if they sat on the Committee that made
the decision, unless this is as part of the Council’s case as decided by the
Assistant Director Strategic Planning and Infrastructure. The decision of the
Committee will be documented in the minute and set out in the decision
notice. The planning officer will present the Council's case on its planning
merits, in accordance with the Committee's decision. The inspector is required
to determine the appeal on its planning merits and therefore all
representations by the Council will be so directed.

10.4

Where the appealed decision was contrary to the officer’s recommendation,
officers are generally able to present the Council's case in a satisfactory
manner. Where this may not be possible, the case will be presented by a
planning consultant employed by the Council.

A29

11

PLANNING ENFORCEMENT

11.1

It is perfectly legitimate for Councillors to bring to the attention of the Planning
Service suspected breaches of planning control so that they may be
investigated to see whether any action is possible or necessary. They should
bring these to the attention of the Planning Service via the online form: make a
formal complaint about a suspected breach of planning control.

11.2

The Council’s planning enforcement service operates to a priority system so
that those breaches that cause the most harm are dealt with first. This priority
system is designed to produce a fair and responsive enforcement service.
Councillors must not seek to have matters that they have raised given
preferential treatment merely because they are a Councillor.

12

COUNCILLOR TRAINING

12.1

Councillors may not participate in decision making at meetings of the Council’s
planning committees unless they have attended mandatory training. This will
be provided by the Council’s planning and legal services and will cover the
principles of planning and probity in planning.

12.2

Whilst all new Planning Committee Councillors (and new substitutes) must
attend this compulsory training before they can participate in the Council’s
planning committees, all other Planning Committee Councillors (and
substitutes) are also encouraged to attend so that they can ensure that they
keep up-to-date on these matters. All Planning Committee Councillors (and
substitutes) must attend this training at least every two years, or as
recommended individually or collectively by the Monitoring Officer.

12.3

All Planning Committee Councillors should endeavour to attend any other
specialised training sessions provided, since these will be designed to extend
their knowledge of planning law, policy, procedures, and good practice, which
will assist them in carrying out their role.

12.4

Training provided on planning related matters, whilst aimed at Planning
Committee Councillors, is open to any Councillor with an interest to attend.

A30

APPENDIX A:
FURTHER READING
The Localism Act 2011
www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/contents
National Planning Policy Framework, Ministry of Housing Communities and Local
Government, March 2019
www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
Planning Practice Guidance, Ministry of Housing Communities and Local
Government
www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
Openness and transparency on personal interests: guidance for councillors, Ministry
of Housing Communities and Local Government, March 2013
www.gov.uk/government/publications/openness-and-transparency-on-personal-intere
sts-guidance-for-councillors
Committee on Standards in Public Life (1995) First Report: Standards of Conduct in
Local Government in England, Scotland and Wales, Volume 1 Report
https://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20131205113448/http://www.archive.offici
al-documents.co.uk/document/cm28/2850/285002.pdf
Committee on Standards in Public Life (1997) Third Report: Standards of Conduct in
Local Government in England, Scotland and Wales, Volume 1 Report
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachm
ent_data/file/336864/3rdInquiryReport.pdf
Royal Town Planning Institute, Code of Professional Conduct, February 2016
https://i.emlfiles4.com/cmpdoc/6/2/1/9/5/1/files/59082_rtpi-code-of-professional-cond
uct-_feb_2016_new-cover-2017.pdf
Royal Town Planning Institute, Guidance on Probity for Professional Planners,
January 2020
www.rtpi.org.uk/media/3698387/Probity and the Professional Planner FINAL
VERSION.pdf
Probity in Planning: Advice for Councillors and Officers Making Planning Decisions,
Local Government Association, December 2019
www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/34.2_Probity_in_Planning_04.pdf

A31

APPENDIX B:
FLOWCHART OF COUNCILLOR INTERESTS

From Appendix 1 to the Local Government Association’s guidance, “Probity in
planning: advice for councillors and officers making planning decisions” (December
2019)

A32

APPENDIX C:
EXAMPLES OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS
Subject

Prescribed description

Employment, office, trade, Any employment, office, trade, profession or
profession or vacation
vocation carried on for profit or gain.
Sponsorship
Any payment or provision of any other financial
benefit (other than from the relevant authority) made
or provided within the relevant period in respect of
any expenses incurred by M in carrying out duties
as a member, or towards the election expenses of
M.
This includes any payment or financial benefit from
a trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union
and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.
Contracts
Any contract which is made between the relevant
person (or a body in which the relevant person has
a beneficial interest) and the relevant authority:
(a) under which goods or services are to be
provided or works are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.
Land
Any beneficial interest in land which is within the
area of the relevant authority.
Licences
Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy
land in the area of the relevant authority for a month
or longer.
Corporate tenancies
Any tenancy where (to Member’s knowledge):
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant
person has a beneficial interest.
Securities
Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:
(a) that body (to Member’s knowledge) has a place
of business or land in the area of the relevant
authority; and
(b) either:
(i) the total nominal value of the securities
exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more
than one class, the total nominal value of
the shares of any one class in which the
relevant person has a beneficial interest
exceeds one hundredth of the total issued
share capital of that class.

A33

Procedure Rules for Planning Committees
Introduction
1.1 This section sets out the operational procedure rules that are unique to
Planning Committee and the Neighbourhood Committees (including any
Planning Sub Committee) when they are dealing with planning matters. These
Procedure Rules relate to all types of planning committee unless specifically
stated otherwise.
1.2 When the term “Councillor” is used, it means that the text is applicable to all
elected Members of the Council. The term “Planning Committee Councillor”
means a Member or a substitute Member of the Council’s Planning Committee
or Neighbourhood Committee, including any co-opted members, when dealing
with a planning matter.
1.3 The determination of planning applications is a statutory administrative process
involving the application of national, strategic, local and neighbourhood level
planning policies within a legislative framework. Planning decisions can be
appealed by unsuccessful applicants and challenged by way of judicial review
by aggrieved parties. Complaints about maladministration and injustice can also
be made to the Local Government Ombudsman. To mitigate these risks, it is
vital that those involved in the determination of planning applications, and
particularly officers and Councillors, act reasonably and fairly to applicants,
supporters and objectors.
1.4 These Procedure Rules are designed to help ensure that this is achieved, but
they should not be read in isolation. Councillors need to also have regard to the
Planning Protocol within this Constitution. Whilst both these Procedure Rules
and the Planning Protocol interpret the Members’ Code of Conduct with respect
to planning matters, they are subordinate to the Members’ Code of Conduct
and, in the event of any inconsistencies arising between these Procedure Rules
and the Members’ Code of Conduct, the latter shall prevail.
Committee Agenda
1.5 The Committee’s agenda may contain the following sections for planning
reports:
1. Development presentations: to enable the Committee to receive
presentations on proposed developments, including when they are at the
pre-application stage. These items do not attract public speaking rights.
2. Applications for decision: these items attract public speaking rights.
3. Other planning matters: non-application matters that require Committee
consideration. These items do not attract public speaking rights.
1.6 Under the Responsibility for Functions for the Neighbourhood Committees, the
Chair of Planning Committee, in consultation with the Assistant Director
Strategic Planning and Infrastructure, must consider that it is appropriate for a
Neighbourhood Committee to consider a recommendation to approve an

A34

Application for Planning Permission. The circumstances where he/she would
not agree to this include:
● The referral person/body concerned have referred an excessive amount of
applications to committee; or
● A referral person/body did not attend the committee to address their
concerns on more than two occasions in any year; or
● The application clearly complies with relevant planning policies and there
are no grounds to refuse it.
1.7 Where the Chair of Planning Committee exercises this gatekeeping function this
will be reported to the next available Planning Committee for information, setting
out the reasons why the power was used in the particular case.
Pre-Committee Matters
1.8 The work of Planning Committee mainly comprises the determination of
planning applications. Delays in determining applications will jeopardise the
Council’s ability to meet national performance targets and impact adversely on
the interests of residents and affected applicants.
1.9 The Council is expected to decide all applications within statutory timescales.
Applications that are to be considered by Committee are included on the
agenda of the first available Committee after completion of the officer's report so
that a decision can be taken in the shortest possible time. For this reason,
Councillors should avoid requests for officers to speed up or delay the
determination or assessment of an application for their own personal or political
convenience or following lobbying by applicants, agents/advisers, residents or
other interested parties.
Pre-Committee Briefing
1.10 A further potential cause of delay is the deferral by committee of agenda items
for Councillors to receive further information. To minimise this risk Planning
Committee Councillors who consider that they need further information
(including the need for a site visit) or who have queries on an application should
contact the Assistant Director Strategic Planning and Infrastructure as soon as
possible before the meeting at which it will be considered.
1.11 Planning Committee Councillor involvement in this way can help identify issues
early on, help councillors lead on community issues, and help to make sure that
issues don’t come to light for the first time at committee. A ‘no surprises’ at
committee approach should be the aim.
Site Visits
1.12 It is advisable that Planning Committee Councillors are familiar with the sites of
the applications on the agenda to enable them to make informed decisions on
the planning applications before them.
1.13 The presumption will be that Planning Committee Councillors will be sufficiently
familiar with the agenda sites and their locations before the meeting. Councillors

A35

may already be familiar with them from their local knowledge or will visit one or
more of them in advance of the meeting. Advice on site visits by individual
Planning Committee Councillors is given below.
1.14 In addition, photographs of sites will be presented by officers at committee.
1.15 The Chair of Committee, in consultation with the Assistant Director Strategic
Planning and Infrastructure, will decide in advance of the meeting of a
Committee whether there is a need for the whole Committee to visit a site. Such
a visit will normally take place on the Monday before the scheduled Committee
meeting. The procedures for this are set out below.
By Planning Committee Councillors
1.16 Where a Planning Committee Councillor visits the site before the meeting, care
must be taken to ensure that they comply with the Planning Protocol in the
Constitution. Such visits should be carried out discreetly and the Councillor
should avoid making themselves known to the applicant or to neighbours.
Accordingly, he/she should not go onto private land, such as the application site
or a neighbouring property. The reason for this is that contact between a
Planning Committee Councillor and the applicant or a local resident could be
misinterpreted as lobbying and may create a suspicion of bias. Where such
contact is made, this should be declared in Committee, but it should not prevent
that Councillor from taking part in the consideration of that application, if he/she
has followed the advice in the Planning Protocol and acts in accordance with
the Members’ Code of Conduct.
By the Planning Committee
1.17 Where the Chair of the Committee, in consultation with the Assistant Director
Strategic Planning and Infrastructure, considers that a whole committee site
visit is necessary because a proposal appears to be particularly complex or it is
difficult to visualise from the plans, this will be made in advance of the
Committee meeting.
1.18 A request for a site visit cannot be made during the meeting of the committee.
1.19 The procedure for site visits by Committee shall be as follows:
● Only the Planning Committee Councillors and officers can attend a site visit.
● Arrangements for visits will not normally be publicised or made known to
applicants, agents or third parties, such as objectors.
● Where permission is needed to go onto land, contact will be made with the
owner by officers. The owner cannot take any part in the visit, other than to
facilitate access onto the site.
● The purpose of a site visit is to enable Planning Committee Councillors to
view the site and to better understand the impact of the development. The
Committee should not receive representations or debate issues during a site
visit. They can ask the Planning Officer present questions of clarification.
● The Planning Officer will make a note of the site visit and it will be placed on
the planning file.

A36

● Where new information emerges from a site visit that needs to be brought to
the attention of the Committee, this will be included in the Late Material
Report.
● Failure to attend a formal site visit shall not bar a Planning Committee
Councillor from voting on an item at the Committee meeting that considers it,
provided the Planning Committee Councillor is satisfied that he/she is
sufficiently familiar with the site and its location.
Reports and Recommendations
1.20 Each planning application for decision will be the subject of a written report with
an officer recommendation. Reports will be produced in a standard form
provided by the Assistant Director Strategic Planning and Infrastructure, and will
identify and analyse the material considerations, of which the Committee need
to take account when considering the application on its planning merits.
1.21 In addition to the written report, illustrative material will usually be presented at
the meeting to explain the scheme.
Recommendations
1.22 The recommendations in the reports to Committee will not set out the full
wording of planning conditions, reasons for refusal, informatives and planning
obligations, but are a summary of them. There are two reasons for this:
● It communicates the details of the recommended decision more clearly to
the Committee than many pages of detailed conditions or grounds; and
● There can sometimes be a delay before a decision is issued (such as
waiting for the signing of a legal agreement or views from the Mayor of
London and/or the National Planning Case Unit) and something may arise
which necessitates an amendment, a deletion or an addition.
1.23 The recommendation in reports to Committee therefore delegates to the
Assistant Director Strategic Planning and Infrastructure the communication of
the detailed wording of Committee decisions to applicants.
Late Material
1.24 It is common for material (such as late representations) to be received by the
Planning Service after the close of the agenda. Such material will be considered
and placed on the public planning file along with all the other papers for the
application, subject only to any public exclusion.
1.25 Where this material needs to be brought to the attention of the Committee, so
that it can be considered, it will be presented in the Late Material Report. It will
comprise a summary of what has been raised, in the same way as
representations and other submissions are summarised in the main Committee
report.
1.26 The practicality of producing such a report means there must be a cut-off point
for the receipt of late material by the Planning Service. This is noon the day
before the meeting. Generally, material received after this time will not be
reported to the Committee. The Assistant Director Strategic Planning and
Infrastructure has an absolute discretion in this regard.

A37

1.27 Material must not be distributed to Committee Councillors by members of the
public (including public speakers) or other Councillors during the meeting as
they may not be able to give proper consideration to the new information and
officers may not be able to check for accuracy or provide considered advice on
any material considerations arising.
1.28 The distribution of such material must be done in advance of the meeting by
either supplying it to the Planning Service, if it is written material and can be
included in the Late Material Report in line with the above timescales, or
otherwise by sending it direct to Councillors and the Planning Service in
advance of the meeting, again by noon of the day of Committee. The contact
details of Councillors are available from the Council’s website. Planning or
Democratic Services will not distribute material to Planning Committee
Councillors other than via the Late Material Report. Councillors who receive
material in advance of the committee should ensure that the Planning Service
have been sent a copy in time.
1.29 If material is not sent to the Planning Service in time and the officer advising the
committee has therefore not had the opportunity to examine the material in
advance of the committee meeting, the committee will be required to disregard
the material and not take it into account when making the decision.
Public Speaking
1.30 People can only address the committee on items that are on the Applications for
Decision part of the agenda. Other planning matters on an agenda (such as
Development Presentations) do not attract public speaking rights, except at the
discretion of the Chair.
Speaking slots
1.31 Subject always to the limitations below, for each planning application on the
“Applications for Decision” part of the agenda there are the following separate
categories of speaking slot, in the following order, allocated to:
1. Objectors who have registered a speaking slot (a “Registered Objector”)
2. The applicant or his/her agent/representative/supporter(s) in response to a
Registered Objector (a “Responding Applicant”)
3. A Ward Councillor, or a Councillor of a ward that adjoins the application site,
who has submitted a Call-In Request in accordance with the Responsibility
for Functions for the committee (a Call-In Member) who wishes to speak in
objection to planning application
4. A Ward Councillor, or a Councillor of a ward that adjoins the application site,
who has submitted a Call-In Request in accordance with the Responsibility
for Functions for the committee (a Call-In Member) who wishes to speak in
support of a planning application

A38

5. Any other Councillor who has submitted a request to address the Planning
Committee 24 hrs prior to commencement of the meeting4 who wishes to
speak in objection to planning application
6. Any other Councillor who has submitted a request to address the Planning
Committee 24 hrs prior to commencement of the meeting5 who wishes to
speak in support of a planning application
7. Any questions by Planning Committee Councillors of clarification to any
objectors (see Para 1.55)
8. Any questions by Planning Committee Councillors of clarification to the
applicant or his/her agent/representative/supporter(s) (see Para 1.55)
Limitations
1.32 Where an item is on the agenda only because of Objections received (including
from Ward Members or Conservation Area Advisory Committee Chairs/Vice
Chairs) and:
● no Registered Objector or a Call-In Member (if not a member of the Planning
Committee) has registered a speaking slot; or
● a Registered Objector or a Call-In Member (if not a member of Planning
Committee) has registered a speaking slot but nobody has registered their
attendance at the meeting in accordance with the procedures set out above;
● the item will be removed from the agenda and reverted to the Assistant
Director Strategic Planning and Infrastructure to determine under delegated
powers and will not be considered by the committee. In such circumstances,
any Responding Applicant would lose their right to address the Committee.
1.33 At the start of the committee the Chair will inform the meeting that such items
have been reverted to officers for determination.
Time limits
1.34 For each agenda item speaking is allowed for five minutes in total for each slot
identified in paragraph 1.31 . This time is to be shared by however many people
want to speak. Objectors will either decide amongst themselves on a
spokesperson or some other arrangement to share the time. The applicant will
decide who will speak in his/her slot.
1.35 Where Objectors cannot come to an agreement, the Chair will be notified of this
through the Democratic Services officer and the Chair will decide who will be
accorded the right to speak. Preference will normally be given to those who are
potentially most affected by the planning application and particularly those
4

For the avoidance of doubt, for the purposes of non Planning Committee members addressing the
Planning Committee, Rule 27 of Part 4a of the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames Constitution
shall be interpreted in accordance with the Planning Protocol and Procedure Rules
5
For the avoidance of doubt, for the purposes of non Planning Committee members addressing the
Planning Committee, Rule 27 of Part 4a of the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames Constitution
shall be interpreted in accordance with the Planning Protocol and Procedure Rules

A39

closest to the application site. The Chair may take advice from officers in
making this decision. In order to ensure the most efficient progress of
Committee business on the evening, the decision of the Chair will be final and
not be the subject of further debate, including in the Committee.
1.36 If more than one Call-In Member indicates that they wish to speak, they will
share the speaking slot equally, unless they agree to a different distribution of
the time. The Chair of the Planning Committee will be provided with details of
the arrangements for sharing the time prior to the commencement of the
meeting. The Chair will ensure the agreed distribution of time is followed.
1.37 If more than one non Planning Committee Member indicates that they wish to
speak, they will share the speaking slot equally unless they agree to a different
distribution of the time. The Chair of the Planning Committee will be provided
with details of the arrangements for sharing the time prior to the
commencement of the meeting. The Chair will ensure the agreed distribution of
time is followed.
1.38 If a Call-In Member wishes to speak but is unable to attend the Committee, they
may nominate a substitute Member to address the Committee on their behalf.
The Call-In member must inform the Chair of this in advance of the meeting.
1.39 The applicant will decide who will speak in his/her slot.
1.39 On multiple applications for the same site, Chairs have discretion to allocate
speaking time to each application in a way which enables points to be made on
applications as a package or singly taking account of the numbers of speakers,
views on the use of time and the practicalities of managing the meeting.
1.40 If the Chair, using his/her discretion, changes the time allocated to any speaker
slot, both all speaker slots will be offered the same length of time to speak. The
number of objectors or supporters should not, of itself, be a consideration for
increasing the length of the speaker slots.
How will people know they can speak?
1.41 Where a planning application is reported on the “Applications for Decision” part
of the agenda, all the individuals and organisations (including Councillors) that
responded to consultation/publicity/advertisement on the application will be
notified (by letter or email) that the application will be considered by Committee.
1.42 The Council will only notify the person who sends in a petition or a bundle of
pro-forma letters about the progress of an application. Where we receive a
petition that is not sent in by an individual, we will write to the first person on the
petition, if a clear address is included. Pro-forma letters that are received
individually will not be notified about the progress of an application. A pro-forma
letter is a letter or email that has been produced and distributed for people to
just sign (or reproduce and sign) and send to the Council.
1.43 The applicant (or his/her agent) will be sent a similar notification.

A40

1.44 The notification will explain the procedures regarding public speaking. Requests
to address Committee will not be accepted prior to the publication of the agenda
and these notifications.
Timescale for parties to notify that they want to speak
1.45 Objectors and Applicants wanting to address the Committee must notify the
Council by the date specified in the notification communication. Email or
telephone should be used for this purpose. Speakers should provide their name
and contact details (email address and/or phone number) so that any changes
to the arrangements can be communicated.
1.46 The Assistant Director Strategic Planning and Infrastructure, in consultation with
the Monitoring Officer and the Chair, has discretion to reduce the deadline for
registration in cases where applications are circulated within 5 clear days,
without prior notice having been given.
1.47 Objectors can only register if they have replied to the consultation, publicity or
advertisement of the application.
1.48 Applicants can only speak in response to registered objectors who address the
committee but also need to register in advance to reserve a slot. If there are
supporters wishing to address the committee, they must liaise with the
applicant. However, the slot is for the applicant to decide how to use.
1.49 If a public speaker needs special arrangements this must be brought to our
attention when registering a speaking slot so that arrangements can be made in
good time. Kingston Guildhall has facilities for wheelchair users, including level
access and toilets. The Chamber is fitted with a hearing loop. [CHECK]
Applications which have been deferred and are being reconsidered
1.50 Speakers can register to speak again when a deferred application is brought
back to Committee – it is in effect no different to any other application.
Registering attendance
1.51 On the night of the Committee meeting Registered Objectors and Responding
Applicants who have a registered speaking slot and Call-In Members (or their
substitutes) must register their attendance with the Committee Clerk at the
meeting at least 15 minutes before the meeting starts.
Order of speaking
1.52 The running order for each committee item is set out below under Committee
running order. The order of public speaking will be Registered Objectors
followed by a Responding Applicant followed by Call-In Members.
Speaking
1.53 All those involved in public speaking are restricted to an oral presentation only.
The officers’ presentation is therefore not available for use by public speakers.
1.54 Following the completion of a speaker’s address to the Committee, that speaker
shall take no further part in the proceedings of the meeting, unless permitted to
do so by the Chair of the Committee.

A41

1.55 Planning Committee Councillors may, through the Chair, ask questions of
clarification following the completion of public speaking and the officer
introduction/presentation. It is for the Chair to decide who should answer the
question.
1.56 See the procedures above (Late Material) for the rules around the distribution of
material to members of committee.
Additional considerations for Councillors
1.57 When a Councillor addresses the Committee in accordance with paragraph
1.31 of these Procedure Rules they must:
● declare, before making their speech, details of any material contact with the
applicant, agent, adviser, neighbour, objector or other interested party and
whether the speech is made on behalf of such person(s) or any other
interest;
● sit separately from Planning Committee Councillors, to demonstrate clearly
that he/she is not taking part in the discussion, consideration or vote; and
● not communicate in any way with Planning Committee Councillors or pass
papers or documents to them during the meeting.
1.58 Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, the Councillor may
only address the Committee on any matter in which they have such an interest
if they have been granted a dispensation by the Monitoring Officer for this
purpose. See the Planning Protocol for further advice on Interests in the context
of planning matters.
Chair’s discretion
1.59 At the discretion of the Chair, such as in the interests of natural justice or in
exceptional circumstances, the public speaking procedures may be varied. The
reasons for any such variation shall be recorded in the minutes.
Committee Running-Order
1.60 The reports under each section of the agenda will be considered in the following
way.
Developer Presentations
1.61 The procedure for considering each item shall be as follows:
● The Assistant Director Strategic Planning and Infrastructure, or his/her
representative, will introduce the main issues;
● The developer will present their scheme for no longer than 15 minutes
unless the Chair, exercising his/her discretion, has allowed a longer period;
● Through the Chair, Committee Councillors ask questions of the developer;
and
● The Assistant Director Strategic Planning and Infrastructure, or his/her
representative, will summarise the issues raised by the Committee which will
form the minute for the item.

A42

Applications for Decision
1.62 The procedure for considering applications where there are public speakers
shall be as follows:
1. The Assistant Director Strategic Planning and Infrastructure, or his/her
representative, will introduce the development the subject of the application;
2. Public speaking (in accordance with the above procedures) will take place;
3. The Assistant Director Strategic Planning and Infrastructure, or his/her
representative, will present the material planning considerations and
address, where necessary, any issues raised during public speaking; and
4. The Committee will consider the item and reach a decision.
1.63 The procedure for considering applications where there are no public speakers
shall be as follows:
1. If requested by the Chair, the Assistant Director Strategic Planning and
Infrastructure, or his/her representative, will present the main issues; and
2. The Committee will consider the item and reach a decision.
Other Planning Matters
1.64 The procedure for considering any item shall be as follows:
● If requested by the Chair, the Assistant Director Strategic Planning and
Infrastructure, or his/her representative, will present the main issues; and
● The Committee will consider the item and, if required, reach a decision.
Decision Making
1.65 In coming to a decision on a planning application, a Planning Committee
Councillor must.
● Come to meetings with an open mind.
● Comply with these Procedure Rules.
● Not allow anyone (except officers, other Planning Committee Councillors
and public speakers when they are addressing the Committee) to
communicate with you (orally, electronically, in writing or by any other
means) during the Committee's proceedings as this may give the
appearance of bias. For the same reason, it is good practice to avoid such
contact in the period before the meeting starts and when it ends.
● Consider the advice that planning, legal or other officers give the Committee
in respect of the recommendation, any proposed amendment to it or on any
other matter.
● Comply with section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004 and always make decisions in accordance with the development plan
unless there are good and demonstrable planning reasons to come to a
different decision.
● Come to a decision only after due consideration of all the information
reasonably required to base a decision upon. This will include the local

A43

information that Planning Committee Councillors are uniquely placed to
access, but always remembering to take decisions on planning grounds
alone.
● Raise any queries you may have on an application with the Assistant
Director Strategic Planning and Infrastructure prior to the meeting, including
the need for additional information – a ‘no surprises’ at committee approach
should be the aim.
● If you feel that there is insufficient time to digest new information or that
there is insufficient information before you, seek an adjournment to allow
these concerns to be addressed.
● Make sure that if you are proposing, seconding or supporting a decision
contrary to the officer’s recommendation or the Development Plan, that you
clearly identify and understand the planning reasons leading to this
conclusion and that you consider any advice planning, legal or other advice
officers give you. Your reasons must be given prior to the vote and be
recorded. Be aware that you may have to justify the resulting decision by
giving evidence in the event of any challenge.
Attendance
1.66 Where a decision is made on an agenda item, to be able to vote a Planning
Committee Councillor must be present throughout the whole of the Committee’s
consideration of that item, including the officer introduction/presentation and any
public speaking. Any dispute as to whether the Committee Councillor in
question should be permitted to vote shall be decided by the Chair, in
consultation with the legal officer and other officers as necessary.
1.67 The Chair should be prepared to consider adjourning briefly to allow any
necessary comfort breaks during meetings.
1.68 The need to be present throughout the item does not apply to Development
Presentations because no decisions are being made as they are part of an
informal pre-application process, rather than the formal planning application
decision making process.
Voting Procedures
1.69 The Chair will bring the Committee to a vote when he/she considers that there
has been sufficient debate of an item.
1.70 The Committee will vote on the recommendations set out in the report. Prior to
commencing the debate i.e. moving to Para 1.62 (4) or 1.63 (2) of the
Committee Running Order (see Para 1.60) the Chair of the Committee will
move the recommendation as set out in the report and seek a seconder. ,
unless a motion is made and seconded to defer or adjourn consideration of an
item (for example for further information/advice).
1.71 If a Committee Member wishes to amend the recommendation (such as an
additional condition or a variation to a condition) they will need to move this,
have it seconded and agreed, prior to any vote on the recommendation.
1.72 The Committee must consider carefully any advice officers give on a proposed
amendment. If the Assistant Director Strategic Planning and Infrastructure (or

A44

his/her representative) consider that he/she is unable to give that advice
immediately, further consideration of the matter will be suspended and the
agenda item will be adjourned so that the Assistant Director Strategic Planning
and Infrastructure can bring a report to the next available Committee setting out
his/her advice. If legal advice is required, this may need to be on the private
business part of the agenda. In such cases, it will be important that the Chair
communicates clearly to the meeting that a decision on the application has not
been made and that it will be considered further at a future Committee meeting.
1.73 For the vote on the recommendation (or an amendment to the recommendation)
to be successful there needs to be a majority vote in favour of it. In the event of
an equality of votes, the Chair has an additional unconstrained casting vote.
This can be exercised irrespective of whether the Chair voted.
Decisions contrary to the recommendation
1.74 A motion to go against the recommendation must always be considered after a
vote on the recommendation (or an amended recommendation) has taken
place, so that officers are clear that the Committee may be minded to go
against the recommendation and can prepare their advice accordingly.
1.75 When the recommendation is not supported, a new motion to either grant or
refuse the application must be moved and seconded. However, before a new
motion is proposed, the Committee must first receive advice from the Assistant
Director Strategic Planning and Infrastructure, or his/her representative, as to
what form a new motion could take. That advice will be based upon the material
planning considerations that have been discussed by the Committee and
whether there are grounds that could be defended in the event of an appeal or
legal challenge.
1.76 The solicitor advising the Committee may be called upon as necessary to give
advice on legal matters but cannot advise the Committee on planning matters.
1.77 Once the Committee has received the advice of the Assistant Director Strategic
Planning and Infrastructure, or his/her representative, they can proceed to a
vote. In such circumstances, the Lawyers in Local Government Model Council
Planning Code and Protocol (2013 update) gives the following useful advice,
under the heading “Decision-making”: A detailed minute of the Committee’s
reasons to go against the officer’s recommendation, which as a matter of best
practice, following Dover District Council v CPRE Kent [2017] in the UK
Supreme Court, should be clear and convincing, shall be made and a copy
placed on the application file.
“Do make sure that if you are proposing, seconding or supporting a decision
contrary to officer recommendations or the development plan that you clearly
identify and understand the planning reasons leading to this conclusion /
decision. These reasons must be given prior to the vote and be recorded. Be
aware that you may have to justify the resulting decision by giving evidence in
the event of any challenge.” (their emphasis)
1.78 If the Assistant Director Strategic Planning and Infrastructure (or his/her
representative) consider that he/she is unable to give that advice immediately,
the procedure outlined in paragraph [1.75] above must be followed. In such

A45

cases, it will be important that the Chair communicates clearly to the meeting
that a decision on the application has not been made and that it will be
considered further at a future meeting of the Committee.
Decisions contrary to the Development Plan
1.79 The law requires that where the Development Plan is relevant, decisions must
be taken in accordance with it unless there are good planning reasons to do
otherwise6. If a Committee intends to approve an application which does not
accord with the provisions of the Development Plan, the material considerations
must be clearly identified and the justification for overriding the Development
Plan clearly demonstrated. The application must be advertised in accordance
with Article 15 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure) Order 2015 and, depending upon the type of development
proposed, may also have to be referred to the Secretary of State for Housing,
Communities and Local Government (National Planning Case Unit). Such a
decision is referred to as a Departure.
1.80 If the recommendation in the officer report constitutes a Departure, the
justification will be included in that report and the necessary advertisement
would have been undertaken.
1.81 If the Committee is minded to make a decision which would be contrary to the
officer recommendation and that decision (in the opinion of the Assistant
Director Strategic Planning and Infrastructure) would constitute a Departure,
such a motion may only contain the Committee’s initial view and must be
subject to a further report detailing the planning issues raised by such a
decision. Further consideration of the matter will be suspended to a future
meeting of the Committee when officers will present a report setting out the
proposed new position and explaining the implications of the decision. If legal
advice is required, this may need to be on the private business part of the
agenda. Any necessary advertisement of the application will also be
undertaken. In such cases, it will be important that the Chair communicates
clearly to the meeting that a decision on the application has not been made and
that it will be considered further at a future meeting of the Committee.
1.82 In the case of Neighbourhood Committees, the further consideration of the
matter will be at Planning Committee because of the restriction on
Neighbourhood Committees from taking decisions that conflict with Council
policy.
1.83 If, having considered the report, the Committee decides to determine the
application contrary to the provisions of the Development Plan, the Lawyers in
Local Government Model Council Planning Code and Protocol (2013 update)
gives the following useful advice, under the heading “Decision-making”
“Do make sure that if you are proposing, seconding or supporting a decision
contrary to officer recommendations or the development plan that you clearly
identify and understand the planning reasons leading to this conclusion /
decision. These reasons must be given prior to the vote and be recorded. Be
6

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and section 70(2) of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990

A46

aware that you may have to justify the resulting decision by giving evidence in
the event of any challenge.” (their emphasis)
Delegation to Officers
1.84 The recommendation in reports to Committee delegates to the Assistant
Director Strategic Planning and Infrastructure the communication of the detailed
wording of Committee decisions to applicants. For the avoidance of doubt,
where Committee determines an item on an agenda:
● in the event of amendments being made to an officer recommendation by
the Committee or if the Committee makes a decision which is not in
accordance with the officer recommendation, the task of formalising the
wording of those changes (including the detailed wording of reasons for
going against the officer recommendation) within the substantive nature of
the Committee decision is for the Assistant Director Strategic Planning and
Infrastructure;
● the Assistant Director Strategic Planning and Infrastructure can, in
consultation with the relevant Chair of the committee, make changes to the
wording of the Committee decision (such as to delete, vary or add
conditions, informatives, planning obligations or reasons for the decision)
and to accept changes to the application prior to the decision being
actioned, provided that the Assistant Director Strategic Planning and
Infrastructure is satisfied that any such changes could not reasonably be
regarded as deviating from the overall principle of the decision reached by
the Committee nor that such changes could reasonably have led to a
different decision having been reached by the Committee.
Minutes
1.85 The minutes of the meeting will record:
●
●
●
●

The Councillors and officers present at the meeting;
Any disclosures of interest made by Councillors or officers;
For each item, the identity of any public speakers and the decision;
Where a decision goes against the recommendation, the reason(s) for doing
so;
● Where a decision is deferred, the reason(s) for doing so;
● The use of the Chair’s discretion to depart from Standing Orders or any
other Constitutional rules or procedures, and the reason(s) for doing so; and
● The time the meeting finished.

Response and Recovery Committee

B1

Appendix B

25 March 2021
Review of Constitutional Arrangements
Executive Director, Corporate and Communities
Relevant Portfolio Holder: Communities and Engagement
Purpose of Report
To set out proposals for the streamlining of the Strategic Committee structure and a
number of minor amendments to the Council’s constitutional arrangements and Contract
Regulations.
Recommendation(s)
The Committee is asked to RECOMMEND to Council that:
1.

the Corporate and Resources, Place and People Strategic Committees be
established with the membership arrangements set out in paragraphs 22-26 and
the terms of reference at Annex 1 to replace the current Strategic Committees and
the temporary Response and Recovery Committee and Culture, Housing, Planning
and Environment Committee with effect from the commencement of the 2021/22
Municipal Year;

2.

the rules of political proportionality be disapplied in respect of the seats allocated
on the Strategic Committees as set out in paragraph 24.*

3.

the timetable of meetings for the 2021/22 Municipal Year, as set out at Annex 2, be
approved.

4.

the Corporate Head of Democratic and Electoral Services, in consultation with the
relevant Committee Chairs, be authorised to make any amendments to the
timetable of meetings as prove to be necessary during the course of the Municipal
Year;

5.

the proposals set out at Annexes 4 and 5 for changes to the constitutional
arrangements and Contract Regulations be approved with effect from the
commencement of the 2021/22 Municipal Year; and

6.

the Monitoring Officer be authorised to make any further consequential minor
changes arising from the proposals set out above as may be required, in
consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Community and Engagement

*In order to give effect to item (2) above no Member at Council must vote against it

Benefits to the Community:
The changes proposed in this report are designed to improve the quality and
effectiveness of decision making and promote good corporate governance, thereby
enabling the Council to provide clear leadership to the community in partnership with
citizens, businesses and other organisations.

B2

Key Points
A.

This report sets out proposals for the streamlining of the Committee’s Strategic
Committee structure, recommending a reduction in the number of Committees from
five to three. This is designed to better fit current and anticipated volumes of
business, enhance the quality and effectiveness of the decision making process
and increase the capacity of Members through the release of time for casework and
training and development activities. It would also enable both Members and Officers
to better focus on the achievement of corporate priorities.

B.

The three Committees, which would replace the established Strategic Committees
and the temporary Committees operating during the Covid-19 pandemic, are
broadly based on the separation of functions into Place and People based services
together with a Committee with oversight of corporate resources and policy
direction. It is proposed that 13 Members serve on each Committee rather than 11
at present so as to provide a total of 39 seats, thereby ensuring that almost all
Members who might wish to serve on a Strategic Committee could do so while still
achieving a reduction from the present total of 55 seats. The political proportionality
requirements can be waived to provide sufficient seats to the Conservative Group
with a view to all Opposition Spokespersons in receipt of a Special Responsibility
Allowance being able to sit on the relevant Committee and also to enable a seat to
be allocated to the Member representing the Green Party.

C.

A calendar of meetings for the 2021/22 Municipal Year based on these new
arrangements is set out for recommendation to Council. Except for the reduction in
Strategic Committees it is broadly similar to the arrangements agreed for 2019/20
which was the last time meetings were held in person.

D.

The report also sets out a number of proposed changes to the Council’s
constitutional arrangements, including the Meeting Procedure Rules and Call-In
Procedure Rules as well as a recommendation that the State of the Borough
meeting no longer be a formal meeting of Council. A refresh of the Contract
Regulations to ensure alignment with amendments to the Public Procurement
Regulations following the withdrawal of the UK from the EU is also reported.

STREAMLINING OF STRATEGIC COMMITTEES
Context
1.

The Council was one of the first in the country to take advantage of the
opportunity offered by the Localism Act 2011 to revert from Executive
governance structures to a traditional Committee system. In May 2012 the single
party Executive was disestablished and its functions inherited by three Strategic
Committees with politically balanced cross party membership.

2.

Since that time there have been a series of changes to the number, composition
and remit of the Strategic Committees. The three original Committees in 2012/13
were increased to four in 2014/15 and to five in 2018/19. (Temporary
arrangements are in place in the current Municipal Year due to the Covid-19
pandemic)

3.

This growth in the number of Strategic Committees has been accompanied by a
reduction in the volume of business transacted. The number of substantive items

B3
coming forward to Strategic Committees for determination has fallen from around
100-120 per year up to 2016/17 to 75 in 2019/20 (including anticipated reports for
the March/April 2020 cycle of meetings which was cancelled due to the Covid
emergency). This has resulted in the average number of reports submitted to
each meeting reducing from between five to seven to fewer than three.

4.

The sustained reduction in the business transacted at Committee reflects the
effectiveness of moves to streamline the decision making process. A number of
items will also have been diverted to Neighbourhood Committees as a
consequence of the strengthening of their role and functions in 2018.

5.

The increase in the number of Strategic Committees has placed an additional
demand on Members. The number of seats on Strategic Committees to be filled
has increased over time from 41 in 2012/13 (when the three Committees had
between 13 -15 Members) to 55 today (11 Members per Committee). This helps
to contribute to the pressures identified in a 2018 survey of all Kingston Members
which found that on average Councillors devote 99 hours a month (23 hours a
week) to Council business including 35 hours a month attending meetings
(including informal meetings) and 26.5 hours in preparation for meetings. At the
time Members typically sat on five formal Committees each, with nine Members
serving on seven or more Committees.

6.

Feedback from Members indicated their role on the Council had an impact on
their personal and professional lives due to the volume of work involved and a
number had reduced the amount of time and responsibility at their full time jobs
and found balancing child care / social life difficult due to both daytime/evening
meetings and weekend working.

7.

These pressures risk potentially discouraging residents with other commitments
such as full time jobs and young families from standing as a Councillor in future.
Over time this would lead to the Council being less representative of the
communities it serves. The pressure on the time of individual Members and the
current schedule of formal Committee meetings, which provides for very few
completely free midweek evenings, also create barriers to Member training and
development with only limited capacity for participation in briefings, workshops
and other activities.

8.

The considerable corporate resource which the trend towards more Strategic
Committees and more meetings consumes also has an impact on Officers.
Opportunity costs are incurred not only in the preparation for and attendance at
the formal Committee meetings by senior managers and Democratic Services,
Finance and other staff but also in their involvement in a vast range of
preparatory activity including pre meetings, briefings, agenda compilation and
meeting set up. The organisational impact of Strategic Committees tends to be
greater than that of any other meeting type because the nature of the business
they transact requires a greater level of input from senior managers.

9.

The opportunity has therefore been taken to examine whether there is scope to
adjust the Strategic Committee structure in order to better reflect the business
being channelled through it, create organisational efficiencies, reduce the burden
on elected Members and enhance the fit with the revised senior management
and departmental structure introduced in February 2020.

Proposal

B4

10.

Whilst it is technically possible for all non regulatory business to be dealt with by
a single Committee somewhat similar in form (though with cross party
membership) to a traditional Cabinet in Executive authorities this is not
recommended because there would be insufficient seats to provide many
backbench Members with a role in Strategic Committee decision making. As a
consequence the expertise and local insight they might otherwise be able to
bring to the decision making process would be lost to the Council which would be
detrimental to the quality of decision making.

11.

Conversely, the frequency with which the Committee would need to meet (at
least monthly), and the likely length of many of those meetings, would place a
disproportionate burden on those Councillors who sat on it, which would
negatively affect work/life balance considerations. There would also be little
opportunity for backbench Members on the Committee to establish any depth of
specialist knowledge of a particular service area, making it more difficult to hold
Officers and Portfolio Holders to account, nor to provide individual Portfolio
Holders with Committee Chair or Co-Chair roles which reflect their service remits.

12.

Many of these issues would also apply, albeit to a lesser degree, with respect to
a two Committee structure whilst the maintenance of four Committees would be
difficult to justify on the volume of business - each would be likely to have to deal
with an average of only around four items per meeting, fewer than might be
considered optimum.

13.

It is therefore recommended that the Council operates three Strategic
Committees, the same number currently proving sufficient to transact business
under the interim arrangements introduced during the Covid-19 pandemic. The
Committees would be broadly based on the separation of functions into Place
and People based services together with a Committee with oversight of corporate
resources and policy direction. It is proposed that they therefore be known as;
● Corporate & Resources Committee
● Place Committee
● People Committee

14.

The new Strategic Committees will be accompanied by clear public messaging to
ensure their respective functions can be readily understood by residents in order
to maximise transparency and accountability.

15.

The new Committees would replace both the established Strategic Committees
and the temporary Response and Recovery and Culture, Housing, Planning and
Environment Committees which have been operating during the pandemic.

Functions
16.

The proposed allocation of functions is set out at Annex 1. It provides each
Strategic Committee with clear and direct reporting relationships with two
Executive Directors to further promote accountability. Under the present
arrangements Committee remits and Departmental functions are not always
aligned which risks creating organisational inefficiencies.

B5

Frequency of Meetings
17.

On the basis of the customary schedule of five meetings each per Municipal Year
the proposal would reduce the overall number of Strategic Committee meetings
scheduled each year from between 25-27 to 15.

18.

This is a sustainable fit for current and anticipated volumes of business. On
average each Committee could be expected to deal with around 5-6 reports per
meeting, similar to the position up to 2017. Whilst the flow of business during the
current Municipal Year may not be typical because of the pandemic, the three
Committees currently in operation on an emergency basis have been capable of
comfortably accommodating all the business placed before them. It is not
anticipated that the temporary monthly cycle of Response and Recovery
Committee meetings would need to be replicated in the new permanent
arrangements.

19.

A calendar of meetings for the 2021/22 Municipal Year based on these new
arrangements is attached at Annex 2. Except for the reduction in Strategic
Committees it is broadly similar to the arrangements agreed for 2019/20 which
was the last time meetings were held in the physical world. The schedule
sequences meetings to facilitate the reporting linkages between Committees and
other bodies to try and minimise delay in decision making.

20.

The proposal would deliver significant organisational benefit, freeing up
considerable Member time for casework and creating additional opportunities for
Member training and development activities. It would also enable both Members
and Officers to better focus on the achievement of corporate priorities.

21.

The revised arrangements are also likely to contribute towards an improvement
in the quality of decision making and provide for more flexible and engaging
forms of Member involvement in briefings than can be delivered within formal
Committee meetings which are within the public domain and constrained by
statutory and constitutional procedures.

Membership
22.

It is proposed that 13 Members serve on each Committee rather than 11 at
present so as to provide a total of 39 seats, thereby ensuring that almost all
Members who might wish to serve on a Strategic Committee could do so while
still achieving a significant reduction from the present total of 55 seats. The
Strategic Committees form only one part of the Council’s Committee structure
and Neighbourhood and Regulatory Committees would continue to offer multiple
opportunities for all Members to develop and share expertise and remain directly
engaged in the decision making process.

23.

Taking into account the political proportionality calculations the Liberal Democrat
Group would currently be entitled to 32 of the seats and the Conservative Group
seven. This would normally result in 11 seats being allocated to the
Administration and two to the Opposition on two Strategic Committees and a
10/3 split on the third. However, it is proposed to make a total of nine seats on
the Strategic Committee available to the Conservative Group in order to ensure
that the Leader of the Opposition and all Opposition Spokespersons appointed to

B6
shadow Portfolio Holders and therefore in receipt of Special Responsibility
Allowances have the opportunity to sit on the relevant Committee. With a handful
of exceptions the division of Portfolio Holder remits across the Committees falls
as follows:

● Corporate & Resources - Leader/Finance & Commissioning/ Communities
and Engagement
● Place - Environment & Sustainable Transport/Planning Policy &
Culture/Housing & Public Health/Business & Leisure
● People - Children's Services/Adult Social Care
24.

On this basis, and providing for a continuation of the existing practice of
allocating a seat on a Strategic Committee to the Member representing the
Green Party, the actual allocation would thus be:

Liberal
Democrat

Conservative

Green

Total

Corporate &
Resources

9

3

1

13

Place

9

4

13

People

11

2

13

25.

Since this will result in an overallocation to the Conservative Group (24 seats
across the Committees to which proportionality applies rather than the 22 to
which the Group would statutorily be entitled) and the Green Party Member
(three seats rather than two) and a corresponding under representation of the
Liberal Democrat Group, Council will be required to agree, without dissent, to the
disapplication of the rules governing political proportionality set out in the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989. The overall proportionality calculation which
would apply if this waiver is agreed is set out at Annex 3.

26.

The following Advisory Members are currently appointed to Strategic Committees
and will initially transfer to the relevant Committee in the amended structure.
● People Committee - 2 GPs to advise in childrens and adults health (non
voting) and 2 Church representatives with voting rights in respect of
education matters (4 in total).
● Place Committee - Representatives of the Sheltered Housing Panel,
Leaseholders Forum, Private Sector Landlords Forum, Residents
Associations (must be a tenant of the Council) and the Registered Providers
Forum (5 in total, all non voting)

27.

Each of the new Strategic Committees will subsequently need to give
consideration to the appropriate Advisory Member representation over the longer
term within the context of existing alternative engagement/consultation
mechanisms. The Church representatives fulfill a statutory role but all of the other
Advisory Member appointments are discretionary.

28.

B7
Individual appointments to the new Committees will be confirmed at the Annual
Meeting of Council on 18 May.

REVIEW OF CONSTITUTIONAL ARRANGEMENTS
29.

The Constitution sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made and
the procedures which are followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent
and accountable to local people. The Constitution must contain:
(a) the Council's standing orders/procedure rules;
(b) the Members' Code of Conduct;
(c) such information as the Secretary of State may direct;
(d) such other information (if any) as the authority considers appropriate.

30.

The Council has a legal duty to publish and keep its Constitution up to date. At its
meeting on 15 October 2019 the Council approved a series of changes to the
Constitution in order to enhance decision making, including modernisation of the
procedures regarding public participation. At the same time it was agreed that the
Community and Engagement Committee (whose functions are currently being
undertaken by this temporary Committee) should undertake an annual review of
the documents which comprise the Constitution to ensure that it remains
consistent with best practice and takes account of changes in the statutory
framework. This is designed to strengthen the robustness of the Council’s
governance arrangements and mitigate the risk of any legal challenge to its
decisions.

31.

The outcome of that annual review was originally published as part of the agenda
for the meeting of the Community and Engagement Committee that was due to
be held on 24th March 2020 but subsequently cancelled due to the Covid-19
pandemic.

32.

The amendments proposed at that time have been revisited and are now set out
in full at Annex 4 for approval, together with a number of additional changes
which have been subsequently identified. The amendments are, for the most
part, relatively minor in nature and seek merely to tidy and clarify the provisions
by rectifying obvious omissions and anomalies and reflecting existing practice.
(Proposals in respect of the Development Control Committee and the planning
process have been the subject of separate reports to Development Control and
Neighbourhood Committees and will also be submitted to Council in April for
approval.)

33.

Details of the more significant amendments are set out below:

Part 2 - Articles of the Constitution
34.

Article 4.03 - Establish that the State of the Borough event is no longer to be
staged as a formal meeting of the Council. This follows the decision that the
January 2020 event should be held informally as an engagement opportunity.
Freeing the event from the restrictions of the procedure that surrounds a Council
meeting helps to maximise flexibility in the arrangements for the evening and the
choice of venue, thereby maximising participation.

Part 4A - Meeting Procedure Rules

35.

B8
Procedure Rule 10(7) Tabling of Motions or Amendments - Insert a provision that
an amendment must not have the effect of negating a recommendation, or
effectively negating a recommendation by completely changing the subject
matter of the recommendation. This resolves inconsistency in the existing
Constitution which prohibits ‘wrecking amendments’ in the case of political
groups motions submitted under Procedure Rule 8 but not in any other case. It
also brings the Council’s provisions into line with best practice and established
common law. Members who wish to move an amendment along those lines can
achieve the same effect by voting against the motion presented.

36.

Procedure Rules 12 (Voting at Council Meetings) and 26 (Voting and Recording
Dissent at Meetings) - Amend references to voting by roll call. The current
provisions require voting either by roll call or show of hands. Prior to the
pandemic only a small number of votes were conducted by roll call but it has
become an essential feature of virtual Committee meetings. There is,
nevertheless, no guidance on who is entitled to request or specify that a roll call
vote be held. It is therefore proposed to clarify that a vote shall be by roll call
either at the discretion of the Chair or upon the request of three Members. In
accordance with the existing provisions all votes are subsequently published in
the minutes and on the website regardless of the methodology adopted.

37.

Procedure Rule 17(B) - Public Questions at Meetings of Committees - Codify in
the Constitution the public speaking arrangements at the Health Overview Panel.
The Panel has customarily allowed a period of 20 minutes for public questions at
the start of each meeting but was not formally listed amongst the Committees
which are empowered to determine additional forms of public participation to take
place during their meetings should they wish to do so. This change recognises
the right of the Panel to determine additional participation mechanisms and
therefore regularises its current practice.

38.

It is also proposed to insert a provision that the public question time shall not
apply at single item Extraordinary meetings of Strategic Committees. From time
to time it is necessary to arrange ad hoc meetings of Strategic Committees
outside of the established schedule in order to urgently consider a single issue.
The Public Question time provisions have normally not been applied to these
meetings because they are intended specifically to address a single matter. It is
proposed that this practice be formalised.

Part 4C - Call-In Procedure Rules
39.

Part 1(l) - Amend the proceedings of a Scrutiny Panel to require that every
hearing shall commence with an introduction to the grounds for the call-in by a
signatory to the call-in request (in the case of call-ins by Members this shall not
be a member of the Scrutiny Panel) and that immediately thereafter there shall
be an opportunity for the Committee to ask questions of the signatory. Where this
does not occur the Call-In shall automatically fail and the original decision is
upheld without further debate.

40.

The existing provisions provide the Scrutiny Panel with discretion as to the form
of its hearing proceedings and are ambiguous on whether or not a call-in can be
introduced by an individual who was not party to its formal submission. This
amendment provides clarification and, by making this first stage mandatory,
ensures that signatories to the call-in shall always have an appropriate
opportunity at the outset of the proceedings to state their case. Failure to present
a case for a call-in should result in its automatic dismissal.

B9

41.

The Panel retains discretion to manage the order and form of the rest of its
proceedings, including the calling of other speakers.

42.

Declaration of Interests - Require Members of the Panel who are party to a call-in
request to declare a personal interest in the matter. Call-ins can be triggered at
the request of 9 Members. It is proposed that where any of those Members sit on
the Scrutiny Panel which considers the call-in they should declare a personal
interest. This does not prevent participation in the meeting (unless other
significant personal or disclosable pecuniary interests also apply) but ensures full
disclosure and transparency.

Part 4E - Financial Regulations
43.

Paragraph 3.6 Financial Delegations to Officers - to adjust the financial
thresholds determining which Officers may exercise delegated powers in respect
of certain decisions such as contract awards, virements and debt write offs. The
current arrangements do not distinguish between the levels of authorisations for
Corporate Heads of Service and Assistant Directors and it is proposed that some
degree of differentiation be introduced. For contract awards it is recommended
that the upper limit for Corporate Heads of Service be set at £150,000 to coincide
with the threshold in Contract Regulations for low value procurements. No
changes are proposed in respect of Member level decision making in Committee.

44.

It is also proposed to provide authority to Officers to approve fees and charges
as follows:
●
●
●
●

45.

Financial implications of under £50K - Corporate Head of Service
Financial implications of £50-100K - Assistant Directors
Financial implications of £100-250K - Executive Directors
Financial implications of £250-500K - S151 Officer/Chief Executive

This would formalise what is broadly existing practice. It seeks to balance the
need for Officers to be able to manage routine operational decisions in respect of
fees and charges with safeguards that require Member oversight of changes with
a significant impact. To this end Committee approval would still be required
where a fee/charge is proposed to increase by a level significantly higher than an
inflationary uplift, if significant new subsidies or discounts are being introduced or
if the amendment is likely to significantly change demand or have a major impact
on the budget.

CONTRACT REGULATIONS
45.

The updated Council's contract regulations are intended to ensure alignment with
amendments to the Public Procurement Regulations following the withdrawal of
the UK from the EU. Public Procurement (Amendment Etc.) (EU Exit)
Regulations 2020 (SI 2020 No 1319) amends the Public Procurement Regulation
2015 including the removal of any reference to the EU Procurement legislation
and insertion of new provisions such as the requirement to publish contract
notices on a UK e-notification system, Find a Tender Service (FTS). The
schedule of changes, as set out in Annex 5, provides flexibility for the Council to
align its requirements with the existing and new public procurement legislation
that are being worked on by the Government. It is aimed to bring further clarity
and consistency with the tested procedures and guidance developed during the

B10
national emergency response, and enhance understanding on the following
areas:

●
●
●
●
●
46.

the circumstances in which a waiver may be permitted, reflecting on the
Public Procurement Regulations and the Procurement Policy Note 01/21:
Procurement in an Emergency;
requirements for the approval of a contract award and steps to be taken to
ensure compliance with the publication of the officer decision for contracts
valued £150k and above;
the role and responsibility of the Commissioning Governance Board (CGB)
and Executive Directors in the decision making process;
requirements relating to the content of the Council’s terms and conditions
the process for awarding contracts, managing and recording waivers below
£150k.

Additional provisions are made to:
●

●

●

●

Streamline the decision making for contracts with the provision to enact an
extension (that was included in the original award). Contracts with the
aggregated value of more than £1m, or which take the aggregated value of a
contract to more than £1m, can be determined by Officers under delegated
powers in consultation with the Commissioning Governance Board.
Strengthen social value provisions through procurement by assigning a
minimum weighting of 10% as a standalone evaluation criteria for all high
value procurement, with a range of 10% to 20% of the total evaluation
weighting. This also includes paying staff working on council contracts the
London Living Wage, adopting a robust approach to Modern Slavery,
promoting good mental health in the workplace and ensuring equality and
diversity considerations permeate all aspects of their delivery, and
responding to the climate change emergency.
Set out the requirements for managing conflict of interest in procurement.
Council expects all of its procurement activity to be undertaken to the highest
ethical, sustainable and responsible standards and within a robust and
transparent governance framework.
Set out the requirements for contract management in line with best practice
and the Council’s Contract Management Framework and all associated
guidance.

REVIEW OF COVID-19 INTERIM DECISION MAKING ARRANGEMENTS
46.

All meetings of the Council, its Committees and Sub-Committees have been
taking place virtually since May 2020, with some modifications to the usual
procedure rules in respect of public participation. Whilst most Committees have
in this way continued to operate since the early days of the pandemic two
temporary Strategic Committees, the Response and Recovery Committee and
Culture, Housing, Planning and Environment Committee, have between them
undertaken the functions of four of the established Strategic Committees, with
the fifth, the Childrens and Adults Care and Education Committee continuing to
meet.

47.

The proposals set out within this report would result in the decommissioning of
the temporary Committees with effect from the new Municipal Year. However, it is
not yet clear at this stage when the public health situation will enable in person

B11
meetings to resume in the Guildhall. The Government has indicated that the
emergency legislation introduced in 2020 to permit local authorities to hold
Committee meetings virtually is likely to be extended in some form upon its
expiry on 7 May. The Council will therefore need to decide at its meeting in April
whether to continue with remote meetings into the early part of the new Municipal
Year and, if so, for how long. Further information will be provided at that time in
the light of the rapidly changing public health context and the latest Government
guidance.

48.

In the event that legislation eventually permits virtual participation to become a
permanent feature of meetings beyond the pandemic consideration will need to
be given in the medium term to the ways in which this can be most effectively
accommodated and managed locally. This will be likely to require substantial
further amendment to the Procedure Rules and working practices.

Timescale
49.

Subject to approval by Council at its meeting on 20 April, the new Strategic
Committee arrangements and revised constitution and contract provisions will
come into effect with the commencement of the 2021/22 Municipal Year on 18
May.

Financial Context
50.

The Council is operating in an increasingly challenging financial environment.
Kingston faced a number of financial challenges in the medium to longer term even before the COVID-19 outbreak, which has further added to these
challenges. The economic and financial consequences of the pandemic, growing
demand for services, and limited government grant funding make it difficult to find
adequate funds to meet the borough's needs.

51.

The future of local government finance faces a significant level of uncertainty.
The impact of the Fair Funding Review and a future review of business rates is
currently unknown, and the lasting effects of COVID-19 on our residents, local
businesses and the Council itself remain uncertain.

52.

Despite these challenges the Council has a drive and commitment to ensure it is
doing the best for residents and communities

Resource Implications
53.

In addition to opportunity cost savings in senior Officer time, a reduction to three
Strategic Committees will assist with the realisation of £50,000 of savings
identified in the 2021/22 budget proposals for the disestablishment of one senior
post within the Democratic Services team.

Legal Implications

B12

54.

The Constitution sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made and
the procedures which are followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent
and accountable to local people. The Council has a legal duty to publish an up to
date Constitution and it should be reviewed annually with any necessary changes
being normally considered at the Annual Council meeting.

55.

The Constitution must contain: (a) the Council's standing orders/procedure rules;
(b) the Members' Code of Conduct; (c) such information as the Secretary of State
may direct; (d) such other information (if any) as the authority considers
appropriate.

56.

A Constitution Direction was issued by the Secretary of State in December 2000
that required around 80 matters to be included within council constitutions,
covering members' allowances schemes, details of procedures for meetings,
details of joint arrangements with other local authorities and a description of the
rights of the inhabitants of the area.

57.

There are no specific legal implications arising from the minor constitutional
changes proposed.

Equalities Analysis
58.

An Equalities Analysis has not been undertaken in relation to this report. An
Equalities Analysis was undertaken when the Constitutional arrangements were
subjected to the last major review in October 2019 and no policy changes
affecting this assessment are being proposed

Health Implications
59.

None

Road Network Implications
60.

None

Sustainability Implications
61.

None

Background Papers
Analysis of Committee Meeting Data for the period 2012/13-2019/20 (held by the Author of
the report)
Author of report
Gary Marson, Corporate Head of Democratic & Electoral Services, tel 0208 547
5021/email gary.marson@kingston.gov.uk

B13

ANNEX 1
Proposed Allocation of Functions
Corporate & Resources
Exec Director Leads:
Corporate & Communities
and Place

Place
Exec Director Leads:
Corporate & Communities
and Place

People
Exec Director Leads:
Adult Social Care &
Health and Children’s
Services

Revenue and Capital
Monitoring and
Expenditure
Recommendations to
Council on the levying of
Council Tax
Revenues and Benefits
Strategic Partnerships
Human Resources and
Pensions
Investment Company
Assets, including the
disposal or acquisition of
land or property
Contracts and
Commissioning
Equalities
Communications
Consultation &
Engagement
Customer Contact
ICT & Digital
International Partnerships
Constitutional issues
Members Services
Electoral Services
Legal Affairs
Covid Recovery (incl
related Task Forces)

Housing functions (incl.
homelessness,
Community housing,
allocations, landlord
functions in relation to
Council owned housing,
housing standards,
housing strategy, housing
licensing and
enforcement)
HRA Revenue Account
and capital programme)
Estate Regeneration,
including Cambridge
Road
Private sector housing
and leasing
Planning Policy
Building Control
Economic Development
Business & Skills
Cycling, Walking &
Healthy Streets
Environment
Air Quality
Waste & Recycling
Biodiversity
Parks & Open Spaces
Street Scene
Transport & Public
Transport
Highways
Parking
HMO Licensing
Heritage, Culture and Arts
Museum Service

AFC Commissioning
0-19 Education including
Schools and School Place
Planning)
Special Educational
Needs & Disabilities incl
the SEND Transformation
Plan
Children's Centre
Alternative Education
Provision
Youth Service
Adults & Childrens
Safeguarding
Looked After Children &
Unaccompanied Asylum
Seeking Children
Adult Social Care
Public Health
Mental Health
Dementia Nursing Home
Recommendations to
Council on Schools
Budget Estimates &
schools Funding Formula
Early Years & Prevention
Childrens & Adults Health
Bereavement Services
incl cemeteries &
crematoria
Registration Services
Community Safety

B14

Libraries
Leisure Services
Adult Education
Tourism
Regulatory Services

2021
May

Jun

Jul

1

Sa

1

Tu

1

Th

2

Su

2

We

2

3

Mo Bank Hol

3

Th

4

Tu

4

5

We

5

6

Th

7

Fr

London Mayor
Election

HOP

2022

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

We DC

1

Sa

KT/SotB

2

Th KTPS/M&CPS

2

Su

We

DC

3

Fr

3

Mo

4

Th

Surb/M&C

4

Sa

4

5

Fr

5

Su

5

DC

6

Sa

6

Mo

SP

7

Su

7

Tu LSC/Surb/SotBPS

Fr

8

Mo

8

Sa

9

Tu

9

Su

1

We

DC

1

Fr

1

Mo

Fr

2

Mo

2

Th

KT/SotB

2

Sa

2

Tu

3

Sa

3

Tu

3

Fr

3

Su

3

Fr

4

Su

4

We

4

Sa

4

Mo

Sa

5

Mo

5

Th

5

Su

5

Tu

HOP

6

Su

6

Tu

LSC

6

Fr

6

Mo

6

We

7

Mo

7

We

LGA Conf DC

7

Sa

7

Tu

Surb/M&C

7

Th

8
9

SP

8

Su

8

We

HWBB (19.00
hrs)

9

Mo

9

Th

PFP/JWP

8

Sa

8

Tu

LSC/People/JWP

8

Th

9

Su

9

We

DC

9

Fr

KT/SotB

10 Sa

10 Tu

10 Fr

10 Su

11 Fr

11 Su

11 We

11 Sa

11 Mo

LSC

11 Th

12 Sa

12 Mo

12 Th

12 Su

12 Tu

Council

13 Su

13 Tu

13 Fr

13 Mo

10 Mo
11 Tu

10 Th
LSC

12 We DC
13 Th

R&R

Council

14 Fr

14 Mo

14 We

14 Sa

14 Tu

15 Sa

15 Tu

M&C/Surb

15 Th

15 Su

15 We

16 Su

16 We

JHOSC

16 Fr

16 Mo

16 Th

17 Mo

17 Th

PFP/Place

17 Sa

18 Fr

18 Su

19 We

19 Sa

19 Mo

20 Th

20 Su

20 Tu

17 Tu

KTPS/M&CPS

LSC

Place

17 Fr

LSC/People

10 We

New Year's
Day

Feb
1

Tu

2

We

3

Th

Tu

4

We

5

6

Th

6

Su

7

Fr

7

Mo

LSC

We

8

Fr

8

Tu

Th PFP/SP

9

Su

9

We

Bank Hol

LSC

Tu

2
3

Fr
Sa

10 Fr

10 Mo

11 Sa

11 Tu

12 Fr

12 Su

12 We

13 We

13 Sa

13 Mo

13 Th

14 Th

14 Su

14 Tu

14 Fr

14 Mo

15 Fr

15 Mo

15 We

15 Sa

15 Tu

16 Sa

16 Tu

SF

16 Th AGS/JWP

16 Su

16 We

17 We

HWBB
(11.00hrs)

17 Fr

17 Mo

17 Su

Place

Council

18 We

18 Sa

18 Mo

PB

18 Th

18 Sa

18 Tu

19 Th

19 Su

19 Tu

Licensing

19 Fr

19 Su

19 We

20 Fr

20 Mo

20 We

20 Sa

20 Mo

20 Th

Mar
1

10 Th

1

Su

We

2

Sa

2

Mo

Th

3

Su

3

Tu

4

Fr

4

Mo LSC

4

We

5

Sa

5

Tu

5

Th

6

Su

6

We

6

Fri

7

Mo

LSC

7

Th

7

Sa

PFP

8

Tu

KT/SotB

8

Fr

8

Su

DC

9

We

9

Sa

9

Mo

Place

10 Th

10 Su

10

Tu

KTPS/
M&CPS

11 Fr

11 Mo

11

We

DC

12 Sa

12 Sa

12 Tu

12

Th

HOP

13 Su

13 Su

13 We JWP

13

Fr

17 Th

14 Th

SP

14

Sa

15 Tu

LSC/People

15 Fr

Good
Friday

15

Su

16 We

Licensing

16 Sa

16

Mo

17 Th

M&C/Surb

17 Su

17

Tu

18

We

19

Th

14 Mo

People

C&R

18 Fr

18 Fr

Easter
18 Mo
Monday

KT/SotB

19 Sa

19 Sa

19 Tu

Surb/M&C

20 Su

20 Su

20 We

20

Fr

Surb/
21 Th
21
SotBPS

Sa

22 Fr

22

Su

KU
Graduations/
SF

People

21 Th

21 Su

21 Tu LSC

21 Fr

21 Mo

LSC

21 Mo

22 We

KTPS/M&CPS

22 Fr

22 Mo

22 We

22 Sa

22 Tu

Surb/
SotbPS

22 Tu

23 Fr

23 Mo

23 Th

23 Sa

23 Tu

23 Th

23 Su

23 We

24 Th

24 Sa

24 Tu

24 Fr

24 Su

24 We

24 Fr

24 Mo

LSC

24 Th

25 Fr

25 Su

25 We

25 Sa

25 Mo

25 Th

25 Sa Christmas Day

25 Tu

HWBB
(14.00hrs)

25 Fr

26 We

26 Sa

26 Mo

26 Th

26 Su

26 Tu

26 Fr

26 Su Boxing Day

26 We

27 Th

27 Su

27 Tu

27 Fr

27 Mo

27 We

27 Sa

27 Mo Bank Hol

27 Th

28 Fr

28 Mo

PB

28 We

28 Sa

28 Tu

LSC/AGS

28 Th

28 Su

28 Tu Bank Hol

28 Fr

29 Sa

29 Tu

C&R

29 Th

29 Su

29 We

Surb/SotBPS

29 Fr

29 Mo

29 We

29 Sa

30 Su

30 We

Licensing

30 Fr

30 Mo

Bank Hol

30 Th

C&R

30 Sa

30 Tu

30 Th

31 Sa

31 Tu

LSC

31 Fr

LSC

22 Th

23 Su

23 We

HWWB (14.00
hrs)

24 Mo
25 Tu

LSC

31 Mo Bank Hol

Key

21 We
SotBPS/Surb

LSC

AGS

People - People Committee (7.30pm)
Place - Place Committee (7.30pm)
C&R - Corporate & Resources Committee (7.30pm)
DC - Development Control (7.30pm)
R&R - Response & Recovery Committee (7.30pm)

LSC

31 Su

LSC - Licensing Sub-Committee (10am to 2pm)
HWBB - Health & Wellbeing Board (TIMES VARY)
SF - Schools Forum
SP - Scrutiny Panel (7.30pm)
AGS - Audit, Governance & Standards (7.30pm)
JWP - South West London Joint Waste Partnership
HOP - Health Overview Panel (7.30pm)
PFP - Pension Fund Panel (10am to 2pm)
PB - Pension Board (10am to 2pm)

LSC

C&R

Place

11 Fr

21 Tu

22 Tu

May

Fr

22 Su

21 Mo

22 Sa

Apr
1

21 Sa

21 Fr

Council

LSC

KTPS/
M&CPS

23 We

HWBB
(19.00hrs)

23 Sa

23

Mo

24 Th

AGS

24 Su

24

Tu

25 Fr

25 Mo LSC

25

We

26 Sa

26 Sa

26 Tu

27 Su

27 Su

27 We DC

28 Mo

28 Mo

PB

28 Th

29 Tu

LSC

29 Fr

30 Su

30 We

DC

30 Sa

31 Mo

31 Th

C&R

SP

KT - Kingston Town Neighbourhood (7.30pm)
KTPS - Kingston Town Planning Sub (7.30pm)
M&C - Maldens & Coombe Neighbourhood (7.30pm)
M&CPS - Maldens &Coombe Planning Sub (7.30pm)
SotB - South of the Borough (7.30pm)
SotBPS - South of the Borough Planning Sub (7.30pm)
Surb - Surbiton Neighbourhood (7.30pm)

Council 26

HOP

Th

27

Fr

28

Sa

29

Su

30

Mo

31

Tu

Bank Hol

Borough
Elections

B15

Annual
18 Tu Council/
Licensing

LSC/SF

Jan

1

1

LSC

Dec

Annual
Council/
Licensing

DC

LSC

B16

Annex 3

PROPORTIONALITY ON PANELS/ COMMITTEES ETC UPON INTRODUCTION OF NEW
STRATEGIC COMMITTEES
(March 2021)
A. BODIES TO WHICH THE PROPORTIONALITY RULES APPLY –
Seats on Council

Entitlement in
relation to 78 seats

Entitlement
Rounded

Actual

Lib Dems

38 (79.17%)

61.75 seats

62

61

Conservatives

9 (18.75%)

14.65 seats

15

15

Green

1 (2.08%)

1.62 seats

2

2

Total

48

78

79

78

LIB DEM

CONS

GREEN

Joint Committee for Achieving for
Children

2

1

3

Joint Committee for Appointment of
Director of Children’s Services

2

1

3

Health Overview

9

2

11

Audit, Governance and Standards
Committee

4

1

5

Development Control

9

2

11

Licensing

13

2

15

Home to School Travel Appeals
Panel

3

1

Senior Staff Panel

4

1

5

Staff Appeals Committee

4

1

5

Teachers’ Appeals Committee

4

1

5

Pension Fund Panel

4

1

5

Blue Badges Appeal Panel

3

1

1

5

Total

61

15

2

78

1

TOTAL

5

B17

B. BODIES TO WHICH THE PROPORTIONALITY RULES HAVE BEEN DISAPPLIED BY
RESOLUTION OF COUNCIL
LIB DEM

CONS

GREEN

TOTAL

Corporate & Resources Committee

9

3

1

13

Place Committee

9

4

13

People Committee*

11

2

13

Scrutiny Panel

4

3

7

*Also includes 2 voting co-opted Members. The Majority Group must have an overall majority on a
Committee which includes voting co-opted members.

C. BODIES TO WHICH THE PROPORTIONALITY RULES DO NOT APPLY
LIB DEM

CONS

GREEN

Health & Wellbeing Board

4

2

6 Elected Members

Staff Consultative Committee

4

1

5

Kingston Schools Forum

1

1

2

Standing Advisory Council for
Religious Education

1

1

Adoption Panel

1

0

1

Fostering Panel

0

1

1

Corporate Parenting Panel

3

1

4

Standing Joint Health Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

2

0

2 RBK appointees

South London Partnership

1

0

1 RBK appointee

South London Joint Committee on
Waste Disposal

2

0

2 RBK appointees

Total

19

7

1

1

TOTAL

3

27

ANNEX 4
Constitution
Proposals for Change
Document

Suggested Change

Reason

Clarify that the Monitoring Officer has
power to make minor amendments to
all constitutional documents relating
to typographical changes, changes to
the statutory framework and job titles
and other consequential amendments
following other changes to the
Constitution.

At present the Monitoring Officer has the
power to make minor amendments to most
Constitutional documents without referral to
Council. This change seeks to ensure that
he/she can do so for every document, thereby
helping to keep the Constitution up to date
and accurate at all times.

To confirm that the provisions of the
Scheme of Members Allowances can
be changed only by Full Council,
having regard, where appropriate, to
the recommendations of the
Independent Remuneration Panel,
and by the Monitoring Officer
exercising the powers of minor
amendment referred to above.

To correct an omission from the existing
document

To confirm that the Glossary of Terms
which forms part 7 of the Constitution

To correct an omission from the existing
document

Part 2 - Articles of the Constitution
Article 2 (Annex 1)

B18

may be amended by the Monitoring
Officer
Article 4.03

Confirm that the State of the Borough
event is no longer a formal meeting of
the Council

To provide maximum flexibility in the structure
and choice of venue of the engagement
event, thereby maximising participation.

Article 12.3

Insert the ability for the Monitoring
Officer to participate in legal
proceedings.

The existing provisions authorise the
Monitoring Officer to ‘institute, defend or
settle’ any legal proceedings. For the
avoidance of doubt it should be clarified that
this includes the power to participate in
proceedings.

1.1 (K) - Full Council

To remove reference to Council being
the final arbiter on controversial
issues removed through the
Requisitioning process

To reflect the previous deletion of the
Requisitioning process

2.1 - Strategic Committees

Clarify that extensions to contracts of To reflect the clarification contained within the
more than £1m, or which take the
amendment to Contract Regulation 16 (see the
aggregated value of a contract to
corresponding Annex with these papers)
more than £1m, can be determined by
Officers under delegated powers
where the provision for that extension
was included within the original
contract award and documentation.

Part 3A - Responsibility for Functions
B19

Clarify that members of the HWBB
should not be members of HOP

To reflect good (and current) practice

4.8.2 - Senior Staff Panel

Clarify that the appointment of the
Director of Children’s Services is a
function of the Joint Appointments
Committee with Richmond

To correct an omission from the existing
document

6.5.2 - Joint Appointments Committee Director of Children's Services

Insert provision that the Joint
Committee recommends the
appointment of a Director of
Children’s Services to the respective
Full Council’s of RBK and LBRuT

To reflect existing practice

7.3 Pension Board

Insert provision to allow for virtual
meetings

Pension Boards are not local authority
committees for the purpose of the LGA 1972
and are therefore not covered by the 2020
Covid 19 Regs which permit virtual meetings,
but Reg 106(8) of the LGPS Regs 2013
allows a Board to do anything which is
calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or
incidental to, the discharge of any of its
functions - and this would allow it to hold
virtual meetings in an emergency.

Clarify that notice of motions must be
submitted at least seven clear
working days before a meeting of
Council excluding the day on which

To provide certainty on the deadline for
submission of a motion to Council - the
Procedure Rules do not currently define
whether or not ‘seven working days’ includes

Part 4A - Meeting Procedure Rules
Procedure Rule 8(A)(2) - Notices of Motion

B20

4.4.1 - Health Overview Panel

the day on which notice is given or the day of
the meeting

Procedure Rule 10(7) - Tabling of Motions or
Amendments

Insert a provision that an amendment
must not have the effect of simply
negating a recommendation or
effectively negating a
recommendation by completely
changing the subject matter of the
recommendation.

To clarify that ‘wrecking amendments’ shall
not be allowed. This resolves inconsistency in
the existing Constitution which prohibits
‘wrecking amendments’ in the case of political
groups motions submitted under Procedure
Rule 8 but not in any other case. It also brings
the Council’s provisions into line with best
practice and established common law.
Members who wish to move a wrecking
amendment can instead vote against the
motion presented.

Procedure Rule 12 - Voting at Council
Meetings and Procedure Rule 26 - Voting at
Meetings

Amend references to voting by roll
call to require requests for roll call
votes to be made either by a
minimum of three Members or at the
discretion of the Mayor/Chair

Votes by roll call are designed to ensure that
the way each individual Member voted is
recorded, but outside of virtual meetings
where they are necessary to ensure
transparency for the public watching
procedures from home they are otherwise
rarely utilised because it is a requirement that
the vote of all Members be recorded in the
minutes even when voting by a show of
hands. The current provisions do not identify
how a roll call vote shall be requested. This
change addresses that absence.

Procedure Rule 17(B) - Public Questions at
Meetings of Committees

Insert a provision that the public
question time shall not apply at single
item extraordinary meetings of

From time to time it is necessary to arrange
ad hoc meetings of Strategic Committees
outside of the established schedule in order

B21

notice is given and the day of the
meeting

Procedure Rule 34 - Sealing of Documents

Strategic Committees

to urgently consider a single issue. The Public
Question time provisions have normally not
been applied to these meetings because they
are intended specifically to address a single
matter. It is proposed that this practice be
formalised.

Amend to record that a Common Seal
of the Council is held at the Guildhall
as well by the South London legal
Partnership

To reflect existing practice

Amend explanatory note re Para 3 to
clarify that exempt material relating to
contractual terms is not available to
all Members

To correct a typographical error which
misrepresents the relevant legislation - the
present wording reads ‘Not exempt for
Members where the information relates to any
terms proposed or to be proposed by or to the
authority in the course of negotiations of a
contract.’ The word ‘Not’ appears by error and
gives the opposite effect to the statutory
position.

Amend the form of proceedings of a
Scrutiny Panel to require that every
hearing shall commence with an
introduction to the grounds for the
call-in by a signatory to the call-in

The existing provisions provide the Scrutiny
Panel with discretion as to the form of its
hearing proceedings and lack clarity on
whether or not a call-in can be introduced by
an individual who was not party to its formal

Part 4 B - Access to Information Protocol
Categories of Exempt Information

1 (l)

B22

Part 4C - Call-In Procedure Rules

request (in the case of call-ins by
Members this shall not be a member
of the Scrutiny Panel) and that
immediately thereafter there shall be
an opportunity for the Committee to
ask questions of the signatory. Where
this does not occur the Call-In shall
automatically fail and the original
decision is upheld without further
debate.

submission. This amendment provides
clarification and, by making this first stage
mandatory, ensures that signatories to the
call-in shall always have an appropriate
opportunity at the outset of the proceedings to
state their case. Failure to present a case for
a call-in should result in its automatic
dismissal.

Make provision for Members of the
Panel who are party to a call-in
request to declare a personal interest
in the matter.

Call-ins can be triggered at the request of 9
Members. It is proposed that where any of
those Members sit on the Scrutiny Panel
which considers the call-in they should
declare a personal interest. This does not
prevent participation in the meeting (unless
other significant personal or disclosable
pecuniary interests also apply) but ensures
full disclosure and transparency.

To adjust the financial thresholds
determining which Officers may
exercise delegated powers in respect
of certain decisions such as contract
awards, virements and debt write offs
as set out in the table at the end of

The current arrangements do not distinguish
between the levels of authorisations for
Corporate Heads of Service and Assistant
Directors and it is proposed that some degree
of differentiation be introduced. For contract
awards it is recommended that the upper limit

The Panel retains discretion to manage the
order and form of the rest of its proceedings,
including the calling of other speakers.

Para 3.6 - Financial Delegations

B23

Part 4E - Financial Regulations

this Annex. .

for Corporate Heads of Service be set at
£150,000 to coincide with the threshold in
Contract Regulations for low value
procurements. No changes are proposed in
respect of Member level decision making in
Committee

To introduce the following delegations
in respect of Death Grant Awards

To remedy an absence in the current
provisions

B24

● S151: Above £100k
● Head of Insurance and
Pensions Administration /
Assistant Director of
Business Services: Above
£50k and up to and including
£100k
● Pensions Administration
Manager: Up to and
including £50k
Contentious and sensitive matters
can and should still be referred
upwards outside of the financial
delegations.
To provide authority to Officers to
approve fees and charges at levels
aligned with the delegated authority

This corrects an omission in the existing
document and formalises what is broadly
existing practice. It seeks to balance the need

set out for each tier of senior
management in Financial
Regulations;
● financial implications of under
£100k - CHoS or AD,
● financial implications of
£100k-250K Executive
Directors
● financial implications of 250K 500K S151 Officer/Chief
Executive

for Officers to be able to manage routine
operational decisions in respect of fees and
charges with safeguards that require Member
oversight of changes with a significant impact.

Part 4G - Petitions Scheme

B25

But that Committee approval is
required where a fee/charge is
proposed to increase by a level
significantly higher than an
inflationary uplift, if significant new
subsidies or discounts are being
introduced or if the amendment is
likely to significantly change on
demand or have a major impact on
the budget
To insert a flowchart to illustrate the
petitions process

To enhance clarity and understanding of the
process

To clarify that petitions in respect of
consultations on Traffic Management
Orders fall outside the scope of the
scheme and will instead be
considered as part of the statutory

For the avoidance of doubt. Separate
statutory consultation provisions apply in
respect of Traffic Management Orders. The
same principle is already applied to petitions
relating to planning applications.

consultation process.
Part 6 - Scheme of Members Allowances
Allowances for Independent &
Co-opted/Advisory Members

Update Committee positions and
names

To reflect the existing Committee structure

Paragraph 18 - Pensions

Remove a reference to the Council
determining that Members are not
entitled to pensions

This is no longer applicable - whereas it was
previously within the discretion of each
Authority to determine whether Members
should be eligible for the Local Government
Pension Scheme there is now no entitlement
and no discretion to apply it.

B26

PART 4E FINANCIAL REGULATIONS - PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO DELEGATIONS AT PARAGRAPH
3.6
Financial Scheme of Delegation
3.6
The table below sets out the financial decisions that Strategic Committees and Officers have delegated authority to take,
within the agreed budget.
(changes highlighted in yellow)
Strategic Committee
Contract Awards

£500k - £1m

Executive Directors
£100K-£500K
£250k - £500k

Assistant Director
< £100k
£150K -£250k
< £100k
£50K - £100k

Corporate Head of Service
< £100k
<£150k
< £100k
<£50k

> £1m

£500k - £1m

£100k - £500k

New Capital Schemes

> £500k

£250k - £500k

£100k - £250k

< £100k
£50K - £100k

< £100k
<£50k

Variations to Capital
Schemes

> £500k

£250k - £500k

£100k - £250k

< £100k
£50K - £100k

< £100k
<£50k

Capital Virements

> £500k

£250k - £500k

£100k - £250k

< £100k
£50K - £100k

< £100k
<£50k

Revenue Virements

> £500k

£250k - £500k

£100k - £250k

< £100k
£50K - £100k

< £100k
<£50k

Debt Write-offs

> £100k

£50k - £100k

£10k - £50k

< £10k

< £10k
N/A

Fees & Charges

Financial Implications

Financial

Financial

Financial

Financial Implications of

B27

Acquisitions /
Disposals

> £1m

CEx / S151

>£500k*

New Delivery Models

> £500k / > 50 Staff / >1
Neighborhood area

implications
of £250k £500k

Implications of
£100k - £250k

£250k - £500k / £100k - £250k / 10-25
25 - 50 staff
staff

Implications of
£50k-£100k

< £100k / 10 staff

< £50k

< £100k / 10 staff
N/A

*Strategic Committee approval is also required where, in the view of the relevant Executive Director or the S151 Officer, a fee/charge is proposed to
increase by a level significantly higher than an inflationary uplift, if significant new subsidies or discounts are being introduced or if the amendment is
likely to significantly change demand or have a major impact on the budget

B28

ANNEX 5
CONTRACT REGULATIONS - PROPOSALS FOR CHANGES
Document

Suggested Change

Reason

PART 4D - CONTRACT REGULATIONS
(2) Contract Regulations apply to the procurement of all
goods, services and works as set out in the Commissioning
Framework.

To correct an omission from the existing
document.

CONTRACT
REGULATION NO 1
(COMPLIANCE WITH
CONTRACT
REGULATIONS)

(5) Every contract made on behalf of the Council shall
comply with the Public Contracts Regulations, as amended,
and the Council’s Commissioning Framework and and all
associated guidance and the toolkit.

To update in line with the amendments to
the Regulations in relation to the
withdrawal of the UK from the EU Public Procurement (Amendment Etc.)
(EU Exit) Regulations 2020 – SI 2020 No
1319 amends PCR 2015. Due to
changes in public procurement proposed
by the Transforming Procurement Green
paper the intention is to make reference
to the overall legislation and the
Council’s Commissioning Framework
that will contain the most recent
legislation. This will avoid a series of
changes to the contract regulations as
the government introduces new
legislation and measures that governs
procurement in 2021 and 2022.

1

B29

CONTRACT
REGULATION NO 1
(COMPLIANCE WITH
CONTRACT
REGULATIONS)

CONTRACT
REGULATION NO 1
(COMPLIANCE WITH
CONTRACT
REGULATIONS)

The Council recognises that, in order to achieve consistency
and compliance with these Regulations, there is a need for
the involvement of key corporate experts in all significant
procurement processes. For contracts below the value of £1
million the role of the Commissioning Governance Board
(CGB) is to endorse and recommend to the relevant decision
officer for approval. For contracts over £1 million its role is to
scrutinise the procurement exercise and to recommend the
award to the relevant committee.

To clarify the role and responsibility of
the Commissioning Governance Board
(CGB)

B30

The CGB will consist of Officers at AD level or their
representatives of Financial Services, Procurement, Legal,
Monitoring Officer and Chaired by the Executive Director of
Corporate and Communities. Assistant Director
Representatives must represent their departments in the
presentation of decisions being sought by the Board.
The CGB aims to ensure that the Council’s Contract
Regulations and the Scheme of Delegation is implemented in
all cases and ensure that all commissioning decisions meet
the Council’s identified needs and deliver effective outcomes
whilst representing best value. The CGB will provide oversight
and scrutiny of the Council’s commercial activities, and will
review and approve commercial activities at key stages of the
commissioning and procurement lifecycle
Compliance
Any failure to consult the CGB at the appropriate time shall be
deemed to be a breach of these Regulations.
CONTRACT

These Contract Regulations must be strictly complied with;

To clarify the role and responsibility of
2

REGULATION NO 1
(COMPLIANCE WITH
CONTRACT
REGULATIONS)

they are the Council’s minimum requirements.

SLT Members and Executive Directors in
the decision making process

The Executive Director has responsibility for all contracts
tendered and let by their Directorate.

B31

Executive Directors are accountable for the performance of
their duties in relation to contract letting and management and
they will:
- Ensure that the provisions of these Regulations, the
relevant Commissioning Frameworks and associated
policies and toolkits, and their spirit and intent, are
brought to the attention of staff and other persons
responsible for procurement / contracts;
- Ensure that the relevant provisions of public
procurement law, statutory guidance and locally
approved procedures are brought to the attention of
Officers and other persons responsible for Contracts;
- Officers attend training to ensure they know how to use
the e-tendering system;
- Ensure appropriate arrangements are in place within
his/her department for the storage of original Contracts
not sealed as a Deed once completed (signed and
dated).
- Ensure officer enter the details of all completed
contracts over £5,000 onto the Contracts Register
- Take immediate action, which must include informing
the Chair of the Commissioning Governance Board,
the Assistant Director (Finance) and Assistant Director
and/or Corporate Head of Commissioning, in the event
of a breach of these Regulations within the Directors

3

area of responsibility. Any breach may lead to
investigation and managed in line with the Council’s
disciplinary procedures.
CONTRACT
REGULATION NO 3
(PROCEDURES AND
APPROVAL PROCESS
FOR THE COUNCIL’S
TENDERING AND
REQUEST FOR
QUOTATION
ACTIVITIES)

(3) For the purpose of these Contract Regulations the
Threshold means the threshold as set out within the Public
Procurement Regulations , as amended and referenced in the
Council’s Commissioning Framework and the associated
guidances and toolkit.

(4)
When awarding on the basis of MEAT, the split
between cost, and quality and social value should normally be
between 60-40% cost and 30-50% quality and 10-20% social
value. Where the Officer responsible does not consider a split
within this range appropriate, the reasons for the use of an
alternative percentage split must be substantiated in the
Sourcing Strategy. Where, under the MEAT approach, quality
is adopted as a criterion, it must be further defined by
reference to sub-criteria. There is no definitive list of quality
criteria that should be applied. Social value should be a

As above, the requirement to publish
notices on a new UK e‑notification
system called Find a Tender Service
(FTS), follows changes to post - Brexit
procurement. This replaces OJEU for
new procurement. Note: For
procurements on-going at 31/12/20 there
is no change to the publication of notices
to OJEU
Thresholds are set in the Public
Contracts Regulations 2015 and are
reviewed annually. The next review of
the thresholds will be implemented by
January 2022 by amendments to the
public procurement regulations.

B32

CONTRACT
REGULATION NO 5
(EVALUATION
CRITERIA)

(2) Where the estimated level of the contract exceeds the
threshold laid down in the Public Contracts Regulations 2015
as at the end of the Transition Period, notice shall be given to
the UK e‑notification service Find a Tender Service (FTS).
Notice periods as set out in the Public Contracts Regulations
2015 must be adhered to.

To give effect to the agreed outline
principle for measuring social value
through procurement, as set out in the
RBK Social Value Framework
A range of weighting between 10% to 20%
of will be assigned to social value, as a
standalone evaluation criteria

4

standalone evaluation.

Proposal to amend Quality/ Price range of
40-60 to 30-50 Quality and 40-60 Price

CONTRACT
REGULATION 6
(WAIVERS)

(d) Where the proposed contract circumstances are
covered by the UK legislative exemptions set out in the Public
Contract Regulations.

As above, to update in line with the
amendments to the Regulations in
relation to the withdrawal of the UK from
the EU - Public Procurement
(Amendment Etc.) (EU Exit) Regulations
2020 – SI 2020 No 1319 amends

CONTRACT
REGULATION 6
(WAIVERS)

For a waiver to be granted, it must meet one or more of
the following:

Additionally, in exceptional circumstances, authorities may
need to procure goods, services and works with extreme
urgency and without competition. This is permissible under
current public procurement regulations, or as updated for time
to time. AD/ ChoS for Corporate Commissioning should
assess the commercial risks of such decisions for purchases
above the threshold.

5

B33

To clarify the circumstances in which a
waiver may be permitted, reflecting on
the Public Procurement Regulations and
(a) the nature of the market for the Goods, Works or Services the Procurement Policy Note 01/21:
has been investigated and it is demonstrated that a departure Procurement in an Emergency.
from this Contract Regulations is justified;
Additionally, to align with tested
(b) the circumstances of the proposed contract are covered by governance procedures and guidance
legislative exemptions whether under Public procurement
developed during Covid-19 response to
legislation and PPN guidance
ensure consistency.
(c) there are circumstances which are genuinely urgent,
and/or;
(d) it is in the overall best interest of the Council

Options that may be considered in exceptional circumstances
include:
● call off from an existing framework agreement or
dynamic purchasing system;
● call for competition using a standard procedure with
accelerated timescales;
● extending or modifying a contract during its term;
● direct award due to absence of competition or
protection of exclusive rights;
● direct award due to extreme urgency under public
procurement regulation

B34

A Waiver Request can be included in a procurement strategy
or award report but this decision cannot be enacted until the
waiver is approved first. Retrospective waivers cannot be
granted but will be noted.
As with any other procurement activity, when requesting a
waiver officers should document the progress of all
procurement procedures, ensuring that they keep sufficient
documentation to justify decisions taken in all stages of the
procurement procedure.
Where required, a contract award notice should be issued on
the Find a Tender service (FTS) for a direct award.
Any decisions for contract awards valued £1m and above,
made under the urgency procedures, where a waiver is
sought, Committee urgency procedures will be followed, as

6

outlined in the section 4A of the Constitution.
In the absence of the Chair of the Commissioning
Governance Board, the Vice-Chair can approve a waiver in
consultation with the Chair with the Corporate and Resource
Committee.
CONTRACT
REGULATIONS NO 7
(JOINT
COMMISSIONING)

Such a procurement exercise must have included the issue
and award of tenders conducted in a transparent, fair and
competitive manner, subject to independent scrutiny and audit
and must be compliant with Public Procurement regulations,
as amended.

To clarify the role of the local authority
when acting as a lead authority in a
collaborative procurement/ joint
commissioning exercise

CONTRACT
REGULATION NO 8
(INVITATION OF
TENDERS)

If the Contract involves works or services where the Council
could make recovery of costs from leaseholders pursuant to
s20 of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1985 the rights of the
leaseholders must be taken into account and a consultation
must be completed when considering the competition for the
works or services.

To clarify requirements for advertising
works and services pursuant to s20 of
the Landlord and Tenant Act 1985

CONTRACT

(1) The Corporate Commissioning representative will be

To ensure the appropriate level of

B35

Where it is proposed that the Council shall act as “Lead
Authority” in a Collaborative procurement/Joint
Commissioning exercise with one or more public authorities,
the terms of these Contract regulations shall apply to the
procurement process and the written agreement of the other
parties to the Collaboration, in the form of a Memorandum of
Understanding or Inter Authority Agreement, shall be obtained
to this effect.

To update in line with the amendments to
the Regulations in relation to the
withdrawal of the UK from the EU Public Procurement (Amendment Etc.)
(EU Exit) Regulations 2020 – SI 2020 No
1319 amends

7

REGULATION NO 9
(RECEIPT OF
TENDERS)

responsible for ensuring that all tenders/quotations received
are opened as soon as possible after the time limit for their
return.

delegation reflects the current practice.

(3) In exceptional circumstances, the deadline for receipt of
tenders may be extended, but only with the agreement of the
Corporate Head of Commissioning or their nominee, and only
if such extension of time will not disadvantage tenderers. No
extension to the deadline can be given once the original
deadline has passed unless no tenders have been received or
the extension is granted to all tenderers.
(i) A decision to award any contract with a value of over
£150,000 must only be made after the Award Report has
been reviewed by the Assistant Director Contracts and
Commercial or their nominee and, approved by the relevant
persons, in consultation with the Commissioning Governance
Board or the relevant Committee in line with the threshold set
out in Contract Regulations 3 (5):

To clarify requirements for the approval
of a contract award and steps to be
taken to ensure compliance with the
publication of the officer decision for
contracts valued £150k and above.

B36

CONTRACT
REGULATION NO 11
(AWARD OF TENDERS
PROCUREMENT
GATEWAY #2:
CONTRACT AWARD
FORM)

(2) Written notification of tender award shall only be given in
accordance with the Commissioning Framework and the
associated guidance and toolkit.
For any contracts with a value of £150,000 and over, the lead
officer must publish an officer decision notice in the Council’s
website.
CONTRACT
REGULATION NO 13
SOCIAL VALUE AND

(1) Social value must be considered in all commissioning
activity and must inform all decision making process. If social
value is considered not to be relevant, the reasons for this

To update in line with the agreed
principles set out in the RBK
Commissioning Strategy and Social

8

SMEs

must be clearly set out in the Sourcing Strategy. This means
that officers must consider how the service they are procuring
might improve the economic, social and environment
well-being of the area and the procurement process should
support Council outcomes to generate community benefits.

Value framework, as part of the cross
party members working group.

Officers should work proactively with the market to deliver the
objectives set out in the Council’s Commissioning Framework
and its associated policies, including paying staff working on
council contracts the London Living Wage, adopting a robust
approach to Modern Slavery, promoting good mental health in
the workplace and ensuring equality and diversity
considerations permeate all aspects of their delivery, and
responding to the climate change emergency.
B37

(2) Social value should form part of the tender evaluation
process and supplier obligations should form part of the
written contract document. A minimum of 10% evaluation
weighting to social value is mandated for all procurements
that are tendered through open competition.
(3) When planning a procurement, officers should consider
how the tender opportunity could be organised in order to
improve accessibility of Council contracts to Small and
Medium Enterprises.
CONTRACT
REGULATION NO 14
(SEALING OF
CONTRACTS)

Contracts valued under £500,000 shall be electronically
signed by the appropriate officer in accordance with the
Financial Scheme of Delegation using a secure electronic
method for recording their signature. A record should be
shared with the Commissioning Team and the legal

To clarify the requirements for the
execution of contract below £500,000
where the current provisions are silent.

9

representative upon the execution of the contract.
CONTRACT
REGULATION NO 15
(MATTERS TO BE
SPECIFIED IN
CONTRACTS)

The updated contract regulation will clarify the matters and
minimum requirements that should be specified in the form of
contract for purchases over £25,000. It will further clarify that
all contractors pass on to their subcontractors no less
favourable payment terms than they receive from the Council.

(‘PPN’) 07/20 titled - ‘Taking account of a bidder’s approach to
payment in the procurement of major contracts’ – which
updates and replaces PPN 04/19 with effect from 1 April
2021.

B38

Contractors must comply with prompt payment code and have
effective payment systems in place to ensure the reliability of
their supply chains. Where contractors are not required to
publish the payment data in accordance with the Reporting on
Payment Practices and Performance Regulations 2017, they
must demonstrate their compliance in line with the BEIS
Guidance to Reporting Payment Practices and Performance.
Officers must include appropriate mechanisms to verify the
contractor continues to meet the criteria, and how to deal with
deterioration in payment performance during the life of the
contract, utilising the default provisions to ensure the
supplier’s performance returns to the required standard.

To clarify the requirements relating to the
content of the Council’s terms and
conditions and reflect new requirements
set out in the PPN 07/20 effective from 1
April 2021

The Council is Living Wage Foundation accredited. The
accreditation requires that all contractors/subcontractors
working on Council contracts are paid in line with or above the
London Living Wage Foundation rates.
CONTRACT
REGULATION 16
(EXTENSIONS,
VARIATIONS AND

Permitted Extension
Clarifying/ updating provisions for enacting an extension
option within a contract that was included in the original award
and contract documentation. All other changes will be dealt

Existing drafting is ambiguous. Updates
are required to enhance the clarity and
understanding of the governance for
extensions and variations

10

MODIFICATIONS)

with as variations and must be compliant with Public Contract
Regulations.
Enacting a permitted extension within a contract (that was
included in the original award) for:
(i) contracts with the aggregated value of more than £1m, or
which take the aggregated value of a contract to more than
£1m, can be determined by Officers under delegated powers
in consultation with the CGB.
(ii) contracts with the aggregated value below £500k, subject
to satisfactory performance of the contract and no significant
risks/ issues identified, approval is from the relevant Executive
Director, in accordance with Financial Scheme of Delegation.
B39

(ii) CGB virtual approval for contracts with the aggregated
value £500k-£1m
Extensions by way of variation and modifications
Any variation in which the revised value exceeds £150k must
be approved by CGB
Implementing a three- tiered approach (below 10%,
10%-49%, 50%+) of the value of the variation against the total
value of the contract, streamlining the decision making
process for approving variations at CGB & Committee whilst
maintaining commissioning oversight for any variations over
10%.
Removing the 25% threshold - as indicated by benchmarking
11

and comparison with PCR

B40

Original contract value £150k-£500k & Revised contract
value £150k- £500k, approval as follows:
Modification Below 10%: Delegated Authority in
accordance with Financial Regs (ExD up to £500k).
Modification 10-49%: Delegated Authority in
accordance with Financial Regs (ExD up to £500k) in
consultation with Commissioning CHOs or AD
Modification 50%+: CGB
Original contract value £500k-£1m & Revised contract
value over £500k-£1m
All modifications to be approved by the CGB
Original contract value £1m+ & Revised contract value
£1m+
Modification up to 49% - CGB approval
Modification over 50%: Committee approval
Under Urgency
• Original contract value £150k-£1m & Revised contract
value £150k-£1m, approval as follows:
Modification Below 10%: Delegated Authority in
accordance with Financial Regs
Mod 10%-49%: Reg 16(7) Chair CGB (no CE)
Mod 50%+: Reg 16(7), Chair CGB + CE
• Original contract value £150k-£1m & Revised contract
value £1m+
Align to Part 4A of the Constitution - Procedure Rules
• Original contract value £1m+ & Revised contract value

12

£1m+
Modification up to 49%: Reg 16(7) applies. Approval by
Chair CGB in consultation with the CE
Modification 50%+: Urgency Powers Part 4A of
Constitution
ANNEX 1
STATEMENT OF
PRACTICE BY THE
COUNCIL IN RELATION
TO THE DISPOSAL OF
LAND

Sale to a public body (e.g. a Registered Social Landlord or
other partner) at less than market value where other benefits
are offered to the Council, provided that such sale is within the
General Disposal Consent (England) 2003, (see paragraph 7
below) and subject to the provisions set out in Chapter 3 of
Title XI of the Trade and Cooperation Agreement (the
‘TCA’European legislative requirements relating to State Aid.

ANNEX 2
PROCEDURES FOR
LOW VALUE
PROCUREMENTS
WITH AN ESTIMATED
VALUE NOT
EXCEEDING £150,000

Decisions and the reasons for awarding contracts below
£150k must be formally recorded in order that they can be
defended if challenged (either informally or through the
Courts) and to evidence that the delegated authority is used
correctly.

EU State aid rules no longer apply to
funding and other forms of support
measures granted to business by UK
public authorities.
New provisions are set out in Chapter 3
of Title XI of the Trade and Cooperation
Agreement (the ‘TCA’) and the UK’s
European Union (Future Relationship)
Act 2020 incorporated the TCA into UK
domestic law (by virtue of s 29).

To bring in line with the current practice
and enhance understanding of the
requirements. To avoid challenge.

A Delegated Decision record must be produced as soon as

13

B41

Minor changes to reflect updates to the responsibilities of the
Assistant Director / Head of Service and the relevant boards
where a property as surplus to operational requirements will
need to be approved; clarify the circumstances in which the
land transactions can fall under the PCR 2015 and
considerations that should be given in such case; and refresh
all relevant sections of this annex to reflect existing and best
practice.

To reflect existing practice with regard to
decision making and provide updates to
the terminology/ legislation.

B42

reasonably practicable after the decision making officer has
made the decision and must contain the following information:
● The date the decision was taken;
● A record of the decision taken along with the reasons
for the decision;
● Sourcing strategy - details of alternative options, if any,
considered and rejected, if relevant;
● Results of the competition and the Quotations or
Tenders received;
● The registered name of the contractor to be awarded
the Contract;
● Details of the contract price and relevant budget that
will be funding the Contract;
● Commencement and expiry dates;
● Confirmation that officers involved in the decision
making process are not conflicted, and have declared a
conflict of interest in relation to the decision.
● Any reason where there is a variance to the
procedures, requiring approval from the Head of
Commissioning or Assistant Director for Contracts &
Commercial
● Approval from the authorised officer in line with the
Financial Scheme of Delegations
Decisions relating to the appointment of Consultants or
Contractors must be documented and carried out in
accordance with the Council’s recruitment policies and the
IR35 toolkit.
The Lead officer shall set out the justification for seeking any

14

variation to the low value procedures in the delegated
decision form. Any variance to the procedures set out in
Annex 2, must be approved by the Corporate Head of
Commissioning. This includes seeking a direct award (not
following a quotation process for contracts valued £5k to
£25k) and/or not using the Council’s e-tendering system for
contracts over £25k. Retrospective waivers cannot be granted
but will be noted.

B43

To clarify that for contract valued £5k up to £25k, officers can
either:
● Seek three written quotes (two local suppliers)
preferably sought using e-tendering portal, with a
preference to sourcing from providers based in the
borough; or
● Advertise opportunity inviting Quotations or Tenders
using the e-tendering system
● Call off from suitable third party framework or DPS
using the e-tendering system
To clarify that for contract valued£25k up to £150k officers can
either:
● Advertised opportunity inviting Quotations or Tenders
using the e-tendering system
● Call off from suitable third party framework or DPS
using the e-tendering system
Decisions for extensions and contract modifications below
£150k:
● Extensions and Variation up to 49%, aggregated value
below £150k: Any officer in accordance with Financial

15

Scheme of Delegation
● Extensions and Variation 50%+, aggregated value
below £150k: Any officer in accordance with Financial
Scheme of Delegation, in consultation with Corporate
Head of Commissioning
● Any variation in which the revised value exceeds £150k
must be approved by CGB
For contracts over £25K a Request for Quotations process, as
detailed in the Commissioning Framework, must be
undertaken. Details of all contracts that have a value of of
£25k and above must be entered on to the Corporate
Contract Register by the Lead officer.
B44

Details of all contracts that have a value of £5,000 or greater
must be published by the Lead Officer in the Corporate
Contracts Register on the e-tendering system in accordance
with the Transparency Regulations 2015 and the Local
Government Transparency Code 2015 published by the
Department for Communities & LocalGovernment.
In addition, an electronic copy of the completed (dated)
Contract, where valued at £25,000 or more, must be uploaded
to the e-procurement portal along with a copy of the delegated
decision record.
Minor changes - To remove the Sourcing Strategy from the
table. To remove the text “and when it (e-tendering system)

16

must be used” to align with the details provided in the low
value table.
Ethics and Conflict of
Interest (new Clause)

No officer who has a potential conflict of interest or a direct or
indirect pecuniary interest in any Tender is permitted to be
involved in the Tendering process.
Any conflict of interest in any aspect of the procurement
process which may affect the award of a contract under these
Regulations must be declared as soon as it arises. Such
interests may include the ownership of shares in a
potential supplier, previous employment by a potential
supplier or the employment of a family member by a potential
supplier.

To set out the requirements for managing
conflict of interest in procurement. Ethics
and Conflict of Interest is not addressed
by the existing Regulations. This would
be required to ensure compliance,
fairness and transparency in the decision
making.

B45

Any officer of the Council participating in a contract award
decision or Contract Officer managing the procurement must
provide the Commissioning representative with a written
declaration of any such interests. The Commissioning
representative must either certify that such interests are
acceptable or take any necessary action in respect of
potential conflicts of interest and the officer should not
participate in the award of the contract by the Council.
All Council officers must comply with the relevant Code of
Conduct and the Council’s anti-fraud and corruption policy
and must not invite or accept any gift or reward
in respect of the award or performance of any Contract. High
standards of conduct during a procurement are obligatory.
Any gifts and hospitality from suppliers should be declared in
17

accordance with the Gifts and Hospitality Policy, and while a
tender process is ongoing, any such hospitality from suppliers
should be declined.
Corrupt behaviour will lead to dismissal and can be fraud or
another crime as defined under the Bribery Act 2010, and/or
section 117(2) of the Local Government Act 1972. Such
matters will be investigated and appropriate action taken,
including legal proceedings.
Contract Management,
Evaluation and Review
(new clause)

To set out the contract management
requirements in line with best practice
and recent developments to establish a
corporate approach to contract
management
B46

All contracts must be managed in accordance with the
council’s Contract Management Framework. For all high value
contracts, or contracts which are considered high risk, the
contract managers must ensure the following:
● maintain a risk register during the contract period;
● undertake appropriate risk assessments that have
considered service continuity, health and safety, fraud
and Information management risks;
● for identified risks, appropriate actions should be put in
place to manage them;
● escalate high risks to their Head of Service or Director
and the relevant departmental management team;
● formally review contracts on a quarterly basis and
regularly monitor and report (for contracts valued £1m
p/a and above) to the Corporate Commissioning Team
using the contract management scorecard;
● compliance with specification and contract costs and
identifying as early as possible any potential
over-spends;
● any Best Value requirements;
● user satisfaction; and

18

● the data quality and supplier information ensuring that
it is fit for purpose.
Officers with the responsibility for managing contracts must
ensure systematic and efficient management of the contract
including recording and execution of any changes to the
contracts and analysis for maximising operational and
financial performance and minimising risk.
Officers checking and approving invoices must ensure
invoices are in line with agreed contracts and should
challenge suppliers and contractors where necessary before
any payments are made and ensure that any penalties or
rebates are claimed.
B47

All high value contracts, or contracts which are considered
high risk, are subject to a Contract Management (Gateway 3
Report) post award, that should be completed annually, and
may be called in by the CGB at any point during the life of the
contract to review progress and the extent to which the
purchasing need and the contract objectives are met by the
contract, and any risks are properly managed and mitigated.

19

Response and Recovery Committee

C1

Appendix C

25 March 2021
Cambridge Road Estate Programme Delivery
Report by Naz Hussain - Director Of Place
Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Kerr - Leader Of The Council
Purpose of Report
To brief Members on the use of Compulsory Purchase powers and to seek a resolution
to use these powers as a last resort to acquire land within the boundary of the proposed
CPO1 area of the Cambridge Road Estate regeneration scheme.
Recommendation(s)
The Committee recommends Full Council to:
1. Subject to the Executive Director of Place being satisfied in relation to the
progress of the planning application for the development, authorise the making of
a CPO (“the Order”) under Section 226(1)(a) of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 ("the 1990 Act") to acquire the outstanding interests in the land shown
edged red on the plan attached at Appendix 1 (“the Order Land”) and the
submission of the Order to the Secretary of State for confirmation, and authorise
the confirmation of the Order if the Council is given the power to do so by the
Secretary of State under Section 14A of the Acquisition of Land Act 1981.
2. Authorise the Executive Director of Place, after consultation with the Leader of
the Council and the Portfolio Holder for Housing and Public Health, to make any
minor changes considered necessary to the Order Land and to finalise the
Statement of Reasons to support the Order.
3. Authorise the Executive Director of Place, after consultation with the Leader of
the Council and the Portfolio Holder for Housing and Public Health, to issue
notices and carry out actions under Section 172 of the Housing and Planning Act
2016 and where necessary, to enter on to land and carry out a survey of any land
which the Council proposes to acquire compulsorily.
4. Authorise the Executive Director of Place, after consultation with the Leader of
the Council and the Portfolio Holder for Housing and Public Health and following
confirmation of the Order, to publish and serve notice of confirmation of the Order,
together with notice of the Council’s intention to make a General Vesting
Declaration (“GVD”), and to make one or more GVDs (and to serve all
appropriate notices in connection therewith) or to serve notices to treat and
notices of entry (as appropriate) in respect of the Order Land.
5. Authorise the use of powers under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to
secure the removal of any apparatus of statutory undertakers or communication
code operators from the land shown coloured pink on the Map.

C2

6. Authorise the acquisition by agreement of all third party interests in and over the
Order Land under Section 227 of the 1990 Act before or after confirmation of the
Order and in respect of any new rights required for the development or use of the
Order Land.
7. Authorise the Executive Director of Place, after consultation with the Leader of
the Council and the Portfolio Holder for Housing and Public Health, to enter into
agreements and to make undertakings, contracts and transfers on behalf of the
Council with third parties with interests in the Order Land.
8. Authorise Executive Director of Place, after consultation with the Leader of the
Council and the Portfolio Holder for Housing and Public Health, to reach
agreement with parties otherwise affected by the Order in order to secure the
withdrawal of objections to the confirmation of the Order, including but not limited
to the creation of new rights, or the removal of any land from the Order, and to
defend any proceedings challenging the making or confirmation of the Order.

Benefits to the Community:
The making of a Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) will facilitate the regeneration of the
Cambridge Road Estate which provides a once in a generation opportunity to deliver new
modern homes, green spaces, play areas and safer streets and neighbourhoods. The
regeneration will provide:
● 2170 new homes, of which 767 will be council rent, 100 shared equity/ownership
with 1303 for private sale
● Modern, safe, secure accessible homes
● A new community centre, designed with stakeholders (which is to be built in phase
1 of the redevelopment)
● Safer pedestrian prioritised streets, green spaces and play areas
●

Improved parking arrangements

● More trees and planted areas
● A carbon-neutral energy centre to provide heating for the new development

Key Points
A.

The majority of the Cambridge Road Estate is already in the ownership of the
Council. However there are a number of third party interests that still need to be
acquired in order to enable the regeneration to be delivered. The majority of these
are dwellings that have been acquired through use of the right to buy with some
limited commercial interests.

B.

The Council intends to bring forward the regeneration of Cambridge Road Estate in
phases. Although acquisition by agreement is clearly preferable to the use of CPO

C3
it is evident that in order to secure the delivery of the Cambridge Road Estate
regeneration scheme within a reasonable time frame, the Council will need
compulsory purchase powers to ensure that all interests required can be secured.

C.

The Council has the power to make a Compulsory Purchase Order under Section
226 (1) (a) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended by the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004). This provides that the Council may
exercise its statutory powers to compulsorily acquire land where it believes that
such acquisition will facilitate the carrying out of development, redevelopment or
improvement on or in relation to the land. In order to exercise this power, the
Council must also be satisfied that it thinks:
“that the development, redevelopment or improvement is likely to contribute to the
achievement of one or more of the following objectives: (a) the promotion or
improvement of the economic wellbeing of their area; (b) the promotion or
improvement of the social wellbeing of their area: (c) the promotion or improvement
of the environmental wellbeing of their area (Section 226 (1A).”

D.

Guidance on Compulsory Purchase Process and the Crichel Down Rules (Ministry
of Housing, Communities and Local Government, February 2018 (“the CPO
Guidance)) states the need to seek to acquire by private treaty and whilst
compulsory purchase powers are an important tool for land assembly, sees a CPO
as being used as ‘a last resort’ in the event that attempts to acquire by agreement
fail. Under the CPO guidance, acquiring authorities are required to consider at what
point the land they are seeking to acquire will be needed and should plan a
compulsory purchase timetable at the same time as conducting negotiations.

E.

Having considered the project requirements, programme duration and phasing it is
not considered appropriate to make a single CPO covering the whole Estate.
Instead there will be a series of CPOs, the first of which will be CPO1 which will
focus on the earlier phases. The area identified in Annex 1 is for Phase 1 and
Phase 2 of the redevelopment - this is the “Order Land” for ‘CPO1’.

F.

The Council considers that the acquisition of the land identified in CPO1 will
facilitate the redevelopment or improvement of the land and is likely to contribute to
all of the objectives quoted in C above. This will ensure delivery and will provide a
balance between achieving the redevelopment objectives, funding requirements
(GLA Housing Zone & Building Council Homes for Londoners funding milestones),
cost effectiveness and risks.

G.

The CPO will need to be confirmed by the Secretary of State for the Ministry for
Housing, Communities and Government (MHCLG), who will consider any objections
to the making of the Order before reaching a decision.

Context
1.

At the Growth Committee held in June 2017 the Council approved the acquisition
of third party interests through negotiation, both on the Cambridge Road Estate
and those of strategic importance close to the boundary of the estate. To date of
this report, 27 interests have been acquired (out of a total of 179) across the
Estate, of which 24 are in CPO1.

2.

The same Growth Committee also recommended to Full Council to approve that
the Council proceed “in principle” with making Compulsory Purchase Orders

C4
(CPOs) on property interests identified within the proposed regeneration site that
have not been acquired voluntarily through negotiation. This was approved by
Full Council on 18 July 2017.

3.

The Estate is 8.6 hectares, and currently there are 832 homes on the Estate. The
Order Land comprises 3.7 hectares and 271 of the total number of homes are
within the Order Land.

4.

The Estate was built in the late 1960s and early 1970s and is now in need of
major investment in order to provide a more modern environment. It comprises a
mix of high-rise blocks, lower-rise flats and maisonette blocks as well as terraced
houses. The existing buildings include four 17-storey high-rises, low rise blocks
ranging from 2-storey houses and bungalows to 5-storey maisonettes and flat
blocks with elevated walkways and bridges to access upper levels.

5.

The Order Land is predominantly occupied by residential uses in 11 blocks and
37 houses. There are a small number of non-residential buildings comprising a
hotel (the Bull and Bush), as well as an existing single storey community building.
There are also non-residential uses within Tadlow comprising Council offices in
three units, a commercial use (No. 4) and the Housing Office.

6.

The Council has been in contact with the owners of third party interests within
CPO1 - Burwell, Caldecote, Chesterton Terrace, Chippenham, Comberton,
Connington, Fordham, Fulbourn, Grantchester, Tadlow, Washington Road,
Westwick, Willingham Way (2-14 evens only), the Bull and Bush Hotel, and Ely
Court (Clarion) - in order to purchase the leasehold and freehold interests
required to bring the whole of the CPO1 area into the Council’s ownership and
allow redevelopment of phases 1 and 2 to be delivered in full. The Council has
also begun the process of re-housing secure tenants and households in
temporary accommodation from these blocks. Currently, no new temporary
accommodation lettings are being made for any HRA properties across all
phases on Cambridge Road Estate.

7.

To date 24 properties have been acquired in the CPO1 area and a further 5 are
under offer to date. There are 40 interests (including 22 non-resident
homeowners) still to be acquired across CPO1 and negotiations will continue
throughout this process. There are likely to remain some third party ownerships
where a negotiated settlement will not be possible and therefore the CPO is
needed to secure those and ensure that the regeneration programme can be
delivered.

8.

All homeowners in the CPO1 area were contacted [following the July 2017 Full
Council ‘in principle’ decision’] to ask whether they were willing to sell their
properties by private treaty to the Council. Contact has continued and following
the successful ballot result in March 2020 further letters were sent in April and
June 2020 encouraging homeowners to make contact with the Council to discuss
their particular circumstances with a view to having their property valued which a
number have taken up. All homeowners whose properties have not yet had an ‘in
person’ valuation received a desktop valuation at the beginning of March 2021.
The number of interests still to be acquired equates to 21 properties, 6 in phase 1
and 15 in phase 2 of the CPO1 area.

C5
History of the CRE Regeneration programme

9.

The Council started work on its Estate Regeneration Programme (ERP) in June
2015 to improve the quality of Council housing and provide additional new homes
and facilities. Estate regeneration is considered essential to provide much
needed additional housing and improve the condition of the Council housing
estates to make them places where people want to live.

10.

The aims and objectives of the ERP are:
a.

Provide additional housing for the Borough as an important aspect of
planning for growth strategy

b.

Providing more choice of size and type of homes including affordable rented,
shared ownership and home ownership

c.

More efficient use of Housing Revenue Account (HRA) land asset with an
increased income stream

d.

Building sustainable homes and communities where people want to live

e.

Improving the physical character of the Borough

f.

Environmental improvements with more energy efficient homes.

11.

Some of the current Council housing stock does not meet that requirement and
will not be able to cope with the growth of population that Kingston will see over
the next few decades. The ERP will support Kingston’s proposals for growth,
maximising the number of homes to be developed on its estates whilst providing
all necessary amenities and infrastructure, including open space, and achieving
excellent quality design and construction.

12.

The regeneration of the Estate, in partnership with residents and the local
community, is central to the ERP. In June 2015, the Council agreed to commence
preparatory work on the Estate regeneration proposals including undertaking
feasibility, due diligence, viability and strategy work.

13.

A primary driver for selecting the Estate was to improve the quality of housing for
current residents.

14.

Due to the relatively low density of the Estate and its proximity to transport routes
and amenities, redevelopment of the Estate is also an opportunity to build a
significant number of new homes including additional Council homes. This is an
important factor as the Council is committed to providing much needed new
housing and wants to significantly increase housing of all tenures within the
Borough.
Evolution of the Estate regeneration

15.

The initial work done by the Council was to look at the options available for the
regeneration of the Estate. The option assessment criteria were set by the
Council in 2015 as follows:

a.

C6
Additional number of homes - reflecting the Council’s planning for growth
strategy

b.

Viability - reflecting the need for the programme to be affordable and
sustainable

c.

Quality of homes - reflecting the need to improve the condition of the
Council’s estates and build sustainable and more energy efficient homes

d.

Quality of environment - reflecting the need for the environmental
improvements and to build sustainable homes and communities where
people want to live

e.

Impact on the wider area - reflecting the need to improve the physical
character of the Borough

16.

Fourteen development options were initially assessed as part of the Estate
design feasibility study in [2017]. These scenarios ranged from the retention of all
blocks with infill development to the redevelopment of the entire Estate.

17.

Nine scenarios were subsequently assessed in more detail with regard to viability
as part of the development and property consultant commission. The outcome of
this work identified three options as viable or very nearly viable. These were:
a.

Refurbishment of all four towers only. Redevelopment of all other properties

b.

Refurbishment of two towers only (Madingley and Brinkley). Redevelopment
of all other properties

c.

Complete redevelopment of the Estate

18.

In March 2017, the Council agreed to progress the regeneration of the Estate by
way of a 50:50 joint venture with a development partner.

19.

The three options, described in point 17 above underwent further stakeholder
and residents engagement including soft market testing and preparation of the
initial masterplan. In June 2017 it was agreed to go ahead with full
redevelopment. This was the recommended route as it had the advantages of
allowing the council equal control over the development going forward and an
appropriate balance of risk and reward. It also enabled the council to access
skills and experience in regeneration that it did not have in-house.

20.

The Council has received Housing Zone (HZ) and Building Council Homes for
Londoners (BCHfL) grant funding from the Greater London Authority (GLA) to
help build 767 social rented and 100 shared equity/ownership units which are
subject meeting specific milestones such as start on sites and completions.

21.

In June 2017 the Council authorised officers to start a process of buying back
leasehold and freehold properties early, funded by a loan from the GLA.

22.

In July 2017 at Full Council, Members resolved that the Council proceed ‘in
principle’ with making Compulsory Purchase Orders (CPOs) on property interests
identified within the proposed regeneration site (Cambridge Road Estate) that
have not been acquired voluntarily through negotiation.

C7

23.

Following the above an initial demolition notice was served by the Council on the
entire Estate in July 2017 preventing further disposals under the Right to buy
legislation.

24.

In preparation for the JV partner procurement exercise the Council drafted a
Strategic Development Brief (July 2017, and revised in April 2018) in consultation
with the Council’s Urban Design Officer, external architectural advisors, housing
team members and the CRE Residents’ Steering Group. Initial capacity work was
also undertaken on the potential for redevelopment and concluded that c2000
homes could be accommodated on the site, subject to planning.

25.

In March 2018 the Council approved decant policies for both Council tenants,
Housing Association tenants approved in September 2019 and leaseholders/
freeholders affected by re-development. This was done to formalise the Council’s
commitment to a right to return for current Council secure tenants and to provide
opportunities for owner occupiers to move into a new home on the Estate.

26.

If a resident owner does not have the required equity or enough funds to buy a
new home closeby or in the regenerated neighbourhood, the Council will help
them to buy a shared equity or shared ownership home on the new estate or
elsewhere.

27.

In November 2018 following a rigorous procurement process which took place
over 18 months the Council selected Countryside Properties (UK) Ltd as their
partner for the redevelopment of the Estate.

28.

Since the introduction of the new administration in May 2018 it is a key priority of
the Council to ensure that residents are at the heart of decision-making for the
Estate. Before proceeding with the redevelopment proposals the Council decided
to carry out its own resident ballot. From July 2018 the GLA required any new
funding applications for estate regeneration to include provision for holding a
ballot. Whilst the Council had already secured GLA funding and was not legally
required to carry out a ballot the Council resolved to carry out a ballot in order to
enable residents to determine whether the proposed regeneration should
proceed.

29.

In March 2020 residents of the Estate voted overwhelmingly in favour of
Council’s plans to regenerate the Estate. On a turnout of 86%, 73% of eligible
residents backed the plans. The ballot was run independently and was open to
all eligible residents of the Estate using the GLA criteria.

30.

On 24 April 2019 Full Council resolved to establish a Limited Liability Partnership
(LLP).

31.

After many months of consultation with residents and other stakeholders the
Outline masterplan design and detailed Phase 1 planning application was
submitted in November 2020.

Proposal and Options

C8

32.

Vacant possession of the Order Land is required in order for the redevelopment
to be delivered in accordance with the programme and funding milestones.
Vacant possession can only be achieved by acquiring the necessary leasehold
and freehold interests that exist. The Council has and will continue to attempt to
acquire these interests by negotiation, however, this may not be possible in all
cases. Where agreement by negotiation is not possible the only other option is to
acquire the interests through the exercise of the Council’s powers of compulsory
purchase.

33.

An option would be not to make a CPO and seek to acquire all interests through
negotiation. Through consultation with all third party interests in CPO1 a small
number of non-resident homeowners have indicated that they are highly unlikely
to reach agreement with the Council by negotiation. Therefore critical programme
milestones may not be achieved, GLA funding would be jeopardised which would
result in the regeneration programme not being able to progress in line with the
overwhelming mandate from the resident ballot.

Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended): Section 226 Powers & guidance
34.

The Council has the power to make a Compulsory Purchase Order under Section
226 (1) (a) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended by the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004). This provides that the Council
may exercise its statutory powers to compulsorily acquire land where it believes
that such acquisition will facilitate the carrying out of development,
redevelopment or improvement on or in relation to the land. In order to exercise
this power, the Council must also be satisfied that it thinks:
“that the development, redevelopment or improvement is likely to contribute
to the achievement of one or more of the following objectives: (a) the
promotion or improvement of the economic wellbeing of their area; (b) the
promotion or improvement of the social wellbeing of their area: (c) the
promotion or improvement of the environmental wellbeing of their area
(Section 226 (1A).”

35.

The Council considers that the acquisition of the land identified as part of CPO1
will facilitate the redevelopment or improvement of the land and is likely to
contribute to all of the objectives quoted above.

36.

Guidance on Compulsory Purchase Process and the Crichel Down Rules
(Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government, February 2018 (“the
CPO Guidance)) states the need to seek to acquire by private treaty and sees a
CPO as being used as ‘a last resort’. The CPO Guidance states:
“Compulsory purchase powers are an important tool to use as a means of
assembling the land needed to help deliver social, environmental and economic
change. Used properly, they can contribute towards effective and efficient urban
and rural regeneration, essential infrastructure, the revitalisation of communities,
and the promotion of business – leading to improvements in quality of life.”
It also states that:

C9
“The compulsory purchase of land is intended as a last resort in the event that
attempts to acquire by agreement fail, Acquiring authorities should nevertheless
consider at what point the land they are seeking to acquire will be needed and,
as a contingent measure should plan a compulsory purchase timetable at the
same time as conducting negotiations. Given the amount of time which needs to
be allowed to complete the compulsory purchase process it is often sensible for
the acquiring authority to initiate the formal procedures in parallel with such
negotiations”.

37.

Following the making of the CPO, notices will need to be served on all those
affected by the CPO, site notices will be erected, and notices published in the
press to state that the CPO has been made and is being submitted to the
Secretary of State for confirmation. The notices will explain the process for
people to object to the CPO if they wish to.

38.

If there are objections, an Inspector (appointed by MHCLG) considers the CPO
and hears from the objectors before producing a report setting out their
recommendations. The Secretary of State considers the Inspector’s report and
decides to confirm, modify or reject the CPO. If the CPO is confirmed the Council
will be entitled to secure vacant possession of the third party land and will be
required to pay compensation to the owners. If the amount of compensation can’t
be agreed then this can be determined by a Tribunal. There are formal rules
governing the amount of compensation payable known as the Compensation
Code. The objective of the Code is that a claimant should be no worse nor better
off after the acquisition than they were before. Compensation will comprise the
market value of the property, any other losses which are a direct consequence of
the compulsory purchase and an additional home loss payment of up to 10% of
the market value of the property. Reasonable professional fees incurred in
making the claim such as surveyor’s and legal fees will also be compensated.

39.

The Council has made repeated attempts to secure the outstanding interests by
negotiation but it has not been possible to acquire all the interests that are
required. It is considered that the benefits of the regeneration are significant and
outweigh the private interests remaining so that the use of CPO is justified.
Those whose interests are acquired by CPO will be compensated in full under
the Compensation Code.

Planning Policy
40.

The redevelopment of the Order Land fully accords with all relevant strands of
national, regional and local planning policy and guidance aimed at promoting
sustainable development.

41.

The following sets out the national, regional and local policy framework relevant
to the development proposals for the Order Land.
National Planning Policy Framework

42.

The NPPF (2019) articulates the Government’s vision for sustainable
development and highlights that it is a “golden thread running through
plan-making and decision-taking” which is characterised by three overarching

C10
objectives which are interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually
supportive ways:

a.

An economic objective – to help build a strong, responsive and competitive
economy, by ensuring that sufficient land of the right types is available in the
right places and at the right time to support growth, innovation and improved
productivity and by identifying and coordinating the provision of
infrastructure.

b.

A social objective – to support strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by
ensuring that a sufficient number and range of homes can be provided to
meet the needs of present and future generations; and by fostering a
well-designed and safe built environment, with accessible services and open
spaces that reflect current and future needs and support communities’
health, social and cultural well-being.

c.

An environmental objective – to contribute to protecting and enhancing our
natural built and historic environment; including making effective use of land,
helping to improve biodiversity, using natural resources prudently, minimising
waste and pollution and mitigating and adapting to climate change, including
moving to a low carbon economy.

43.

The NPPF states that “to support the Government’s objective of significantly
boosting the supply of homes, it is important that a sufficient amount and variety
of land can come forward where it is needed, that the needs of groups with
specific housing requirements are addressed and that land with permission is
developed without unnecessary delay”.

44.

Achieving well designed places is a fundamental aspect of the NPPF and
underpins the objective of creating better places in which to live and work.

45.

It is considered that the proposals meet the objectives of the NPPF by delivering
high quality and sustainable homes of a range of tenures to meet local housing
needs and the CPO will support the delivery of new homes without unnecessary
delay.
New London Plan (March 2021)

46.

Following extensive consultation, Examination in Public and review by the
Planning Inspectorate, the New London Plan was published on 2 March 2021.

47.

A target of 9,640 new homes is set for the RBK between 2019/20 and 2028/29,
resulting in an annual monitoring target of 964 new units per annum.

48.

Policy H8 explicitly relates to estate regeneration and states that the loss of
existing housing is generally only acceptable where the housing is replaced at
existing or higher densities with at least the equivalent level of overall floorspace.
The Plan states that the aims of estate regeneration typically fall into three
categories: maintaining good quality homes; maintaining safe homes and
improving the social, economic and physical environment in which homes are
located.

49.

Where social rented floor space is lost, it should be replaced by general needs
rented accommodation with rents at levels based on that which has been lost.

C11
The delivery of additional affordable housing should be maximised. All Estate
regeneration schemes should follow the Viability Tested Route, under Policy H8.
This requires detailed supporting viability evidence to be submitted in a
standardised and accessible format as part of the application and the borough,
and where relevant the Mayor, will scrutinise the viability information to ascertain
the maximum level of affordable housing. Viability tested schemes will be subject
to review.

50.

The Estate is located within the Kingston Opportunity Area (OA). The New
London Plan (2021) identifies the Kingston OA as an area capable of
accommodating development and intensification to provide leisure, cultural and
night-time activity, commercial and retail uses, as well as high density housing.

51.

The Kingston OA as it stands is premised on the delivery of Crossrail 2. Due to
current funding pressures the delivery of Crossrail 2 has been deprioritised and is
now unlikely to come forward during the London Plan period. Discussions with
GLA regarding the possibility of the reframing of an OA in support of different
spatial strategy objectives for Kingston are being considered.

52.

The New London Plan (2021) has removed the formal density matrix and instead
Policy D4 encourages development proposals to make the most efficient use of
land and be developed at the optimum density, taking into account the site
context, connectivity and accessibility, and capacity of surrounding infrastructure.
Better Homes for Local People - The Mayor’s Good Practice Guide to Estate
Regeneration (February 2018)

53.

The Mayor also published his Good Practice Guide to Estate Regeneration which
was consulted on between December 2016 and March 2017.

54.

The fundamental approach underlying the process should always be to engage
early and meaningfully with existing residents. As the primary stakeholders,
residents of an estate must be given sufficient opportunity to engage with and
shape any proposals that will affect their homes, and they should be pro-actively
supported to do so.

55.

The Mayor believes that, where demolition and rebuilding is chosen as part of an
estate regeneration, this should only happen where it does not result in a loss of
social housing, or where all other options have been exhausted.
Housing Zone

56.

As part of the Mayor’s Housing Strategy thirty Housing Zones have been
designated across London, in partnership with London boroughs and their
development partners.

57.

A total of £600 million in funding has been made available for the construction of
75,000 new homes. Kingston has been designated in the London Plan as an
Opportunity benefitting from hectare Housing Zone funding and Cambridge
Road Estate identified as an area for significant change. The Estate regeneration
programme has been allocated GLA funding of £46.2m and Housing Zone status
will help to accelerate the delivery of housing on the site.

The Local Policy Context

C12

58.

At the local level, the Council’s development plan comprises the London Plan
(2021) and the Core Strategy (2012). The Council has also adopted the Kingston
Town Centre Area Action Plan (2008) however the Estate is not located within
this plan boundary.

59.

The Estate is not currently allocated or designated for any use. Kingston
Cemetery bounds the site to the south and this is allocated as a Site of
Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC), part of the Metropolitan Open Land
(MOL) and as part of a Green Chain. It’s environmental significance and the
impact of any new development upon this will therefore be a key consideration.

60.

Core Strategy Policy DM4 sets out the Council’s approach to water management
and flood risk. RBK requires all new development proposals to be designed to
take account of the impacts of climate change, including water conservation and
increase flood risk from fluvial and surface water flooding.

61.

With regards to the Estate, the Core Strategy explicitly states that in terms of the
majority of new housing in the borough, outside of Kingston Town Centre, the
Council will first promote the regeneration of the Cambridge Road Estate.
Specific reference in the Core Strategy to the Estate is in:
- Vision for the plan
- Policy KT1 Kingston Town Neighbourhood
- Policy HV1 Hogsmill Valley Key Area of Change

62.

As highlighted above, land to the south of the Estate is allocated as the Hogsmill
Valley Key Area of Change. The Core Strategy highlights the Council’s
aspirations to explore opportunities for a Combined Cooling and Heat Plant and
setting up a District Heat Network in this area with connections to surrounding
sites, including into the Cambridge Road Estate.

63.

As well as place specific policies, the Core Strategy also outlines a number of
thematic policies. The key policies in relation to the proposed redevelopment of
the Cambridge Road Estate are highlighted below. CS Policy CS10 states that
the Council will seek to ensure that a broad mix of accommodation options are
available to residents and that a range of local housing needs are met.

64.

Proposals for new residential development should incorporate a mix of unit sizes
and types and provide a minimum of 30% of dwellings as three or more bedroom
units, unless it can be robustly demonstrated that this would be unsuitable or
unviable. Furthermore, 10% of units should be wheelchair accessible.

65.

Policy DM15 encourages applications for 100% affordable housing schemes, but
will expect sites of 10 or more units to provide at least 50% of the units as
affordable housing, with a tenure split of 70:30 between Social/ Affordable Rent
and Intermediate Provision.

66.

Policy CS8 seeks to protect the primarily suburban character of the Borough. The
council will require good design and will seek to ensure that new development:
Recognises distinctive local features and character; Has regard to the historic

C13
and natural environment; Helps enhance locally distinctive places of high
architectural and urban design quality; Accords with neighbourhood ‘strategies
for delivery’ set out under ‘character design and heritage’; and Relates well and
connects to its surroundings.

67.

Tall buildings may be appropriate in the Borough’s town centres; however, some
parts of these areas will be inappropriate or too sensitive for such buildings.
Policy DM11 states new development should be supported by a contextual
statement that demonstrates a clear understanding and analysis of the local
character of the area.

68.

The policy states that the Council will adopt a more flexible approach to new
development where the existing development lacks any identifiable or cohesive
character and/or is located in a lower quality environment. CS Policy DM10
seeks to safeguard residential amenities in terms of privacy, outlook,
sunlight/daylight, avoidance of visual intrusion and noise and disturbances.

69.

With regards to the local economy, the Council will encourage the provision of
local employment opportunities suitable for all residents, especially in the vicinity
of the Cambridge Road Estate. Cambridge Road Estate is identified as a Local
Centre that should provide everyday goods and services (retail, community and
business) that are easily accessible to local residents and reduce the need to
travel.

70.

In relation to the existing community centre on the site, Policy DM24 states that
the Council will resist the loss of existing community facilities, unless there is
evidence to suggest the facility is no longer needed, it has been vacant and
marketed for community use without success or it can be re-provided elsewhere
or in a different way. Any proposal for new retail floorspace would need to satisfy
Policy DM20. The Council are likely to support some commercial and leisure
uses that complement the residential development. This could include a small
convenience store or leisure provision such as a gym which would be considered
important to service the community that would be created as part of the
redevelopment of the site.
Emerging Local Planning Policy

71.

The Council consulted on their Early Engagement on the Local Plan May-June
2019 (Reg 18) and are to be carrying out Further Engagement May-August 2021
(Reg 18). Following this it is intended that the first draft Local Plan, is to be
prepared with the intention to consult on this in June/ July 2022.
Conclusion

72.

The proposals for the redevelopment of the Estate and for Phase 1& 2 in
particular accord with all relevant national and local planning policies. At this
stage planning permission has not yet been granted and the recommendation is
therefore to make the CPO once the Council is satisfied in relation to the
progress of the planning application which is detailed in the following section of
the report. At the date of considering whether to confirm the CPO the Secretary
of State will need to be satisfied that there is no planning reason why the
redevelopment proposals that underlie the Order will not be delivered.

73.

C14
The Council has given careful consideration to the need for each parcel of land
included in the Order Land. The Council is satisfied that the redevelopment of the
Order land will result in an improvement to the economic, social and
environmental wellbeing of its area, as explained in Section 11 below, and that
each parcel of land is required in order to deliver these benefits.

Proposed scheme and planning position
74.

The regeneration scheme is to be delivered on a phased programme. The new
homes and associated infrastructure of Phases 1 & 2 are included in the Order
Land. The phased approach to delivery gives the opportunity for existing estate
residents to move directly into their new home from their existing. The 286 new
affordable homes delivered across Phase 1 & 2 will provide the new homes for
residents in later phases to move into and thus provide the catalyst for the
ongoing regeneration of the estate.

75.

A planning application for the development of the whole Estate was submitted to
the Council in November 2020 and is awaiting determination. It is a hybrid
application which seeks detailed planning permission for Phase 1 (which is within
the CPO1 area) and outline planning permission for the remaining 4 phases.
CPO1 comprises Phases 1 and 2 within the planning application.

76.

Phase 1 will comprise: 452 residential units, 1,250sqm community floorspace,
290 sqm of flexible office floorspace and 395 sqm of flexible retail/commercial
floorspace. Phase 1 will also provide publicly accessible open space and
associated landscaping works, beginning the process of the wider regeneration
of the estate.

77.

In addition to the new homes Phase 1 also delivers a new purpose built
community centre which will become a focal point for the coming together of the
new community. The space is being designed with the input of the residents and
stakeholders so that the end product is one that is best suited to meet their
needs and aspirations. The early delivery of the centre provides the opportunity
for existing, new and rehomed residents to establish a welcoming and inclusive
community hub.

78.

Within Phase 1 are Blocks B, C and E. The phase is divided across two parts of
the masterplan, with Block C situated at the north of the Site next to the Hawks
Road and Cambridge Road Junction. Block B and E form the south western part
of the Site next to the Rowells Road and Piper Road.

79.

Building B proposes to deliver a total of 45 new homes which are likely to consist
of a mix of tenures. Block B is a 6-storey building with a top floor element that is
set back.

80.

Building C proposes to deliver a total of 202 new homes which are likely to
consist of a mix of tenures. As the gateway building into the Site, Block C is
defined as a ‘special’ Townscape Marker building within the masterplan that
assists with way-finding and placemaking. The building would have a 13-storey
part on the north western corner (Block C1), with a 12 storey part (Block C2) to
the east and a 10 storey part (Block C3) to the south. The layout of Block C
enables part of the Washington Piper Green Route to be delivered to the west of
the Block and for this public realm improvement to merge with the enhanced

C15
setting to the north of Block C between the building and Hawks Road/ Cambridge
Road.

81.

Building E proposes to deliver a total of 206 new homes which are likely to
consist of a mix of tenures. Block E is a podium Block, with a shared landscaped
amenity space within the middle of the building at first floor level. Block E1 and
E2 sit at the north of the building and are 12 storeys in height, with 3 x 4 storey
townhouses between. This arrangement is replicated at the southern end of the
building with an 11 storey Block (E3) and 8 storey Block (E4) with 3 x 4 storey
townhouses between.

82.

As well as the delivery of 452 new homes, Phase 1 also delivers the benefit of
non-residential uses to the masterplan in the form of a community centre, flexible
office space and retail/commercial space within Plot C. Through including these
uses in Phase 1, the economic and community benefits of the regeneration can
be delivered early to new and existing residents of the estate.

83.

Detailed Phase 2 proposals will be brought forward in a later Reserved Matters
Application, however the illustrative masterplan currently envisages that Phase 2
will deliver 395 new homes across three plots; A, D and P.

84.

The illustrative masterplan proposes that Phase 2 will deliver the following:
Plot A – 118 new homes
Plot D – 222 new homes
Plot P – 55 new homes

85.

Phase 2 is anticipated to provide new housing typologies, with some lower
density blocks and houses that integrate with the residential areas to the West of
the estate.

86.

Crucially, Phase 2 is anticipated to deliver approximately 106 new affordable
homes, offering decant homes for estate residents in later phases of
development and unlocking land for further redevelopment of the wider estate.
Delivery of these plots completes the Western side of the estate redevelopment,
creating a new sense of place and connectivity from Hawks Road through to
Piper Road.

87.

Completion of the CRE regeneration scheme will conclude works to the west of
the Estate and present a clear and complete transformation. Delivery of the
Phase 2 plots will stitch together the two Phase 1 parcels of land to create a
feeling of cohesion and deliver a key, continuous route from Hawks Road to
Piper Road. Though completion of Phases 3-5 is needed to deliver the complete
masterplan vision, the delivery of Phases 1 and 2 achieve a sense of
regeneration for much of the estate and begins to deliver the wider placemaking
and design objectives. In addition to the benefit of completing the Western side of
the estate redevelopment, the first two phases also deliver approximately 950
new homes, making significant progress towards the housing delivery targets of
the masterplan.

88.

The energy strategy for the regeneration follows the principles of the London
Plan and the Be Lean, Be Clean, Be Green hierarchy. It is proposed that energy

C16
to provide the heating and hot water demands of the new homes is delivered via
a centralised energy centre and a distribution network that is being developed in
a partnership between the Council and Thames Water. The energy centre is
located in Block E within the Phase 1 area. Provision will be made to connect all
of the future phases to the energy centre. Early delivery of the energy centre
provides the most efficient way of delivery on the targets set by the energy
strategy.

Justification of use for CPO powers
89.

It is considered that the implementation of the development on the Order Land
will secure the improvement of social, economic and environmental well-being in
the area.

90.

A primary driver for the project is to improve the quality of housing for current
residents. The estate suffers from significant condition issues but also
fundamental design flaws that would make it impossible to deliver modern day
‘secure by design’ (including designing out crime and improving accessibility
standards) through refurbishment due to layout and changes of levels across the
site. The new housing to be provided will allow tenants and leaseholders to
benefit from higher standards in terms of better insulated homes, increased
accessibility and connectivity. Due to the relatively low density of the estate and
its proximity to transport routes and amenities, redevelopment of the estate is
also an opportunity to build a significant number of additional homes including
additional social rented homes. This is an important factor as the council is
committed to providing much needed new housing and is required by central
government and the GLA to significantly increase housing of all tenures within
the borough. The redevelopment will also allow the council to deliver a step
change in the quality of the public spaces, parks, play spaces and community
spaces available to CRE residents. In addition, the project includes the
requirement that it delivers new opportunities for employment, training, health
and well-being for residents and economic opportunities for local businesses.

91.

Since the approval of the Land Acquisition strategy in 2017 and receiving
Housing Zone loan from the GLA, the Council have been negotiating and buying
back properties in phases 1 and 2 of the ERP based on the Freehold and
Leaseholder Decant policy which was approved at September 2017 Housing Sub
committee. All homeowners in CPO1 have received a valuation for their property.
The Council has to date purchased 24 properties by private treaty. Of the
remaining 40 properties to be acquired in CPO1, 12 are currently under offer. 24
of the 40 remaining properties to be acquired are in phase 2 - a number of these
homeowners have expressed a desire to hold onto their property until closer to
the time when the property is required for demolition. There have been a handful
of homeowners who have been unwilling to engage with the Council or have
indicated that the valuation process of properties stated in the Freehold and
Decant policy is unfair.

92.

The need to ensure timely delivery of vacant possession is critical in meeting
detailed milestones which are linked to the GLA Housing Zone and BCHfL
funding grant received. Without this funding the scheme viability is compromised
and the improvements to the well-being of residents of Cambridge Road Estate
as described above would not be delivered.

Human Rights Considerations
93.

C17

The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporated into domestic law the European
Convention on Human Rights ("the Convention"). Specific rights protected by the
Convention include, amongst others:
○ the right of everyone to the peaceful enjoyment of their possessions, which
can only be impinged upon in the public interest and subject to relevant
national and international laws;
○ the right to a fair and public hearing for those affected by the making of a
CPO, including those whose property rights are affected by the same; and
○ the right to a private and family life, home and correspondence, which again
can only be impinged upon in accordance with law and where such
encroachment is necessary in the interest of national security, public safety
or the economic well-being of the country.

94.

The above rights would be affected by the use of compulsory purchase powers to
acquire land and interests for the purpose of regenerating the Estate. However,
the European Court has recognised that "regard must be had to the fair balance
that has to be struck between competing interests of the individual and of the
community as a whole". Any interference with a Convention right must be
necessary and proportionate.

95.

In light of the significant public benefit which would arise from the regeneration of
the Estate, and the fact that the known owners and occupiers of the Order Land
within the site have been contacted regarding the regeneration and will, should
their land be compulsorily acquired, qualify for compensation under the
Compensation Code, it is considered that it is appropriate to make the CPO. The
CPO is not considered to constitute an unlawful interference with any individuals'
rights under the Convention, including in particular any property rights.

96.

The Council is of the view that there is a compelling case in the public interest
that the provision of new residential accommodation and the associated benefits
of the development outweigh the impact on any private interests in the Order
Land. It also believes that the use of compulsory purchase powers to achieve its
regeneration objectives for the Estate are proportionate to any potential
interference with human rights.

Consultations and Engagement
97.

Throughout the regeneration programme, leaseholders and freeholders in CPO1
have had the opportunity to participate in consultation events, and have been
provided with regular updates through community events, as well as steering
group meetings and newsletters.

98.

As described in point 21 the Council have been buying back properties on CRE
since late 2017 and since then there have been numerous attempts to engage
with homeowners with regards to the purchase of their property and to discuss
the options available to them.

99.

C18
At the beginning of 2020 all homeowners (across the whole scheme) were
written to inviting them for a meeting to discuss their particular situations.

100.

This was followed with the resident ballot where further engagement took place
with newsletters and extensive door knocking.

101.

In the Summer of 2020, when Covid lockdown restrictions eased, the Council
wrote to all homeowners in CPO1 asking if they would like their property valued
which a number took up.

102.

In February 2021 all resident homeowners in CPO1 received a ‘Homeowners
Guidance’ booklet explaining the valuation process, options available to them
and the CPO process. At the same time all homeowners in CPO1 who have yet
to take up the opportunity to have their property valued were provided with a
desktop valuation figure for their property.

Timescale
103.

Once a CPO is made the programme is no longer wholly in the control of the
Council, but is subject to a timetable led by the Planning Inspector. This said, a
CPO timetable has been drafted with advice from the Council’s legal advisor,
Shoosmiths, which provides an outline indication of the timetable process:
a) If no relevant objections, (i.e. objections from parties with an interest included
in the Order) are received, or any that are received are withdrawn it should
be possible to confirm the CPO within 12 weeks from its making.
b) If there are relevant objections, these will need to be addressed before the
CPO is confirmed. It may be possible to reach agreements with objectors
which result in the withdrawal of objections but if this is not possible they will
be considered at a Public Local Inquiry.
c) The inquiry would be held by an independent Inspector who would report to
the Secretary of State. The Secretary of State would then decide whether to
confirm the Order. The date of the inquiry and it's duration will be set by the
Inspector. Generally, the date of the inquiry will be about six months after the
CPO is made. The length of the inquiry will depend on the number of
objections received but a reasonable estimate would be one to two weeks.
Following the inquiry the Inspector will write a report with a recommendation
to either confirm (with or without modifications) or reject the CPO. The
Secretary of State’s timescale is difficult to estimate but likely to be around
3-4 months from the Inquiry.

Financial Context
104.

The council is operating in an increasingly challenging financial environment.
Kingston faced a number of financial challenges in the medium to longer term even before the COVID-19 outbreak, which has further added to these
challenges. The economic and financial consequences of the pandemic, growing
demand for services, and limited government grant funding make it difficult to find
adequate funds to meet the borough's needs.

105.

106.

C19
The future of local government finance faces a significant level of uncertainty.
The impact of the Fair Funding Review and a future review of business rates is
currently unknown, and the lasting effects of COVID-19 on our residents, local
businesses and the Council itself remain uncertain.

Despite these challenges the council has a drive and commitment to ensure it is
doing the best for residents and communities.

Resource Implications
107.

This report seeks to update members on the use of Compulsory Purchase
Powers and seek a resolution to use these powers as a last resort to acquire
land within the boundary of the proposed Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO1)
areas of the Cambridge Road Estate (CRE) regeneration scheme. The financial
detail is contained in Annex 3 (Confidential) of this report.

108.

The Council has engaged BNP Paribas to advise in relation to the valuation and
acquisition of the Buybacks. They have prepared an Acquisitions Plan which
identifies the Buybacks which the Council is proposing to complete using the
recoverable loan funding from GLA. BNP Paribas have been in active
discussions with a number of the freehold and leasehold owners and terms have
already been agreed on several of the Buybacks.

109.

On the 24 April 2019 Full Council awarded the contract for the regeneration of
the Cambridge Road Estate to Countryside (UK) Ltd and on the 24th September
2020 a Limited Liability Partnership (with the equal partners in the Joint Venture
being the Council and Countryside), (the LLP), was established to deliver the
CRE regeneration programme. Also agreed was the Phase 1 Business plan
which included Land Assembly costs transferring to the LLP subsequent to the
transfer of Phase 1 Land. Further the balance of the GLA loan will be
passported to the LLP as will all the residual and ongoing CPO costs for Phase
1.

110.

As per Phase 1 of the LLP Business plan, once the units have been completed,
the Revenue generated from sales of these units will be used to redeem any
Loans to the LLP including the GLA Loan.

Legal Implications
111.

The CPO process is set out in statute and guidance and is subject to the
overview of the Secretary of State. The balance of the need for the regeneration
against the rights of owners of individual interests is the key consideration in
deciding whether or not to use CPO powers.

112.

Once the CPO is made and served the process cannot be withdrawn although
the Council is not obliged to use its powers. Once the CPO is confirmed the
Council will have three years to use the powers to secure vacant possession.
Compensation is payable to those whose interests are acquired and the
agreement of compensation can be referred to the Upper Tribunal if agreement
can’t be reached. A claimant is entitled to request advance payments of
compensation (up to 90% of the estimated value) once possession has been
taken even if agreement has not been reached on the final amount of
compensation payable. There is a CPO Indemnity agreement in place as part of

C20
the suite of documents that underpin the LLP so that the LLP is obliged to
underwrite the cost of these acquisitions.

Risk Assessment
113.

The Council’s CPO powers are in themselves an important risk management
tool. The authority to use these powers ensures that where negotiations to buy
back leasehold interests by agreement have been unsuccessful, the Council can
achieve vacant possession in a timely manner and avoid the risk of delay in
delivering the CRE regeneration scheme. Such a delay would have financial and
resource implications as well as having a negative impact on the residents of the
Estate.

114.

The exercise of CPO powers can be controversial and the Council is managing
the potential risk through continued consultation and engagement with affected
residents and stakeholders.

Equalities Analysis
115.

In relation to equality considerations have been undertaken to ensure but we are
working to eliminate discrimination and advancing equality of opportunity and
fostering good relations within the protected charateristics.

116.

A full EQIA has been completed please see Annex 2

Health Implications
117.

The link between health and housing is well documented. Where we live
influences our lives in many ways. Housing influences both our physical health
and our mental health, our sense of community and connectedness. This
includes whether housing is warm and dry, there is enough space for everyone,
that it feels safe, affordable and is connected to services and networks.
Residents should live in housing that is of a decent standard, that meets the
needs of all its occupants and supports both their physical and mental health.

118.

The recommendations set out in this report will enable the comprehensive
redevelopment of Cambridge Road Estate which will provide a once in a
generation opportunity to improve some of the wider determinants of health,
including the built environment, green spaces, play areas and safer streets and
neighbourhood in the most disadvantaged part of the borough where residents
experience some of the poorest health outcomes. These wider social
determinants of health have a much greater impact on health than access to
healthcare services, and reflect the Marmot principles for health and wellbeing
outlined in Kingston’s Health & Care Plan.

119.

There is a significant difference in life expectancy across the borough, with
people living on the CRE having the shortest life expectancy. Men on the CRE
live 7.4 fewer years than men living in the area of the borough with the longest
life expectancy. This gap is 5.7 years for women. Much of this difference is down
to the wider determinants of health and improving these wider determinants of
health will have a positive impact, as highlighted in the 2019 Annual Public
Health Report of the Director of Public Health for Kingston, which discusses the
importance of place in health and wellbeing. This gap in life expectancy has been

C21
increasing, indicating widen inequalities. The regeneration of the CRE is an
opportunity to redress this imbalance, decreasing inequalities in the area,
resulting in a levelling-up across the borough, with the aim of increasing both life
expectancy and very importantly, healthy life expectancy, so that resident’s aren’t
just living longer lives, but more of their life in good health.

Road Network Implications
120.

There are no specific road network implications as a result of the specific
recommendations of the report. The Council’s Highways Department will be
consulted through the planning process.

Sustainability Implications
121.

Not applicable for the purposes of this report.

Background papers - None other than those referred to in this report
Author of report - Elaine Taylor Director of Development - Cambridge Road Estate
Regeneration: elaine.taylor@kingston.gov.uk

ANNEX 1

C22

Annex 2
FULL EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT FORM B
Function being assessed:
Cambridge Road Estate - Programme Delivery
Is this a new function or a review of an existing function?
In March 2020, residents voted in favour of proposals to regenerate the Cambridge Road Estate (CRE). RBK has appointed
Countryside homes as its joint venture partner. This ambitious programme will provide 2000+ new homes, shared spaces and
community facilities for the neighbourhood.

1.

In July 2017 at Full Council, Members resolved that the Council proceed ‘in principle’ with making Compulsory Purchase Orders
(CPOs) on property interests identified within the proposed regeneration site (Cambridge Road Estate) that have not been acquired
voluntarily through negotiation. This report is a follow up report to make the actual CPO for CPO1 area of Cambridge Road Estate.
Boundary map is included in Committee papers.

C23

Growth Committee also recommended to Full Council to approve that the Council proceed “in principle” with
making Compulsory Purchase Orders (CPOs) on property interests identified within the proposed regeneration
site that have not been acquired voluntarily through negotiation. This was approved by Full Council on 18 July
2017.

What are the aims/purpose of the function?
The primary purpose of the Compulsory Purchase Order (“Order”) is to facilitate the initial phases of the comprehensive
redevelopment and regeneration of the Estate. A primary driver for the regeneration is to improve the quality of housing for current
residents. The estate suffers from significant condition issues but also fundamental design flaws that would make it impossible to
deliver modern day ‘secure by design’ including designing out crime and improving accessibility standards through refurbishment
due, to layout and changes of levels across the site. New build accommodation would also allow tenants and leaseholders to benefit
from higher standards in terms of better insulated homes, increased accessibility and connectivity.
The Council is confident that the proposed redevelopment will result in social, economic and environmental improvements to the
Estate and the Borough. It will also secure new private and affordable housing in place of that proposed to be removed, thus
securing both quantitative and qualitative improvements to the housing available in the Borough.

The Council is now seeking to secure clean title and vacant possession of the Order Land in order to ensure the implementation of
the initial phases of the redevelopment.
Across the Estate there is considered to be an urgent need for redevelopment to give residents a much higher quality living
environment, to increase the provision of mixed-tenure homes, and deliver comprehensive regeneration. The Order Land comprises
Phases 1 and 2 of the proposed comprehensive regeneration scheme, as shown on the Phasing Plan attached as [Appendix 2].
Subsequent phases may also require the use of the Council’s CPO powers to ensure timely delivery.
Although the Council owns the freehold interest in the majority of the Order Land, the implementation of Phases 1 and 2 requires the
acquisition of all property interests currently owned by third parties, including a number of freehold and leasehold interests.

C24

Following the outcome of a regulated procurement process a 50:50 joint venture has been established between the Council and
Countryside Properties (UK) Ltd to undertake the regeneration of the Estate, which is to be delivered over a number of phases. The
basis of the partnership involves the Council investing land and capital as equity, with Countryside bringing matched investment.
Both parties are responsible for delivering the development through a Limited Liability Partnership (LLP), which is managed through
a Board structure and profits distributed in proportion to investment stake. A Community Board has also been established to be the
representative body for the community ensuring that their views continue to be taken into account at every opportunity.

The acquisition of the Order Land will enable the redevelopment of Phases 1 & 2 of the Estate regeneration scheme. This will deliver
new homes, community facilities, and environmental improvements in a manner that will improve the economic, social and
environmental wellbeing of the area.
The Council has and will continue to take steps to engage and negotiate with the remaining third party owners within the Order Land
to acquire their interests by agreement, but it is clear that compulsory purchase powers must be employed to ensure that Phases 1 &
2 of the redevelopment can be achieved within a reasonable timeframe, or at all. Further, it may be necessary for the Council to use
its compulsory purchase powers to facilitate acquisition of future phases of the regeneration scheme.

Is the function designed to meet specific needs such as the needs of minority ethnic groups, older people,
disabled people etc?
The Order is applicable to all resident homeowners living on Cambridge Road Estate, non-resident homeowners and commercial
properties. This cuts across all of the equalities protected characteristics.

As stated in section 6.3 (see extract below) of the Freeholders and Leaseholders Decant policy additional support will be made
available to vulnerable residents.
6.3.1 The Council is also aware that there are leaseholders and freeholders that have complex needs which make them vulnerable.
We will provide additional support to those leaseholders and freeholders with complex needs that are assessed as being vulnerable
and assist them with their move.
6.3.2 A vulnerable leaseholder or freeholder for the purpose of this policy is someone that is “less able to safeguard his or her
personal welfare or the welfare of any children in the household, and will be in need of care and attention by reason of age, infirmity,
or suffering from chronic illness or mental disorder, or substantially handicapped by being disabled”. Detailed consultations will be
conducted with social services and relevant health practitioners to obtain the necessary information and documentation (e.g. care
needs/packages) regarding the needs of the household to assess and determine vulnerability.

C25

In implementing the CPO order the Council is mindful that not all homeowners will be wanting to sell and will benefit from varying
levels of support throughout the process.

What information has been gathered on this function? (Indicate the type of information gathered e.g. statistics,
consultation, other monitoring information)? Attach a summary or refer to where the evidence can be found.
Household referencing exercise was carried out in 2019 to ensure communication materials were being sent to the correct
homeowners and addresses. This exercise is currently being updated.
There are 832 properties on the Cambridge Road Estate. At the start of the regeneration programme there were 179 leaseholders
and freeholders. At present the Council have purchased 27 of these properties. Out of the remaining 154 properties, 40 are located
in phases 1 and 2. The 40 homeowners are broken down as follows

Tenure type
3x Freeholders (FH) & 5x Leaseholders (LH)

Phase 1 - non-resident homeowner

2x FH & 5x LH

Phase 1 - Shared Ownership

1x FH property with Wandle Housing

Phase 2 - resident homeowner

3x FH & 6x LH

Phase 2 - non-resident homeowner

5x FH & 10x LH

Resident homeowners will have the right to one of the new homes on the Cambridge Road Estate. Most resident homeowners will be
able to move straight into their new properties and will only need to move once.
Some resident homeowners in phase 1 who wish to remain on Cambridge Road Estate will need to move into temporary decant
accommodation while their new home is built. The Council will provide this for resident homeowners who wish to purchase one of the
new homes.

C26

Phase 1 - resident homeowner

Prior to the ballot a comprehensive household verification exercise was carried out with all social tenants, residents in temporary
accommodation and homeowners. The primary purpose of this was for robust identification of all eligible voters. The secondary
purpose was to ensure we had accurate and up to date information.
The verification process took place between June and September 2019. A total of 863 households and other freeholders were written
to with details of the information the Council currently held on them and they were asked to confirm or amend this. The Council
commissioned Persona Associates, a land referencing agency, to verify the land registry records of all home-owners on the estate
and to assist with the data gathering exercise.

The resident steering group was consulted with, prior to distribution of the forms, to ensure the questionnaires and accompanying
letters were clear and the recommended amendments were made.
To encourage completion of the forms, follow-up letters were sent and a number of drop-in sessions were held at Tadlow Hub for
residents who had any questions or required assistance. The questionnaires were publicised widely by text, newsletters, on the web
site and in person via the regeneration team door knocking and at events. Information was also circulated in 14 different languages
and interpreting services offered on request.
The overall return rate was 69%. The return rate for leaseholder / freeholder households was the lowest at 57%. The Council can
confidently confirm that to date every effort has been made to ensure that accurate information has been recorded on as many
households as possible who will be affected by the regeneration.

C27

The following information was checked for all current household members:
● Name, Date Of Birth, gender
● Relationship to main tenant
● First language / translation needs
● Ethnic origin
● Disability categories
● Contact details

The data used to inform this impact assessment has been taken from the following sources:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Housing landlord service records (Universal housing - Civica)
CRE household verification data
Land registry
Home Connexions (housing register data)
Leasehold services records
Kingston data observatory
GLA (Greater London Authority) projections 2020
ONS (Office for National Statistics) census 2011
RBK Annual Public Health Report 2014
LGBT in Britain, Trans report (Stonewall 2018)

For some homeowners who are retired or unemployed increasing or transferring an existing mortgage may be problematic bot be
possible. As per 6.2 of the Freeholders & Leaseholders CRE Decant policy there is additional & assistance for homeowners in
financial difficulties.
In recognition some residents may repurchase new properties on or off the estate at higher values to get an equivalent property to
what they currently own, the Council has made available shared equity and shared ownership (please see below brief description of
these two offers) offers to all resident homeowners. Residents may take up this offer for purchases of properties anywhere in the UK
up to the equivalent value of a new home on Cambridge Road Estate.

C28

Does your analysis of the information show different outcomes for different groups (higher or lower
uptake/failure to access/receive a poorer or inferior service)? If yes, indicate which groups and which aspects of
the policy or function contribute to inequality?

Brief descriptions
Shared Equity
The Council offers the option where you own a proportion of a new property which you purchase from the Council. The Council
retains the remaining proportion of the equity and you do not pay rent on the unowned proportion, which is retained by the Council.
On any sale of the property, you and the Council will share the proceeds in proportion with the amount you and the Council own.
Shared Ownership
This is a part-buy, part-rent scheme where you own a proportion of the property and pay rent on the unowned portion, which is
retained by the Council. Leaseholders can buy a proportion of the new property and pay rent on the unowned proportion.
Covid-19 pandemic

The issues which need to be considered to ensure that no residents are disadvantaged in the buy back process due to the pandemic
are set out below:
●
●
●
●

Residents’ economic situation, particularly where they have been unable to work or been made redundant
Safe property viewings
Risk assessments for packing and removals
The potential increased anxiety that a house move may cause under these circumstances and how residents can be well
supported

C29

Since March 2020 we have faced an unprecedented and ongoing world-wide pandemic caused by the SARS-CoV-2 virus. England,
along with most other countries, went into lockdown to reduce the spread of the disease. This meant severe restrictions on public life
including school and business closures, social distancing measures and shielding for people who were particularly vulnerable to
infection. At the time of writing many of these measures are still in place. The risk to public health is ongoing. The Council is currently
operating in a very different way with some services closed and others functioning very differently. This needs to be taken into
account when assessing the potential impact of purchasing properties on Cambridge Road Estate residents.

●
●

Resident’s ethnic origin - COVID 19 infection rates appears to be higher in certain communities
Resident’s who wish to relocate to a different area of the United Kingdom impeded due to current guidelines of not travelling
too far away from current residence

Vacant possession for the majority of Phase 1 is not required until 2022, therefore there is no need to proceed with any purchases of
properties from homeowners on CRE if they do not wish to sell because they are shielding or for any other matter.
The Council will continue to contact and communicate with homeowners in CPO1 area and are ready to start the buy back process
when homeowners are ready and willing to do so. The CPO order as the last resort and the desire is to negotiate with the purchase
with all 40 remaining homeowners in phases 1 and 2 through negotiation.

Are these differences justified (e.g. are there legislative or other constraints)? If they are, explain in what way.
For some the process will be straight forward and there are no identified inequalities in their ability to make informed choices or in the
final outcomes for these households. For the groups listed below this assessment has identified some potential differences in
outcome if the right measures are not put in place.
Homeowners over the age of 65 years
Homeowners who do not speak English as a first language
All residents affected by any COVID-19 restrictions which may be in place during the buying and selling of their property

The Council has already worked hard to ensure that all residents will be homeowners are supported and have their needs taken into
account during the regeneration programme .
Actions are already in place, which are detailed below, which are under constant review to see if these need amending or additional
measures are required, to ensure all homeowners are not adversely impacted.
All communication which has been circulated to homeowners have the offer of being translated on request. One to one meetings to
discuss homeowners individual have and will continue to be offered (face to face or via video link) with a translator if required.

C30

●
●
●

The Council with permission has and will continue to speak to homeowners appointed representatives be that a family member of
friend or anyone else.
Also the Council have and continue to be willing to speak to homeowners outside of weekday working hours if this is an obstacle for
any of them.
The Council have appointed Independent tenant and homeowner advisors for the regeneration programme which is free service for
all residents and homeowners to access if they wish to do so.

What action needs to be taken as a result of this Equality Impact Assessment to address any detrimental impacts
or meet previously unidentified need?
Continuation of the activities described above and to continue to assess health and safety measures in place during
COVID-19 lockdown restrictions.
Groups of residents this will
reduce potential inequalities for

Offer information
(communications) in various
accessible formats and
translated into other languages.

Residents with sensory
impairments
Residents with learning disabilities
Residents with low literacy levels
BAME residents with English as a
second language

C31

1

Action

Offer video conference and
All homeowners
telephone appointments and
face to face appointments, when
allowed, that meet government
safety guidelines. These can be
arranged outside of weekday
working hours if need be.

3

Risk assessment for property
viewings to be completed to
reduce infection risk

All homeowners

4

The Freeholder & Leaseholder
Decant policy was drafted in a
way that no party (either the
Council or any leaseholder or
freeholder) is financially better
or worse off as a result and
leaseholders and freeholders
should not be financially
disadvantaged by the
regeneration.

All homeowners
C32

2

When will you evaluate the impact of action taken? Give review dates.
The Council will revisit the impact assessment and review the impact of actions throughout the process of making of the CPO order
and post making, up to and including any inquiry which needs to take place.

Assessment completed by:
NAME: Marc Doman
SERVICE: Cambridge Estate Regeneration Team
DATE: March 2021

C33

Council

D1

Appendix D

29 April 2021
Interim Decision-Making Arrangements During the Covid-19 Pandemic
Report by General Counsel, and Monitoring Officer
Relevant Portfolio Holder: Communities and Engagement
Purpose
The purpose of this report is to identify options for the delivery of meetings of the Council and
its Committees upon the expiry of temporary Regulations which permit meetings to take place
virtually.
Recommendations
To RESOLVE that
either
In the event that remote attendance at local authority meetings continues to be
lawfully permitted:
1.

all meetings of the Council and its Committees, Sub-Committees and other bodies be
held virtually up to and including the meeting of Council on 13 July 2021;

2.

The modifications to Procedure Rules 17(B)(2) (public questions at meetings of
Committees) and 17(C )(1&2) (Public speaking on agenda items at meetings of
Committees) approved at the meeting of Council on 13 October 2020 continue to be
applied up to and including the meeting of Council on 13 July 2021;

3.

an in person Mayor Making ceremony be held in the grounds of the Guildhall on 18
May 2021; and

4.

the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Monitoring Officer, the Director of Public
Health, the Leader of the Council and the Leader of the Opposition be authorised to
re-introduce meetings in person and all other normal constitutional provisions at an
earlier date in the event of a significant improvement in the public health situation.

Or
In the event that remote attendance at local authority meetings is not lawfully
permitted:
the proposals set out in paragraph 36 be implemented for the period up to and including 20
July 2021.
(late material to be circulated in advance of the meeting will provide Members with the
outcome of the anticipated High Court declaration on the lawful status of virtual meetings
and may result in some necessary modification of the recommendations set out above)
Benefits to the Community:
The proposals will enable the Council to maximise the level of democratic accountability and
transparency in its decision making arrangements during the Covid-19 pandemic while
safeguarding the health of Members, Officers and the public as they participate in those
processes.

D2

Key Points
A.

Meetings of the Council and its Committees are presently being held virtually in
order to ensure the safety of participants during the Covid-19 pandemic. The
temporary Regulations which expressly permit remote attendance at meetings are
due to expire on 6 May and the Government has indicated that they will not be
extended beyond this point. However, the High Court was due to hear a claim on 21
April, the day on which this agenda was published, that the existing legislation
which governs local authority meetings does in fact permit remote attendance
despite it having been drafted many years prior to the development of the
technology which facilitates such a concept. The outcome of that hearing will be
reported in late material.

B.

This report therefore examines options for the safe conduct of the Council’s
meetings in the period to July 2021 based both on the possibility of a lawful
continuation of virtual meetings or the requirement for a return to face to face
meetings.

C.

Given current Covid case rates, the continuing need to minimise the risk of
transmission of the virus, the likelihood that a significant proportion of those who
would be required to attend meetings will not have been fully vaccinated by May
and the satisfactory conduct of virtual meetings to date, it is recommended that if
the option to meet virtually remains available meetings should continue to take
place online up to and including Council on 13 July. In order to ensure that a Mayor
Making ceremony is able to take place this would be separated from the Annual
Meeting of Council in May and held outside, in the grounds of the Guildhall on the
same day.

D.

If, however, the High Court finds that remote attendance is not permitted by the
current legislation it will be necessary to return to face to face meetings from 7 May.
In this eventuality it is recommended that all meetings between 7 May and 21 June,
the earliest date on which all restrictions on indoor gatherings may be removed, be
rescheduled to later in June or July so that they might be able to take place in
person under normal, or near normal, conditions. Those meetings which cannot be
rescheduled because of the time critical nature of the business to be conducted
would meet in person in the Guildhall with Covid safe mitigation measures in place
and reduced capacity for Officers and members of the public to ensure social
distancing requirements can be maintained.

E.

Meetings which could not be safely accommodated in the Guildhall because of the
likely attendance would need to be relocated to a larger venue such as the Kings
Centre in Chessington. Conversely, Neighbourhood Committees, which usually tend
to be held at smaller off site venues, would be relocated to the Guildhall to
maximise attendance and ensure the proceedings could continue to be live
streamed.

F.

In any eventuality a report will be submitted to the next meeting of Council in July
reviewing the arrangements in the light of the public health situation prevailing at
that time.

Context
1.

At the outset of the Covid-19 pandemic in March 2020 the Council took the
exceptional step of cancelling its formal committee meetings to ensure compliance
with guidance from the Government on social distancing, and the instructions for
people to stay safe in their homes. The transaction of all non urgent business was

D3
postponed and urgency mechanisms utilised to enable the Chief Executive and
Executive Directors to take urgent decisions which would otherwise have required
Member approval in Committee. In order to retain as much democratic oversight as
possible measures were put in place to broaden the consultation with Members and
to ensure public notice was given of all decisions taken.

2.

The Council was able to reinstate its Committee meetings in virtual form in May
2020 following the introduction of The Local Authorities and Police and Crime
Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel
Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 which enabled local authority
meetings to take place online for the period to 6 May 2021

3.

An initially streamlined schedule of meetings was progressively extended so that by
October 2020 most Committees had been reintroduced and a near normal calendar
was in effect save for the operation of a single Response and Recovery Committee
undertaking the functions of all five of the Strategic Committees

4.

In October 2020 Council agreed that all meetings should continue to take place
virtually for the remainder of the Municipal Year due to the deteriorating public
health situation. A temporary Culture, Housing, Environment and Planning
Committee was also established to discharge the functions of the Environment and
Sustainable Transport and Place and Culture Committees and the Children and
Adults Care and Education Committee was reinstated, bringing the total of Strategic
Committees operational to three.

5.

A report elsewhere on this agenda sets out proposals for the streamlining of the
Council’s Strategic Committee structure. The new arrangements are due to come
into effect from the commencement of the 2021/22 Municipal Year and the
temporary Response and Recovery Committee and Culture, Housing, Environment
and Planning Committee will cease to operate. Having established the preferred
Committee model the Council must now determine the form in which these
meetings take place during the ongoing pandemic.

Virtual Meetings
6.

To date a total of 125 meetings of Council and its Committees have been held
virtually

7.

Online meetings have proved to be an effective means of transacting the
Council’s business. No major technical issues leading to the interruption of
proceedings have been experienced and Members and Officers quickly adjusted
both to the technology and the conduct of virtual meetings. Remote meetings,
whilst more resource intensive in terms of the number of Officers required to
support them, have delivered significant benefits. The reduction in travel to and
from the Guildhall and usage of electronic agendas minimises the environmental
impact of meetings and helps enhance the work-life balance for all participants.
Online meetings have also facilitated higher levels of Member attendance.

8.

Public participation arrangements are more difficult to manage within virtual
meetings because the need for advance notice of attendance inevitably restricts
opportunities for spontaneous participation. It is also difficult to accomodate large
numbers of the public within virtual meetings because of bandwidth pressures
and the significant resource implications arising from the need to manage virtual
attendees. Nevertheless, the usual mechanisms for public participation, including
speaking on planning and licensing applications and the submission of questions,

D4
have been maintained save for slight modifications to Procedure Rules. These
require advance notice of the intention to submit questions to Neighbourhood
Committees and suspend public speaking on individual agenda items.

9.

In some cases the virtual nature of the meetings has actively encouraged greater
public participation by removing obstacles faced by residents who, for a number
of reasons including ill health, disability or caring responsibilities are unable to
easily travel to the Guildhall and providing a more comfortable environment for
those who might lack confidence in speaking at a meeting in person. There have
been no reports of residents unable to engage in the proceedings as a result of
digital exclusion and the option to dial in by telephone has enabled the continuing
participation of individuals where an internet connection is either absent or fails.

10.

The live streaming of every meeting has ensured continuing public access to
proceedings, arguably enhancing it for those Committees, including the
Neighbourhood Committees and Audit, Governance & Standards, which were
previously not webcast, thereby improving transparency and accountability. Prior
to the pandemic the webcasting of meetings was normally restricted to Council,
Strategic Committees and Development Control. Where direct comparisons are
possible, overall viewing figures for virtual meetings streamed live on the
Council’s YouTube channel have been slightly higher than pre-pandemic
meetings webcast from the Council Chamber.

11.

The Council’s experience corresponds closely with the national picture reported
in the Government’s one year review of the statutory measures put in place in
response to the Covid-19 pandemic. The report, presented to Parliament in
March 2021, acknowledged that:
“Local authorities have consistently highlighted that remote meetings have been
beneficial in terms of enabling councillors to balance work and caring
responsibilities, had a positive environmental impact, increased public
participation and member attendance, and that councils welcome the flexibility to
hold in person or hybrid meetings under the regulations as they
determine appropriate.”

12.

The Government has called for the submission of evidence with a view to
examining the desirability of permanent legislative change to permit the conduct
of meetings virtually. However, in the short term it has also indicated that the
temporary Regulations will not be renewed upon their expiry on 6 May and
signalled its expectation that in the light of the successful vaccination programme
and the reduction in cases of Covid-19 local authority meetings will resume in
person either from that date or from 17 May when it is anticipated that a much
greater range of indoor activities will be able to re-commence under the
Roadmap out of lockdown.

13.

Guidance on the safe use of Council buildings has been updated to specifically
refer to formal meetings of Committees. This requires local authority meetings
taking place in person to follow the principles set out in the government’s working
safely guidance. Members, Officers and others attending physical meetings will
be required to maintain social distancing wherever possible. Where the social
distancing guidelines cannot be followed in full in relation to a particular meeting,
Councils are asked to consider redesigning the meeting to maintain a 2m
distance or 1m with risk mitigations where 2m is not viable.

14.

While the Government acknowledges that Authorities have a legal obligation to
ensure that the members of the public can access meetings, it recommends that

D5
they continue to be permitted to do so virtually until at least 21 June, at which
point it is anticipated that all restrictions on indoor gatherings will have been lifted
in line with the Roadmap.

Options
15.

The effect of the expiry of the temporary provisions is at present uncertain. On
the day on which this agenda was published The High Court heard a claim
asking it to determine whether virtual meetings are permitted under the
pre-existing statutory arrangements. The outcome of that hearing is not yet
available but will be reported in late material for this meeting.

16.

If, notwithstanding the expiry of the temporary Regulations, the Court rules that
online attendance at meetings is lawful the Council will need to decide if it wishes
to extend its virtual meeting arrangements into the new Municipal Year.

17.

Given current case rates, the continuing need to minimise the risk of
transmission of the virus, the likelihood that a significant proportion of those who
would be required to attend meetings will not have been fully vaccinated by May
and the existence of a viable online alternative to in person meetings, it is
recommended that if the option to meet virtually remains available meetings
should continue to take place online up to and including Council on 13 July. This
would complete the full cycle of meetings in a consistent manner and provide
scope for any slippage in the roadmap target date of 21 June for the removal of
all restrictions. Such an arrangement would ensure equality of access for all
Members and the public participating in the meeting regardless of health,
disability, vaccination status or self isolation requirements.

18.

In these circumstances it is proposed that a separate Mayor Making event be
conducted outside, in the Guildhall grounds, on the same day as the Annual
Meeting of Council in order to maximise the number of civic guests who could
safely attend. As the proceedings are ceremonial in nature they do not need to
form part of the formal Annual Meeting and would, of course, be difficult to
replicate in a virtual environment.

19.

Subject to a further review of the public health situation at the 13 July meeting of
Council it would be anticipated that meetings could then resume in person. The
generally small scale Committees and Sub-Committees which typically meet over
the summer recess would help test and assess levels of risk ahead of the busy
September cycle of meetings.

20.

In these circumstances it is proposed that the Chief Executive, in consultation
with the Monitoring Officer, the Director of Public Health, the Leader of the
Council and the Leader of the Opposition would be authorised to re-introduce
meetings in person and all other normal constitutional provisions at an earlier
date in the event of improvement in the public health situation.

21.

If, however, the High Court rules that virtual meetings are not lawful beyond 6
May all meetings after that date would have to be conducted in person. The
options open to the Council with respect to arrangements for these meetings
from May to the July meeting of Council) are set out below.

22.

A) Extension of Delegation to Officers
Government guidance suggests that Councils could consider the use of existing
powers to delegate decision making to Officers in order to minimise the number
of meetings held if that is deemed necessary. Greater usage was, by necessity,
made of Officer decision making for a brief period at the beginning of the

D6
pandemic, albeit with extensive Member consultation. However, the loss of
democratic accountability is not a desirable solution where alternatives exist and
this approach is therefore not recommended.

23.

24.

B) Rescheduling of the Calendar of Meetings
The Calendar of Meetings for the 2021/22 Municipal Year, due for approval under
a separate item on this agenda, schedules 17 meetings between 7 May and 21
June, the earliest date on which all restrictions on indoor gatherings may be
removed. A significant number of these could be delayed to late June and July in
order to allow the meetings to take place in person under normal, or near normal,
conditions. A revised draft calendar of meetings which could if necessary be
adopted for this period is attached at Annex 1 (further changes may be required
dependant upon the nature of the business due to come forward to those
meetings). Despite the more concentrated programme only one extra meeting (of
the Kingston Town Planning Sub-Committee) has had to be scheduled for after
the commencement of the school summer holidays, a time when most
Committees are normally in recess.
Where it is not possible to rearrange meetings because of the time critical nature
of the business to be conducted some form of alternative arrangements set out in
Options C-E below will need to be implemented.
C) In Person Meetings With Full Member Attendance

25.

The capacity of the combined Council Chamber and Committee Room space
with 1.5m social distancing is 29 people (this may vary slightly on a meeting to
meeting basis depending on actual desk configurations). This is sufficient to
physically accommodate most Committee meetings with some adjustments to
the usual arrangements for risk mitigation purposes. These would include the
wearing of face coverings, perspex screens between desks and the allocation of
one microphone per person rather than shared usage. In order to reduce the
number of participants Officer attendance would be kept to a minimum. All
attendees would need to supply their own water and other refreshments

26.

Some very limited provision of no more than 8-10 seats could be made for
attendance by the press and public on a pre-booking basis and contact details of
all those present would need to be recorded for test and trace purposes. No
papers would be laid out in the public gallery. Online public access to live
streams of meetings would be maintained through the use of the fixed
webcasting system in the Chamber.

27.

These measures, in particular the wide dispersal of seats and limited public
access, would fall short of an optimum meeting experience but in the
circumstances are sufficient for the conduct of a lawful meeting.

28.

Meetings of Full Council, and any meetings of Committees such as Planning
where it was considered necessary to provide a larger public gallery could not be
accommodated at the Guildhall and would therefore need to be relocated to a
larger venue elsewhere in the Borough, such as the Kings Centre, Chessington.
This would incur additional costs of approximately £2-3,000 per meeting for
venue hire and the hire of microphones and other Audio Visual equipment
including cameras to enable the live streaming of the meeting.

29.

With the exception of Kingston Town all Neighbourhood Committee meetings
normally take place away from the Guildhall, at a variety of community venues
around the borough. Many of these venues would be unable to accommodate

D7
socially distanced meetings, nor do they generally have facilities for the live
streaming necessary to provide meaningful public access to the meeting. If it is
necessary to hold in person meetings it is therefore proposed that all
Neighbourhood Committees in June and July take place at the Guildhall to
ensure sufficient space for all Members to attend with appropriate social
distancing, adequate control of all other risk mitigation measures and the ability
to broadcast proceedings to the public.

D) In Person Meetings With Limited Member Attendance
30.

A variation on the proposal set out in C) above would be for in person meetings
to be conducted with reduced numbers of Members in attendance. The quorum
for meetings of Council and most Committees is one quarter of the total
membership provided that it is no less than three. On this basis Strategic
Committee meetings could proceed with a minimum of four Members (assuming
the increase in the size of the Committees proposed elsewhere on this agenda is
approved) and Council with 12.

31.

Such a significant reduction in the numbers in attendance would greatly minimise
transmission risks and simplify the logistical arrangements for the meetings, as
well as helping to protect Members who may be vulnerable or shielding.
However, it presents potential issues around the selection of those Members due
to participate and the enforceability of informal agreements on numbers and
gives rise to deficits in democratic representation and oversight.

32.

For these reasons a restricted Member attendance is recommended as a
solution only for the Annual Meeting of Council on 18 May. The only formal
business which the Annual Meeting must conduct relates to the appointment of
memberships of Committees. The remainder of the proceedings are normally
devoted to the Mayor Making which is a ceremonial occasion that can be
separated from the formal meeting as described elsewhere in this report. A
quorum only Council meeting could be accommodated in the Guildhall thereby
avoiding the need for and expense of external venue hire.

E) Informal Virtual Meetings With Subsequent Ratification
33.

The limitations on Members ability to participate in the decision making process if
meetings are reduced in size could be overcome through the use of informal
virtual meetings of Committees. These would have no legal status but would
provide an opportunity for all Members to engage in the proceedings and agree
recommendations for subsequent formal ratification either by a quorum of
Members meeting in person and effectively acting as the relevant Committee or
by Officers utilising urgency powers.

34.

While such arrangements would maximise Member participation they are
potentially problematic. The quorate meeting would still need to take account of
all relevant considerations in reaching its decision, particularly in respect of
planning and licensing applications, and thus there could be no guarantee that it
would approve the recommendations presented to it. Similarly, Officers could not
be fettered by the recommendations of an informal meeting when reaching a
decision delegated to them. The potential vulnerability to challenge means that
this approach cannot be recommended.

Conclusions
35.

If the High Court finds that meetings may continue to take place virtually it is
recommended that in the interests of the safety of all participants and to ensure

D8
equality of access all meetings remain online up to and including the scheduled
meeting of Council on 13 July with the continued application of all current
Constitutional modifications to public participation arrangements. At this point a
decision would be taken on whether face to face meetings could immediately
resume. The review mechanism set out in paragraph 20 would provide the
flexibility to re-introduce meetings in person at an earlier date in the event of a
sudden improvement in the public health situation.

36.

If virtual meetings cannot be lawfully held beyond 6 May the following
arrangements are recommended in order to balance the need for public safety
with proper democratic representation and the efficient transaction of business;
○

all Committees due to meet between 7 May and 21 June which are not time
critical be rescheduled to a date after 21 June, at which point it is anticipated
that they will be able to meet in person without restrictions. This would
include the rescheduling of Council from 13 to 20 July; (A proposed calendar
of meetings for this eventuality is attached at Annex 1)

○

the Annual Meeting of Council on 18 May be held at the Guildhall with only
the 12 Members sufficient to form a quorum present in person with Groups
invited to nominate attendees based on their overall representation on the
Council (ie: 10 seats for the Liberal Democrat Group and 2 seats for the
Conservative Group)

○

a separate Mayor Making ceremony be held in the grounds of the Guildhall
on 18 May, prior to the Annual Meeting;

○

those meetings of Committees which cannot be rescheduled be held on the
dates proposed in the draft calendar of meetings for the 2021/22 Municipal
Year considered by the Response and Recovery Committee on 25 March
2021 with the application of all risk mitigation measures as may be
appropriate including those set out in paragraphs 25-26;

○

The 20 July meeting of Council and other meetings which by virtue of the
number of individuals who need to be in attendance cannot be
accommodated in the Guildhall be held at suitable venues elsewhere in the
Borough;

○

All meetings of Neighbourhood Committees prior to the July Council meeting
be held at the Guildhall;

○

all meetings of Council and Committees up to and including the July Council
meeting continue to be live streamed;

○

the arrangements be further reviewed at the meeting of Council in July; and

○

the Chief Executive Officer, in consultation with the Monitoring Officer, the
Director of Public Health, the Leader of the Council and the Leader of the
Opposition, be authorised to make any such adjustments to the
arrangements set out above as may be required in the event of a material
change in the public health situation.

Resource Implications
37.

The technical and procedural complexity of virtual meetings means that they would
continue to require more intensive Officer support, though the need for this is
diminishing over time as familiarity with the technology continues to develop.
Modest savings of around £2-3,000 would derive from the lack of expenditure on

D9
hall hire and external Audio visual costs for Neighbourhood Committees during the
June/July cycle of meetings.

38.

Some additional costs are associated with a return to face to face meetings,
principally those where the numbers in attendance would require the use of a large
external venue. As indicated in paragraph 28 hall hire, equipment and A/V costs
for large off site meetings are likely to amount to £2-3,000 per meeting, a total of
£8-£12,000 if it is necessary to relocate four meetings during this period. This
would be slightly offset by the same savings identified in paragraph 37 relating to
Neighbourhood Committees if they were relocated to the Guildhall. Other Covid
safe mitigation measures could be implemented at little or no cost.

Legal Implications
39.

The legal implications of the anticipated High Court declaration on the status of
virtual meetings will be set out in the late material to be issued upon receipt of the
Court’s decision.

Equalities Analysis
40.

An equalities analysis was undertaken in May 2020 in respect of the introduction
of virtual Committee arrangements and submitted to the Extraordinary Meeting of
Council on 19 May. This has been subsequently reviewed and updated but no
adverse impact on groups with protected characteristics has been reported in
respect of the operation of virtual meetings. An analysis of the implications of a
return to face to face meetings with mitigation measures will be included within the
late material.

Background papers: held by author of the report - Gary Marson, Corporate Head of
Democratic and Electoral Services, email gary.marson@kingston.gov.uk
● Viewing Data for Webcasts and Live Streams of Committee meetings
● Letter from the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government to Council
Leaders, dated 25 March 2021

Annex 1

D10

2021
May

Jun

Jul

1

Sa

1

Tu

1

Th

2

Su

2

We

2

3

Mo Bank Hol

3

Th

4

Tu

4

5

We

6

Th

7

Licensing

Aug
1

Su

Fr

2

Mo

3

Sa

3

Tu

Fr

4

Su

4

We

5

Sa

5

Mo

5

Th

6

Su

6

Tu

LSC/HOP

6

Fr

Fr

7

Mo

7

We

LGA Conf DC

7

Sa

8

Sa

8

Tu

LSC/JWP

8

Th

Place

8

Su

9

Su

9

We

DC

9

Fr

9

Mo

London Mayor
Election

10 Mo

LSC

10 Th

10 Sa

10 Tu

11 Fr

11 Su

11 We

12 Sa

12 Mo

PB

12 Th

13 Su

13 Tu

C&R

13 Fr

14 Fr

14 Mo

14 We

JHOSC

14 Sa

15 Sa

15 Tu

15 Th

SotBPS

15 Su

16 Su

16 We

16 Fr

16 Mo

17 Mo

17 Th

17 Sa

17 Tu

Annual
18 Tu Council/
Licensing

18 Fr

18 Su

18 We

19 We

19 Sa

19 Mo

19 Th

20 Th

20 Su

20 Tu

Council

20 Fr

21 Fr

21 Mo

LSC

21 We

M & CPS

21 Sa

22 Sa

22 Tu

HWWB (14.00
hrs) /People

22 Th

Surb

22 Su

23 Su

23 We

KT

23 Fr

23 Mo

24 Mo

24 Th

SotB

24 Sa

24 Tu

25 Fr

25 Su

25 We

26 We DC

26 Sa

26 Mo

LSC

26 Th

27 Th

27 Su

27 Tu

KTPS

27 Fr

28 Fr

28 Mo

PFP

28 We

29 Sa

29 Tu

M&C

29 Th

30 Su

30 We

Surb

30 Fr

30 Mo

Bank Hol

31 Sa

31 Tu

LSC

11 Tu

LSC

12 We
13 Th

25 Tu

R&R

LSC

31 Mo Bank Hol

Key

28 Sa

AGS

People - People Committee (7.30pm)
Place - Place Committee (7.30pm)
C&R - Corporate & Resources Committee (7.30pm)
DC - Development Control (7.30pm)
R&R - Response & Recovery Committee (7.30pm)
KT - Kingston Town Neighbourhood (7.30pm)
KTPS - Kingston Town Planning Sub (7.30pm)
M&C - Maldens & Coombe Neighbourhood (7.30pm)
M&CPS - Maldens &Coombe Planning Sub (7.30pm)
SotB - South of the Borough (7.30pm)
SotBPS - South of the Borough Planning Sub (7.30pm)
Surb - Surbiton Neighbourhood (7.30pm)
LSC - Licensing Sub-Committee (9.45am to 2pm)
HWBB - Health & Wellbeing Board (TIMES VARY)
SF - Schools Forum
AGS - Audit, Governance & Standards (7.30pm)
JWP - South West London Joint Waste Partnership
HOP - Health Overview Panel (7.30pm)
PFP - Pension Fund Panel (10am to 2pm)
PB - Pension Board (10am to 2pm)

Scrutiny Panel (to be scheduled if required)

LSC

29 Su

Appendix E

E1

PROPERTY INVESTMENT COMPANY SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMITTEE (5)
Member
1.

LD

Leader of the
Council (Chair)

2.

LD

Portfolio Holder for
Finance

3.

LD

Councillor Hilary
Gander

4.

LD

Councillor Yogan
Yoganathan

5.

CON

Councillor Ed Fram

Substitutes
All other members of Liberal Democrat Group

David Cunningham, Kevin Davis, Rowena Bass,
Ian George, Maria Netley, Nicola Sheppard, Roy
Arora

The Section 151 Officer will serve as a non voting advisory member on the Committee.
Remit:
To receive reports, and timetable public reports to Finance and Partnerships Committee
on how the companies are performing against their business plan and any matters
which may adversely impact on the progress of the Company’s business and affairs.
To set out triggers where it will intervene (e.g. refer to Finance and Partnerships, the
requirement for reappointment of directors if there is no progress against the Business
Plan for say 1 or 2 years, or if the company is dormant)
To evaluate the impact of the companies.
To evaluate the companies’ performance in terms of its return on investment to be
delivered to the Council
To approve such matters as require the consent of the Shareholder.
To make any recommendation to Council that the Company be wound up.
To make any recommendation to Council of the disposal of the Council’s shares in the
Company.
To adopt and implement an annual audit framework' which requires information from
companies in which the Council is a shareholder or has an investment. This information
will comprise the annual accounts, reports and statements that are required under the
Companies Act 2006.
Notes: Committee established by resolution of Council on 9th July 2019.
For information - The Guildhall Capital property investment company was established at
Council on 9th July 2019. Councillors Mark Durrant and Mark Beynon are currently
appointed to the Board of Directors of Guildhall Capital and Councillors Simon Edwards
and Annette Wookey to the holding company. There is currently one vacancy on the
holding company Board.

